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Mr Thembelani Nxesi
‘ Minister of Public Works

| Foreword by the Minister

In my 2012 Budget Vote, | likened the Department of Public Works (DPW) to a patient in an Intensive Care Unit in a
hospital. In 2013 | said that we had stopped the bleeding after we had implemented some changes. In 2014, | reported
that the patient was fully stabilized. In my 2015 Budget Vote, | informed Parliament that the patient was discharged ...
but was still subject to a strict medicinal and therapeutic regimen.

The 2014/15 Annual Report for reflects alignment to my 2014 Policy Statement and the Budget Vote Statement, as well

as progress in the implementation of our Seven-Year Turnaround Plan to rebuild Public Works. We can report the

following significant progress in achieving the goals of the Stabilization Phase of the Turnaround Strategy now in its third

year:

The Clean Audit Project has led to continuous improvement in audit outcomes - the Main Vote improved from
a disclaimer to a qualified audit opinion in 2012/13 and an unqualified audit opinion in 2013/14. This has been
maintained for the 2014/15 financial year. The PMTE improved from a disclaimer in 2012/13 to a qualified audit
opinion in 2013/14 with significantly less qualification areas. This momentum has continued as the audit outcome
for 2014/15 recorded a qualification on two matters only.

Public Works has generated an Immovable Asset Register (IAR) that incorporates the State's properties under
its custodianship. Buildings have been physically verified and we have begun to assign fair values to these assets.
The application of municipal values to 66% of the assets has increased the disclosed value from R49 million in
2012/13 to R78.1 billion in 2014/15. The disclosed value of immovable assets will increase significantly when the
Register is finalized and will reflect in the national balance sheet more appropriately. The existence of a reliable

IAR is immensely valuable and will enhance Public Works’ ability to leverage this huge portfolio for socio-economic

development, black economic empowerment, support for small businesses and job creation. It will also generate
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revenue to maintain the State’s assets.

: The audit of leases in the previous year provided an important platform to identify irregular leases, to strengthen
controls and to improve the management of leases. During 2014/15, my Department worked with National Treasury
to address the immediate challenge of expired leases and to develop a specific supply chain management solution
for the property environment. The current practices are a robust indication of the path we have traversed and the

winning ways we are adopting.

As DPW and the PMTE, we have said that, the stabilisation of the Department — and improved audit outcomes - can
only be sustained if we overhaul and strengthen the line functions and core business of the Department. To manage
successfully this process requires that we fill the vacancies at the Senior Management level. | am confident that we will
sustain the gains achieved during the Stabilisation Phase of the Turnaround Plan, while we simultaneously move decisively
into the second phase. . In this ‘Efficiency Enhancement’ Phase, we will continue to improve the business model and the
processes of the Department.

In my 2014 Policy Statement, | identified five strategic priorities for the five-year period of this Administration. In this
regard, | am happy to report that during 2014 - 2015, the following objectives were achieved:

Firstly, 1,1 million work opportunities have been created through Government's flagship programme, the Expanded Public
Works Programme (EPVWP) against the target of Imillion work opportunities. Public Works is on track to achieve the
target of 6 million job opportunities that the ANC government has committed to, during the period of this Administration.

Secondly, the property and construction management functions were ring-fenced under the PMTE and were reported

separately. The PMTE priorities are:

: To focus on planned maintenance and unblocking projects and eliminate under-spending on capital budgets by
improving the effectiveness of Construction Management; and

: To review and re-engineer the property business across the immovable asset life cycle to achieve long-term
efficiencies as well as short- and medium-term socio-economic deliverables, particularly jobs and empowerment.

This also frees up the Department to focus on its policy, regulatory and oversight mandate as well as the effective
operation of the Prestige Unit and the EPVVP.

Thirdly, the Governance Risk and Compliance ( Branch is now functioning fully. This Branch has been strengthened
to command the fight against fraud and corruption, as well as to spearhead the Efficiency Enhancement Phase of the
Turnaround Strategy. This was achieved by using the tools of Strategic Planning, the Service Delivery Model processes
and Risk and Performance Management.

Fourthly, the processes leading up to the Policy Review have been initiated. In this regard, my Department is working with
all the relevant stakeholders - particularly the provinces and entities of the Department - to develop a new Public Works
White Paper that will culminate in the tabling of a Public Works Act to codify and clarify the mandate of Public Works.

Fifthly, the transformation of various facets of the Built Environment is underway. In this regard, my Department has made
concerted efforts, in partnership with the entities (Construction Industry Development Board [cidb]) and the Council for
the Built Environment (CBE) and Charter Councils to ensure that the ownership, control and the composition of the Built
Environment sector and the allied professions better reflect the demographics of South Africa.
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Also early 2015, the President’s State of the Nation Address tasked Public Works to focus on the following areas to meet

Presidential priorities:

: Energy saving and greening of public buildings; and

. Contribution to Operation Phakisa through the development of small harbours and the establishment of a Small
Harbours Unit under the PMTE.

During the 2014/15 financial year, my Department also focused on improving strategic planning processes, which | believe, is
reflected in the quality of the Strategic Plans and Annual Performance Plans for 2015/16. In this quest, we were supported by
officials from the Departments of Public Service and Administration (DPSA), the National Treasury, the Office of the Public
Service Commission and the Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation in the Presidency (DPME). In this regard, |
would like to acknowledge the support and advice that | received from our dearly departed Minister Collins Chabane.

As we go forward, our maxim and motivation is: “What can we do to enhance efficiency to support service delivery?”

Mr.TW Nxesi, MP
Minister of Public Works




Mr Jeremy Cronin
Deputy Minister of Public Works

1.2 Statement of the Deputy Minister

The major Turnaround and Stabilisation Programme underway in the Department, led by the Minister of Public Works,
Mr. TW Nxesi, has had a very positive impact, in the course of the 2014/15 reporting period, on the work of key
programmes assigned to the Deputy Minister. These included the EPWP, Policy Development and Legislation; as well as
addressing the future sustainability of the Independent Development Trust (IDT).

In November 2013, Cabinet approved the continuation of the EPWP. For Phase 3 (2014 - 2019), an ambitious target
of 6 million work opportunities was set. South Africa’s EPWP is globally unique in that it involves Public Employment
Programmes (PEPs) across a range of different sectors - infrastructure, environment and culture, the social sector, as well
as the locality-based Community Works Programme (CWP). There are four sectoral national lead departments - the
Department of Public Works and the Department of Environmental Affairs, the Department of Social Development and
the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs -, with the DPWV acting as the overall co-ordinator.
All provinces and municipalities are also involved in funding and implementing PEPs. An important innovation in Phase

2 of the Programme was to work closely with the non-profit sector as local implementing agents.

In 2014, the Department submitted a Cabinet Memorandum and the Government agreed to establish a Public
Employment Programme Inter-Ministerial Committee (PEP-IMC), chaired by the Deputy President, Mr. Cyril Ramaphosa.
DPW officials have the lead role in providing technical support to the PEP-IMC, with overall objective of enhancing the
quality and impact of the Programme. In particular, there is the need to ensure greater coordination and convergence
of PEPs.

In the first year of 2014/15 of Phase 3 of the EPWP, over one million work opportunities were created - well ahead

the annual target to achieve 6 million work opportunities by 2019. Needless to say, in the current global and National
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economic context, the centrality of PEPs has become even greater.

Increasing focus is now being given to going beyond just work-opportunity head-counts to, more effectively evaluation
of the developmental impact of these Programmes. This includes: how individual participants are empowered through
training and the work experience, what impact is being made on alleviating household poverty and sustainable livelihoods,
what assets and services are being provided to communities through such Programmes and whether community cohesion
enhanced by these Programmes? There is much anecdotal evidence as well as several project specific academic studies
which confirm that, indeed, many of these developmental impacts are being achieved in practice. The challenge now is

to become more systematic in such evaluations with a view to learning lessons and promoting positive examples.

On the policy front, important progress was made in the 2014/15 reporting period with two long-delayed legislative
interventions.  The Bill of Rights in the Constitution requires that a law of general application be enacted to guide
expropriation by all State institutions currently empowered to expropriate property. The current Expropriation Act,
1975 (Act No. 73 of 1975), is unconstitutional in several respects. In particular, it does not include any reference to
expropriation “in the public interest”. This new requirement, outlined in the 1996, post-apartheid Constitution, defines
“public interest” as including “the nation’s commitment to land reform and to reforms to bring about equitable access
to all South Africa’s natural resources.”

An earlier attempt to introduce a constitutionally-compliant new Expropriation Bill in Parliament failed in 2008 and
the draft bill was withdrawn. Thanks to patient work, in 2013 the version of the current Bill was successfully piloted
through the National Economic Development and Labour Council (NEDLAC). In the 2014/15 reporting period, a new
Expropriation Bill was published for public comment. At the time of writing, the Bill was before the Portfolio Committee
on Public Works (National Assembly). It is anticipated that it will be tabled before the National Assembly before the end
of October 2015.

The Agrément South Africa Bill that seeks to formalize the establishment of this certificating public entity was tabled in
Parliament in the 2014/15 reporting period. At the time of writing, it was passed through both Houses of Parliament.

The Independent Development Trust (IDT) was established in 1990 as an independent civil society, temporary grant-
making agency with an initial endowment of R2-billion. The IDT is now an important part of the broader Public Works
family, with a focus on providing programme and project management capacity, along with social facilitation, in the
construction and maintenance of social infrastructure, including schools, clinics, magistrates courts, and community
centres. The IDT is currently a Schedule 2A Public Entity governed by a Deed of Trust. However, the IDT's institutional
structure is inappropriate for its current critically required, developmental operations and activities. In this context, the
DPW's Branch: Construction and Property Policy Regulation is developing a Business Case for the IDT, to ensure its
long-term viability and help to consolidate it as a key State implementing arm in the construction and maintenance of
social infrastructure.

u@(«k,—

Mr. ) Cronin, MP
Deputy Minister of Public Works




Mr Dlabantu
Accounting Officer

1.3 Report of the Accounting Officer

Overview

The financial year 2014/15 represents another milestone in the Department’s improved service delivery record. It also
marks significant progress in achieving the first phase of the deliverables of the Seven-Year Turnaround Strategy. Since
the Minister introduced it 2012, , the Department has stabilised a number of operational areas of the business, as the basis

for introducing greater efficiencies during subsequent phases of its turnaround.

The Turnaround Strategy has three (3) phases, namely the Stabilisation, the Efficiency Enhancement and the
Transformation/Growth Phases. The Stabilisation Phase focused on immediate challenges where, the stabilised areas,
created the potential for more fundamental changes and large efficiency gains. The Efficiency Enhancement deals with
planned systematic improvements and the redesign of processes, systems and structural elements. The focus during this
Phase will be on key strategic areas to improve proficiency and effectiveness. The third phase constitutes the Sustainability
and Growth elements to enable the Department to refresh its mandate by undertaking a policy review and focusing on
its sustainability & growth.

During the current Stabilisation Phase, the Department has achieved a number of deliverables including an augmented
management structure, the review of the organisational structure to suit the mandate of the Department, the development
of the Macro Service Delivery Model and the extensive financial and internal controls. These initiatives described
the macro mode of delivery of the mandate of the Department that included an intensified focus on the regulation
and transformation of the property and construction industries, the oversight and coordination of the Public Works

Sector and the coordination of the implementation of the EPWP. A remodeled and professionalized property arm, the
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PMTE assumed the role of the implementer of the property management functions of the Department while optimally
utilizing the massive property portfolio of the State. These arrangements gave effect to the 2014 Cabinet decision to
operationalize the PMTE fully.

During the year under review, the Department sustained significant improvements in its audit outcomes for the Main
Account and the PMTE. It also recorded incremental improvements in its operational performance, strengthened its internal
and financial controls and implemented a holistic anti-fraud and corruption fraud strategy to deter fraud-related activities.
This contributed directly to the improved audit outcomes that are reported in the financial statements for the 2014/2015
financial year. The Main Account has maintained its unqualified status and recorded a decline in non-compliance matters.
. The PMTE, on the other hand, has maintained a qualified opinion although the number of qualifications has decreased to
two fundamental shortcomings - the recording of accruals and completeness and the validity of payments for property
rates and taxes. This is a very encouraging development as it indicates notable level of stability. It is, however, not yet
the end of the road. The next phase, during which the efficiencies of these functions will be accelerated to the next level,

will fundamentally be systems-driven and be rolled—out in the next financial year.

The PMTE is now responsible for approximately 75% of the work and budget of the Department. This represents the
largest property portfolio in South Africa. The operationalisation of the PMTE was identified as one of the Minister's key
priorities for the 2014-2019 Administration Period. The entity seeks to ensure effective delivery on the Public Works’
mandate of providing accommodation to Government, being the custodian for the State’s immovable assets and attaining

cost savings for the State.

While progress is reported in the period under review, some business areas within the Department have, however,
experienced challenges. These challenges include delays in procurement processes, the appointment of relevant and
skilled expertise in critical areas and the extension of the Scope of Work in projects. Such challenges have adversely
affected  the performance of the Department as a whole and are central to determining new ways and initiatives
of doing business within the Department. These initiatives, some which are discussed below, are also central to the

Efficiency Enhancement Phase of the Turnaround Strategy.

In the previous reporting period, the Department noted that it needed to adjust its business model to achieve its mandate,
more effectively and inan accountable manner. In this reporting period, the Finance and Supply Chain Management (SCM)
functions for the Department and the PMTE were restructured to provide for the Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) requirements and make SCM more effective in directly supporting its operational requirements. The
proposed organograms for the Finance and SCM units form part of the revised structures for the Department and the

PMTE. These proposals have been forwarded to the DPSA for consideration before they can be implemented.

The total of more than R 35 billion, in irregular expenditure declared for the 2013/14 financial year (Main Account and
PMTE combined), was the result of an extensive intervention by the Department to review all transactions, in detail and

going back to 2009, when it was first qualified. The revision found an irregular expenditure of 394 820 transactions to

the value of R35 billion (In the previous sentence, we said more than R35 billion) for the Department’s Main Account
and PMTE, collectively.




Department of Public Works

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

When this was disclosed, the Department undertook to put appropriate mechanisms and controls into place to ensure
that this trend would not continue. . A firm commitment was also made that all irregular expenditure transactions, would
be fully investigated and dealt with according to the prescribed Framework of the National Treasury.

The Department has already initiated a thorough investigation of approximately 395 000 transactions disclosed in the
previous financial year. Due to the nature and extent of these investigations, it is envisaged that they will probably take
more than three financial years to conclude.

In the meantime, appropriate preventative mechanisms and controls have been put in place to curb further irregular
expenditure.. These interventions have resulted in a sharp reduction of irregular expenditure in the Department’s Main
Account and PMTE in the current reporting period.

The key to sustain this improvement is the strict enforcement of consequence management. By analysing the root
causes, it became clear that the perpetuation of the historic practice and failure to enforce strictly consequence
managementwould defeat the benefits derived from the enhancements made to the Department’s controls’ environment.
The governance structures of the Department have been enhanced to institutionalize a culture of accountability with a
top—down approach. Employees, who were found to have contravened established processes, were dealt with regardless

of their ranks. This sent an unambiguous message to all staff that they will be held accountable for their actions.

Over a number of years, the management of leases by the PMTE was a serious challenge due to many internal and
external factors. In Audit Reports of previous years, the pervasiveness of risks, associated with this matter was highlighted
as a matter that should be resolved as a priority. During this reporting period, Management deployed a dedicated team
to deal with this exposure as quickly as possible.

Due to the nature and extent of this intervention, the guidance and assistance of other stakeholders such as the National
Treasury was paramount in order to achieve the substantial successes that can now be reported. The Leases Portfolio,
which encompasses 2278 active leases and totaling commitments of R 3.9 billion for contracted future periods, has been
put on a firm footing and all persons who were involved are acknowledged and commended for this achievement. This
was achieved, inter alia, by re-negotiating expired contracts in line with National Treasury criteria, aligning operating
procedures to industry best practice to strengthen controls and create proper records to support the management of
the long term obligations. To consolidate the gains achieved to date, it is planned to migrate this updated database to an
electronic Property Management Module in the next financial year during which contractual obligations and all associated
risks will be controlled more effectively.

In the period under review, a number of significant events occurred and projects were completed. These projects and/or
significant events were based on the principles set out in the Turnaround Strategy and represent the key components of
the Department and its mandate. The Department has a wide range of activities and, given its size and the nature of its
business, the Annual Report presents some of the key strategic projects and events.
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The Department provided for strategic economic and security projects and facilities such as land ports of entry, magistrate
courts, prisons and police services. In 2013/14, the Department completed 179 projects and 180 in the 2014/15 financial
year. Project performance is underpinned by a number of external factors such as contractors’ disputes with specialist’s
subcontractors, disputes in payments claims, general under-performance by emerging contractors, and contractors’ cash
flow programs. When such eventualities arose, the first option was to issue Mora Letters to warn the contractors about
performance defaults. This was followed by the termination of the contracts and calling on guarantees where necessary.
These options did not always assist in expediting performance because they sometimes led to further litigation processes
and the service delivery suffered. Projects that were affected the Kgosi Mampuru Prison, Tzaneen Prison, Vanrhynsdorp
Prison, Ceres Prison and North End Prison. As a way forward, negotiations commenced with the liquidators of these

defaulting contractors to complete the outstanding works.

Despite the performance challenges that the Department experienced with contractors, key projects were completed
during the period under review. They included the occupation of the Skilpadhek Port of Entry operational facilities
in February 2015. . The completion of these facilities enables the Department to complete the remaining portions
of development. The Department also completed client capital projects for the Departments of Arts and Culture
in Mthatha and for the Department of Correctional Services in Klerksdorp and the South African Police Services
in Springfontein, Smithfield, Besters, Keimoes and Malipsdrift. These projects ranged from repairs and renovations to
construction of additional facilities. Other Departmental projects were the replacement of the lift at the Parliamentary
complex in Cape Town. The planned maintenance (repairs and maintenance) projects included, inter alia, a harbour in
Gordons Bay, prisons (in Allendale, Paarl, Richmond, Verulam, East London), the Military base in Port Elizabeth and the
Magistrate’s Office in Tsolo.

During the reporting period, the Department prioritized the development of a Framework for the execution of the
National Infrastructure Implementation Strategy to give effect to the overall aim of NIMS for the improved maintenance

of public sector infrastructure in South Africa.

In addition, the National Immovable Asset Maintenance Management (NIAMM) Framework was conceptualised to cover
all areas of the NIMS and consists of the NIAMM Standard and supporting documents. In addition, the NIAMM Standard,
the NIAMM Accounting Framework, the NIAMM Planning Guidelines and the NIAMM Competency Framework were
finalised in draft. Development of the remaining two work components - the NIAMM Monitoring and Evaluation Protocol
and the Contractor Development through the Maintenance Industry - were initiated during the reporting term and
were earmarked for completion in Quarter | of 2015/16. It was envisaged that this process will lead to the approval
of the NIAMM Framework which will be the basis by the DPW sector would maintain the immovable assets under its

custodianship in a uniform and compliant manner.

Once adopted, the NIAMM Framework will be expanded to other Government sectors and entities. This will be in line
with the original intention of the NIMS.
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During the year under review, the GIAMA Implementation Technical Committee (GITC) was revived to ensure a
uniform immovable asset management framework to promote effective and coordinated immovable asset management
within Government. This body provides for an interactive and consultative forum of stakeholders to give effect to the
GIAMA legislation in optimising the cost of accommodation service delivery and optimising the use of State-owned
immovable assets. It is directed by an approved Terms of Reference, and reports to the Department’s Technical MinMec
forum. . Matters relating, inter alia, to User and Custodian Asset Management Planning, Legislative compliance, sector
immovable asset register enhancement, and vesting of State-owned properties are being discussed to improve or align

Government's practices.

The second update of the Custodian Asset Management Plan (C-AMP) was completed during the reporting period. As the
planning and budgeting instrument for the Immovable Asset Portfolio under the Department’s custodianship, the C-AMP
will be steadily enhanced upon receipt from User Departments of their U-AMPs that will outline their accommodation
requirements over a period of time. The submission of the U-AMPs by all the Users is therefore essential for the C-AMP
to fulfill its purpose and ensure an appropriate, funded asset base for appropriate User accommodation underscored by
adequately funded capital and maintenance infrastructure programmes.

Based on a Ministerial conceptualization and directive, the Department has implemented an Inter-Departmental Joint
Teams Initiative between the Department and its largest User Departments e.g. the Department of Justice & Constitutional
Development to ensure significant enhancement in the accommodation infrastructure planning and implementation value
chain. The objectives of the joint teams approach between the Department and each of its key Users, inter alia, are:

: To foster cooperation between the Department and its Users to improve delivery of services/ projects;

. To create a platform for addressing performance challenges from both DPW and its Clients; and

: To enable the Executive from both the Department & Clients to have first-hand and reliable information about the

projects under planning / execution

The meetings of the Joint Teams commenced towards the end of the financial year and were convened frequently. .
Already, demonstrable results have been achieved through the closer management of the priority projects of a Capital,
Maintenance and Leased nature in the User Department’'s accommodation requirements.

The initiative commenced with the 5 key Departments, and it is envisaged that the initiative will be rolled out to all User

Departments in due course. This development is based on the outcomes already achieved.

The country is faced with high unemployment rate, poverty and inequality. These issues have adverse impacts on economic
development and the standards of living. In the light of these challenges, the government introduced public employment
programmes to address some of these issues and provide a better life to the affected people. Since the inception of the
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EPWP, the country has made significant progress in tackling these challenges. The Department, together with various
other contributing departments and public bodies, has contributed a great deal to create work opportunities, to skill the
communities and to ensure greater participation of designated groups, particularly women and youth in the infrastructure,
social and non-state sectors. Such efforts have created more than .1 million work opportunities - this translates into
106% overachievement - in the period under review. The goal is to create 6 million work opportunities by the end
2019. In terms of the full time equivalent, about 92% or 387 278 were created in the 2014/15 financial year. Despite
the challenges such as numerous delays in the implementation of projects that have vast potential to create further work
opportunities and delays in reporting owing to challenges with the roll-out of the new system, the Department is pleased
to report the progress achieved, thus far. In response to some of the challenges regarding the administration of the EPWP,

the Department has put measures into place to address them.

South Africa is currently faced with energy and water crisis. This was evidenced by a series of load shedding resulting
from increased demand for energy and the need to maintain ageing energy facilities. With regard to water usage, the
Department of Water Affairs stated in its 2013 National Water Resource Strategy that of the 223 river ecosystem types
in South Africa, 60% were threatened and 25%, of those, were critically endangered. The situation with the 792 wetland
ecosystems is even worse. This poses a serious threat to the use and availability of water the most valuable resource in

the country.

South Africa is a signatory to the Kyoto protocol. The Kyoto Protocol is an international treaty, extending the 1992
United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) that commits developing countries to reduce
greenhouse gases emissions on the basis of the existence of global warming and man-made carbon dioxide (CO?2)
emissions. The Protocol was designed to assist developing countries to adapt to the negative effects of climate change.
The intention was for countries to reduce greenhouse gas

emissions due to their detrimental effect on the environment.

Faced with the energy and water crisis in the country, it was therefore deemed prudent for Government to the lead in
the issues pertaining to energy and water efficiency. This t meant building and facilities occupied by many Government
Departments needed to be retrofitted with technologies to ensure that the Government buildings are energy efficient. To
date, 9429 buildings have been retrofitted with energy efficiency installations, || buildings retrofitted with water savings
installations and 91 buildings were retrofitted with waste management systems, i.e. the separation of waste sources. All
these are part of the country’s contribution to the Green Economy that is premised on renewable energy, green building,

sustainable transportation, waste management and land management.

The Department , assisted by the Department of Energy (DoE) and the German International Corporation (GIZ), piloted
a project to install Smart Meters. In the current phase, 180 Smart Meters have been installed in various buildings including
the Department's Head Office, the Department of Energy’'s Head Office (Matimba Building), selected Provincial Hospital
Buildings in Gauteng and Kwa Zulu-Natal, as well as State Owned Entities buildings such as the South African Post Office
(SAPQ). Further installations are to be undertaken in the Union Buildings and the Parliamentary Precinct.

The Robben Island project has taken off very well. The Department has developed a comprehensive intervention plan
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for the upkeep of the Robben Island, the iconic International Heritage Site. More than R50 million has been budgeted
for the various projects to be completed in the next financial year. The critical projects include the refurbishment of
houses, the church, the prison, the replacement and upgrading of the power generators, assessing the condition of the
blue quarry and other restorative work.

The Department made very good progress in settling arrear amounts owed to municipalities for rates and taxes. The
Department’s debt is estimated at about R200-million and was verified from October 2014 to March 2015 and confirmed
to be R68,7-million. R60-million was paid during Phase | and the outstanding amount was in progress of being settled.

The Phase 2 of the verification of invoices for the broader Government debt owed to municipalities was initiated by the
Department in March 2015. The National Treasury’s Section 71 Report confirmed that on 31 March 2015 Government
owed municipalities R5.2 billion. Although the process of verification of the debt is picking up momentum, it has been
delayed as a result of challenges with municipalities.

The verification of invoices is progressing and the debt for each department will be confirmed. Each custodian and
debtor Department will be required to make arrangements to settle the debt. The Department intends to complete
the verification of the debt for each custodian and debtor department by December of 2015 and will report the results
in the forthcoming financial year.

The conclusion of this exercise will have a significant impact on municipalities and their ability to deliver on the much-
needed services to their communities. The payment of Government debt is crucial to the National Development Plan's
(NDP) socio-economic objectives and constitutes a key driver to support Government's priorities.

The Department exercises oversight on its entities to ensure that service delivery takes place in line with the broader
mandate of the Department. The four entities - the Construction Industry Development Board (cidb), the Council for
the Built Environment (CBE), the Independent Development Trust (idt) and Agrement South Africa (ASA) - report to
the Minister.

In the year under review, the cidb has continued to make significant strides in the development and transformation agenda
for the construction industry. The 2014/15 financial year revealed positive trends in the number of contractors who
qualified for higher grades, particularly in Grades 7 and 8, and more importantly, these contractors managed to maintain
those grades. The sustainability of these contractors is achieved through continued access to work opportunities by
the public sector clients. The cidb has continued to provide a Support and Capacitation Programme to its clients across
the nine provinces, which has resulted in noticeable improvement in compliance to the cidb prescriptions. Improved
monitoring of the performance of the clients to spend their planned infrastructure budgets will continue in the next
financial year.
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The CBE focused on its mission to be a responsive, relevant advisor and implementer of Government's priorities
in the built environment, to lead and support ongoing transformation, and the development and regulation of the
built environment professions. The Annual Performance Plan, underpinned by the Strategic Plan was developed,
adopted and applied. Several Programmes, which focused on the transformation of the built environment, were part
of the Performance Plan and deemed, as the starting point of an ongoing process, to achieve a holistic approach and
cooperation between all the stakeholders. A renewed focus on the importance and the role of the Built Environment
Professional Councils invited closer interaction with other Professional Councils, in pursuit of the ideal of a real built

environment family that worked together in interest of the country and all its citizens.

The Independent Development Trust s charged with supporting the Department to deliver effectively social
infrastructure across the country. In the 2014/15 financial year, the IDT, though faced with a number of challenges, was

still able to support the Minister to contribute to the delivery of the Department’s mandate.

During the period under review, the Entity Programme managed the delivery of programmes to the value of R6 372
billion. Approximately 90% of the annual programme expenditure - R5 734 billion- was expended on the delivery of
social infrastructure. It must be noted that expenditure is not an end in itself. Beyond the expenditure levels, the IDT's
contribution needs to be understood in the context of the impact of its work. The entity supported 44 Government
Departments and contributed to the empowerment of previously disadvantaged communities by spending 67%, -
R4.287 billion of its annual programme spend through BBBEE compliant contractors. Through the EPVWP-NSS and
social infrastructure delivery programmes and working with 378 grassroots cooperatives, NPOs and CBOs, the IDT
created 74,251 work opportunities. In line with the Minister’'s emphasis for a women and youth centred approach to
development, the IDT awarded contracts to the value of R1.72 billion and R1.08 billion, to women and youth-owned
and controlled contractors, respectively. This increased the participation of women in the Contractor Development
Programme (CDP) to 67% of total participants compared to 60% five years ago. Furthermore, the percentage of
contracts awarded to CDP participants constituted 3.5% - R225m of the annual programme expenditure.

The Minister has initiated a process of transforming the IDT as a social infrastructure implementing agent of government
that will be tasked with complementing the work of the Public Works family. This transformation process is likely to result
in a review of the current corporate form of the IDT; its name; capacity in social infrastructure delivery management, and
its financing model. Given that the grant funding that has historically sustained the IDT has almost been depleted, and
that the annual departmental transfers to the IDT is due to terminate in the year ahead, the development of a funding

model, including a realistic management fee structure for the IDT, is a crucial imperative for its sustainability.

Agrément South Africa facilitated the safe introduction, application and utilization of satisfactory innovation and
technology development within the construction industry, for products for which there are no national standards. The
ASA does this by providing authoritative assurance of fitness-for-purpose for such technologies to optimize resource

utilization and realize cost savings within the industry.
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The ASA has been in existence since 1969 and has been operating at the CSIR under the auspices of its Built
Environment Unit. ASA will soon be established as a juristic person once the Bill in this regard is signed by the President
of the Republic of South Africa, His Excellency Mr Jacob Zuma. At this juncture, there will be a need for transitional
arrangements to provide shared services support to cover the potential void in the CSIR when terminating its existing
support arrangement, until such time that the organisational and operational structure for the new juristic person have
been finalized.

In 2013, the Department introduced a Change Management Project to support the implementation of the Turnaround
Strategy. Subsequently, a Charter with clear objectives and interventions for the change management was approved.
Also approved were effective Change Management plans that focused on the ‘people side of change' and involved
a structured approach to empower individuals to accept, embrace, and drive the implementation of the change
management interventions. The objectives of the change management initiative are centred on three critical pillars
namely - effective communication about change, sound and fair work conditions and training.

The Change Management Project commenced, pursuant to the Minister’s and the Deputy Minister’s Regional Roadshows,
during the 2013/14 financial year. This project was executed to assess the impact of the Turnaround Strategy on the
staff attitudes and opinions and their perceptions and levels of participation in the Strategy. In addition, the Change
Management Project was to be used as a means of collecting data on various issues affecting the employees of the
Department and to enhance communication regarding the Strategy.

Due to lack of data at the time, the 2014/15 financial year saw a massive drive for the collection of data through
questionnaires as well as the determination of the levels of awareness, attitudes and commitment towards the
Department’s Turnaround Strategy. A comprehensive Report to this effect was drafted with recommendations to shape
future engagements on change management initiatives. Furthermore, of great importance, the Report recommended
that communication should be improved in the Department and every employee should be involved or communicated
with — especially the lower staff levels and regional employees. This therefore called for a development of a clear
Communications Strategy to improve communication and boost the morale of all the employees.

The Change Management Communication Strategy was drafted to specifically support all the change process initiatives.
The key focus was to bring marked improvement in appraising and ensuring the participation of all staff members in
the change process. The appointment of Change Agents further enhanced the communication about the progress
on the Turnaround Strategy. A Steering Committee was established to drive consultations with labour stakeholders.
Engagement with labour, focused on information sharing and updates on all issues pertaining to the turnaround projects,
especially the Review of the Organisational Structure.

During the last quarter of the period under review, the training work-stream facilitated training for employees of different
levels on Soft Skills which entailed Change Management, Financial Management, Time Management, People Management
and Emotional Intelligence. The training was aimed at addressing cultural changes as part of the Turnaround Strategy.
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The implementation of the Immovable Asset Register (IAR) Programme, which is intended as a phased process, remains the
key to the full operationalisation of the Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE). As a continuous exercise to ensure
that the Department's IAR is complete and accurate, the Department’s IAR was reconciled against the Deeds records,
other National and Provincial IARs for both the interim and annual financial statements during the 2014/15 financial years.
All the relevant information fields in the IAR were populated to comply with National Treasury's minimum requirements
and Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) standards during the year under review. All information collected

will be subjected to further analysis and alignment to the approved Immovable Asset Management Policy.

Accounting for State immovable assets has improved due to the ongoing collaborative efforts between National and
Provincial custodians as demonstrated in the 2014/15 financial year audit reports in respect of immovable assets for
these custodians. There was no audit qualification pertaining to Immovable Asset Registers for National and Provincial
custodians in 2014/15.

The Department and the Department of Rural Development and Land Reform (DRDLR) as the main national custodians
have assumed a collective, leading role in the identification and correct classification of Government immovable assets. In
this regard, about 761 land parcels were vested in National Government of South Africa’s name (confirmed ownership)
during the year under review. As at 31 March 2015, the Department has cumulatively vested 16 161 out of 33 000 land
parcels under its custodianship.

Real Estate Information and Registry Services (REIRS) branch has been established under PMTE (programme 5) to ensure
efficient management and control of the IAR within the PMTE. In addition REIRS will provide oversight, regulation and
monitoring of the IAR for the State. The development and approval of the Operating Model to ensure that there is
adequate capacity in the Department to maintain the IAR and provide leadership, support and guidance to the Provinces
is underway. Provincial custodians of immovable assets have also been involved in the process to ensure a seamless
approach in Asset Register Management. This will eventually be applied across all spheres of Government to ensure
compliance with GIAMA and other relevant prescripts.

The State Domestic Facilities Framework has been compiled for the National and Provincial custodians of immovable

assets. The purpose of the document is for custodians: :

. To regularise and formalise legacy events where State Domestic Facilities (SDFs) are situated on land not under the
custodianship of National and Provincial custodians

: To make decisions on how to regularize the SDFs on land not under the custodianship of National and Provincial
custodians

: To provide the appropriate accounting treatment of SDFs in line with the relevant prescripts

: To provide the high level steps and actions required in executing the various regularization options available, and

: To ensure existing arrangements with, e.g. the Ingonyama Trust, are honoured and that such transactions are
recorded in accordance with the provisions contained therein

The Department's program to rebuild its Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) compliant Immovable Asset
Register (IAR) by 31 March 2016 is making good progress, as indicated below:

: The physical verification of specifically identified land parcels by Department has almost been concluded. To date,
the Department has verified 36 852 of the identified land parcels in the 2013/14 financial year

. The remaining 6900 land parcels will be verified and assessed during the 2015/16 financial year
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. The Department's State Domestic Facilities not on State land have been identified and accounted for.

: A methodology for applying fair values to the Department's properties, based on municipal values has been
developed and is being implemented. This has the benefit of re-using values already paid for by the State, instead
of incurring the significant costs of using professional valuers. Approximately 60% of DPW's properties have had
municipal values applied in the 2014/15 financial year with the remainder to be completed by 31 March 2016 in
line with the GRAP phase-in process as permitted by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Directive 2. This has
resulted in the disclosure of DPW's properties at R77 billion for the year ending 31 March 2015, compared to the
R10.3 billion in the 2013/14 financial year. Professional valuations are being conducted for property management

transactions on a case by case basis where needed.

Of the approximately 33 000 properties in the IAR, the custodianship of about 23 000 properties has already been
confirmed by virtue of registration or vesting. About 3000 properties are in the process of being vested while the

remainder will be vested once all required documentation has been obtained.

The above key indicators highlight the significant advances made to enhance the State's immovable asset registers.

The review of the Department’s Organisational Structure was concluded with the approval of the Executive Authority
in April 2014. This was preceded by extensive consultation with all stakeholders that included all the Units in the
Department and the representative of labour. The main rationale for the review was to eliminate overlapping functional
areas, lack of alignment with the policy pronouncements of our Political Principal, the Department’s Strategic Vision,
Objectives, Key Priorities and Mandates as well as to reconfigure the structure in accordance with a business model
that is customer focused. This organisational structure sought to provide a configuration that separated the PMTE and
the Department as the Main Vote. The PMTE's focus was on the management of the massive State Property Portfolio,
Asset Investment Management (AIM), Asset Registry, Facilities Management and Property Management. The remaining

functional areas formed part of the Department's Main Vote.

The negotiations for a new Programme Budget structure between the Department and the National Treasury culminated
in new roles for the Department and the PMTE. The Department focused on Policy formulation, intergovernmental
relation and the concurrent functions across the Public Works family, the EPWP, Policy Construction, and the Prestige
functions. The PMTE will be the implementation entity of the Department focusing on the total State Property Portfolio,

from client relations with client departments to leasing in-and/or out, facilities management and property construction.

This process resulted in the review of the April 2014 organisational structure that is due to be approved by the Executive
Authority. The only outstanding matter is to secure the concurrence of the Minister of Public Service and Administration
for the implementation of the revised organisation structure. This new structure will replace the April 2014 approved

structure and it will be implemented during the 2015-16 financial year.

Significant progress has been achieved in the area of oversight and regulation of the Public Works sector. This included
the development of Provincial customised performance indicators that reflect the core areas of service delivery for the

Public Works family. The determination of these concurrent issues is influenced by interrelated and interdependent
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business areas. In a bid to improve performance, the Department held quarterly performance reviews with the Provincial
Departments to discuss performance in specific programmes and to share best practices in areas of commonality with
the GITC (GIAMA Implementation Technical Committee), the Asset Register Management, CFO's, i-E Works and IDMS
forums. These activities were conducted under the auspices of the MINMEC intergovernmental forum chaired by Minister
of Public Works and have established the foundation for a more intensified focus on the oversight and regulatory role
of the DPW over the medium term.

During the reporting period, the Department's Fraud Prevention Strategy and the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy
were approved and adopted. In addition, a Whistle Blowing Policy was developed, approved and adopted to encourage
whistleblowing on activities associated with fraud and corruption. As a means to combat pro-actively fraud/corruption, the
Department introduced the Infrastructure Delivery Transparency System, as a pilot project, in the period under review. For the
first time since 2009, processes were put into place to compile a comprehensive Fraud Prevention Plan. . This was preceded by

a fraud risk assessment and a departmental-wide Fraud Perception Survey.

A draft Risk Register and a Fraud Risk Management Plan were completed and presented the Executive Committee, during the
period under review. The Fraud Investigation reduced the backlog of cases to be investigated going as far back as the 2009/10
financial year. Of the 289 cases reported for investigation for the financial years 2009/10 to 2014/15, 190 have been completed;
39 were referred to other Business Units and Law Enforcement Agencies for further handling and 60 Investigations are currently
underway. Emanating from the investigations conducted from the 2009/10 financial year to date, 129 disciplinary actions were
recommended, of those 100 have been finalised and 29 are still on-going. Sanctions issued based on completed disciplinary
processes, range from dismissals, final written warmings, written warnings etc. Currently, in respect of allegations reported,

investigations are instituted within 30 days of receipt of allegations.

Of the thirty-nine (39) cases of allegations received for the 2014/15 financial year, fourteen (14) cases have been completed
and reports/memoranda issued to management; twenty-three (23) cases were at various stages of investigations and two (2)
cases were referred to other Business Unit/SIU/SAPS. Of the fourteen (14) completed cases, five (5) disciplinary actions were
recommended against officials, of these, three (3) were finalised and two (2) are pending. Of the three (3) finalised, one (1)
official was suspended without pay, one (1) official was found not found guilty; one (1) official was dismissed; and four (4) cases

were reported to SAPS. These cases are still under investigation.

The Infrastructure Delivery Management System (IDMS) is the model that describes the processes that make up
public sector infrastructure management, mainly applied to the construction industry. It outlines the core processes
associated with the model for planning, delivery, procurement, and maintenance of infrastructure works. There are five
key areas identified for institutionalizing the IDMS in provinces: Planning, Procurement, Implementation, Compliance, and
Capacitation. This model aims to centralize the IDMS as a tool for personnel involved in Portfolio Management, Project
Management, Operations and Maintenance. The Department has established a National Committee to monitor the
institutionalization and implementation of the IDMS. In addition, the functional generic structure for the IDMS has been
endorsed by MINMEC as a guide. This will then be rolled out within the Public VWorks family.
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Transfer of functions from the Department to PMTE

Subsequent to the transfer of functions from the Main Vote to PMTE with effect from | April 2013, practical considerations
impacting on the operationalisation of the PMTE were continuously assessed by Management. The new operating model
of the PMTE was further refined which inevitably also impacted on the functional split between the Main Vote and the
PMTE. After due consideration of the operational efficiencies of both these institutions, additional functions were re-
allocated from the Main Vote to PMTE with effect from | April 2014.

For the year under review, all functions transferred to the PMTE are accounted for in accordance with the GRAP
basis of accounting. Funds for all administrative expenditures associated with these functions however remained in the
Department as the PMTE was not yet geared to deliver this independently from the Department.

The application of the transitional arrangements, as provided for in Directive 2 “Transitional provisions for Public Entities,
Trading Entities, Municipal Entities and Constitutional Institutions” issued by the Accounting Standards Board, has been
maintained. This is the second year that this provision has been applied. Over the past two years of the operationalization
of the PMTE, sufficient progress has been made with regards to complying with applicable GRAP requirements.
Management is confident that the PMTE will be fully compliant, in all respects, when this provision lapses at the end of
the 2015/16 financial year.

When the irregular expenditure of approximately R35 billion, on an estimated 395 000 transactions was disclosed in the
previous financial year, the Department made a commitment to institute mechanisms that will ensure these transactions
would be dealt with in accordance with Treasury prescripts. To achieve this, the immediate task at the beginning of this
year under review, was to investigate objectively each and every transaction to determine the appropriate action that
needed to be undertaken. Due to the sheer volume of transactions and the various matters to be investigated for each
transaction, it was not possible to complete all investigations during the year.

During the detection process followed to identify transactions that were irregular, such transactions were tested against
a potential 4| (forty-one) criteria which would render them to be irregular. As soon as a single contravention against
any one of these 41| criteria was detected, the transaction was declared irregular and further testing on that particular
transaction suspended. This was, however, different when an investigation of an irregular transaction was performed. Al
irregular transactions had to be tested, in detail, against the entire 41 listed criteria. It was evident, as can be seen from
the afore-going, that this process was quite onerous and extremely time consuming. Due to the complexities and the
quantum of work involved, this investigation process is expected to continue, for at least, the next three financial years.

Since the inception of the PMTE, one of its major challenges in terms of accounting for its financial transactions, has been
the absence of a billing and accounting system that would enable itemised billing to client departments and accounting for

the business of the trading account on an accrual basis through integration with the business systems.




This exposure was addressed when the PMTE included the acquisition of a billing and accounting system to facilitate the
compliance with applicable GRAP accounting standards in its strategic objectives of the 2013 ENE. The funds allocated
towards this stated objective were used to purchase Sage X3 accounting software and the Archibus leases management
module. An integral part of this acquisition was also the insourcing of IT capacity to assist with the migration of data from

BAS as well as the customisation and operationalization of the new system to cater for business requirements.

The development and customisation of this system has been continuing throughout the reporting period as unforeseen
problems were experienced during integration, compatibility testing with existing operational systems as well as the
setting-up of electronic payment capability independent of the BAS environment. This caused delays that also resulted
in the continued billing of Client Departments on the historic basis of devolved budgets for the entire reporting period.
The Department informed National Treasury of these challenges and pleaded to be allowed to continue with the current

practice. National Treasury subsequently granted exemption until 31 March 2015 to implement detailed billing to clients.

This deviation is dealt with in more detail later.
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1.4 OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

The table below depicts a comparison of the departmental revenue receipts against estimates and compared to the prior

year performance.

Table I: Revenue Receipts

Departmental receipts 2014/15 2013/14
Estimate Actual (Over)/ Estimate Actual (Over)/
Amount Under Amount Under
Collected Collection Collected Collection
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Sale of goods and services other 7705 6 667 | 038 4720 3859 861
than capital assets
Fines, penalties and forfeits - 7 ) 18 4 14
Interest, dividends and rent on land 100 5019 (4919) 5702 | 326 4376
Sale of capital assets - - = = 77 (77)
Financial transactions in assets and 5433 4439 994 | 948 50 204 (48 256)
liabilities
Total Departmental receipts 13 238 16 132 (2 894) 12 388 55 470 (43 082)

The Department collected RI6.1 million as per the different categories reflected in the Table above. The increase in
interest, dividends and rental on land was not anticipated as it related to interest generated from the advances made
available to the IDT, for services rendered on behalf of the Department.

The Departmental revenue is projected to decrease in future due to the transfer of certain functions and the associated
budget to the PMTE. This is expected to impact primarily on revenue generated from “sale of goods and services other
than capital assets” for the reduced sale of tender documents.

The Department provided free accommodation to a number of Chapter 9 institutions based on the 2006 devolution
principles. This was done on the basis of the commitment on the Departments budget at that stage. This arrangement
was formalised through the ‘Framework for the Devolution of Budget and Introduction of Accommodation Charges’. The
amount paid in the current year under review is R72 million (2013/14: 82million).

A total of R3.4 million has been written off as bad debts. A significant portion of the debts relates to municipal deposits.
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The Department’s adjusted appropriation for the year under review was Ré.121 billion, a 1% decrease compared to the
2013/14 financial year’s adjusted appropriation of Ré.175 billion. The reduction in the budget allocation was due to the
reduced payments for capital assets for infrastructure and transfers and subsidies to the IDT within the Immovable Asset
Management Programme, effective from | April 2014.

As depicted in Table 2 below, the bulk of the appropriated financial resources (78%) are allocated between Immovable
Asset Management (46%) and the EPWP (32%). These two programmes represent the major proportion of the

Department’'s mandate and deliverables.

Table 2: Budget Allocation per Programme Programmes

R*000 Allocation
as %
Programme |: Administration 1179272 19%
Programme 2: Immovable Asset Management 2 829 033 46%
Programme 3: Expanded Public Works programme | 946 480 32%
Programme 4: Property and Construction Industry Policy Regulations 34 336 1%
Programme 5: Auxiliary and Associated Services 132 199 2%
Total 6121 320 100%

A summary of the Department’s financial performance is provided in Tables 2, 3 and 4 below which reflect the overall

budget and expenditure as well as spending per economic classification.

Table 3: Overall Expenditure Analysis

2014/15 2013/14
Budget allocation R 6.121 billion R 6.175 billion
Actual Expenditure R 6.022 billion R 6.022 billion
Actual: Spent Budget % 98% 97%
Unspent funds R 99 million R 153 million
Actual: Unspent Budget % 2% 3%
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Departmental spending for the period under review was R6.022 billion that represented 98% of the adjusted budget of

Ré6.121 billion. The variance of R99 million is attributed to underspending on the Compensation of Employees, Goods

and Services and Buildings and other Fixed Structures.

Spending per programme and economic classification is discussed below:

Programme |: Administration

The underspending of R4.5 million in Programme | related to the following:

Compensation of Employees’ underspending of R3.7 million

o Due to vacant positions in the last quarter of the financial year.

Goods and Services under-spending of R340 000

o Invoices were received late and reported as accruals.

Transfers and Subsidies (for household) underspending of R436 000

o Due to lesser commitments for leave gratuities made in the financial year.

Programme 2: Immovable Asset Management

The underspending of R7 | million in Programme 2 related to payments for capital for buildings and other fixed structures

due to a delay in implementing infrastructure projects timeously. This resulted in payments being made late under PMTE

and not being recovered from the Department. The DPW engaged with National Treasury for the reallocation of these

funds to the PMTE, in line with the transfer of functions as funds have already been spent.

Programme 3: Expanded Public Works Programme

The underspending of R21 million in Programme 3 was mainly due to the following:

The Compensation of Employees underspending by RI7 million was due to vacant positions within EPVWP that
were only filled in the latter part of the financial year.

Goods and services were underspent by R2.8 million by the end of the financial year. Commitments and accruals
related to unspent funds were reported at the end of the financial year.

Transfers and subsidies were underspent by RI.2 million, and related to the transfer payments to Provinces for
the EPWP Integrated Incentive Grant. Funds were withheld for 2 Limpopo Provincial Departments due to non-
compliance to the Division of Revenue Act by the provinces. The approval for the withholding of funds was granted
by National Treasury.

Programme 4: Property and Construction Industry Policy Regulations

Underspending of R3 million in Programme 4 was due to the following:

Compensation of employees underspending of RI million was due to vacant positions within the Branch, with of the posts
only being filled in the latter part of the financial year.

Goods and services underspending of R12.7 million included an original Rl | million budget allocation to Agrément
SA which was subsequently paid from transfers and subsidies. The expenditure for Agrément SA under transfers and
subsidies was classified as irregular expenditure as the organisation was not a registered legal persona.

Transfers and subsidies over spending of R10.8 million were attributable to the payment made to Agrément South Africa.
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Programme 5: Auxiliary and Associated Services

Expenditure was 100% in this Programme. The figure below indicates the spending trends for the Programme.

Figure |: Spending Trends in Programme 5
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The bar chart above demonstrates that the monthly expenditure was, on average, R502 million with high spending of R1.1
billion occurring during May 2014 and low spending in April 2014. Expenditure for the months of May, August, October
and November 2014 and February 2015 was high as it included substantial transfers to the Department's Entities, the
EPWP Non-State Sector and the EPWP Incentive Grants to the provinces and the municipalities.

At the end of the year, the Department shifted funds between Sub-Programmes and per Economic Classification, in line
with the PFMA and the set threshold of 8% was not exceeded. The funds were utilised as per the Table below:




Table 6:Virement for 2014/15
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Prog. | Prog 2 Prog 3 Prog 4 Prog 5 Total

R°000 R°000 R°000 R°000 R°000
Compensation of employees - - (3 839) (3 839)
Goods and services (13 336) 13950 - (2010) 40 249 38 853
Transfers and subsidies - - - - -
Payments for capital assets 2031 (39 294) 976 - - (38 239)
Payments for financial assets - 3225 - - - -
Total (11 305) (22119) (4 815) (2010) 40 249 R3 225

The following virement of funds were applied:

: Programme | decreased by the net amount of RI | million resulting from the reduced goods and services (R13
million) to Programme 2, and additional R2 million from Programme 2 (781 000) and 3 (R976 000) to offset high

spending under machinery and equipment. Accruals were reported for funds not spent in this Programme, which

resulted from delays in receipt of the invoices and payments that could not be processed due to changes in the

banking details. The unspent funds were to be utilised as a virement in Programme 2.

: Programme 2 decreased by the net amount of R22 million resulting from he reallocation of R39 million from

payments for capital assets to goods and services in Programme 5 (R38.2 million). Additional funds received from

Programme | (RI3 million) and 3 (R3.8 million) offsetting high expenditure on goods and services and the write-

offs. The balance of the additional R781 000 from payments for capital assets was adjusted to Programme | to

offset high spending under the same Economic Classification. Approval for the adjustment of funds from payments

for Capital Assets (R38.2 million) to Goods and Services was granted by National Treasury. High expenditure on

Goods and Services related to increased expenditure under Travel and Subsistence and Maintenance and Repairs

for the infrastructure. Funds for Maintenance and Repairs were adjusted from payments for Capital Assets during

the adjustment estimates, and the actual expenditure was higher than the adjusted budget by R94 million, hence

the need for the virement at the end of the financial year with the funds from both Programmes | and 3.

: Programme 3 decreased by R4.8 million to both Programme | (R976 000) and 2 (R3.8 million) offsetting high

spending on Goods and Services, payments for Capital Assets and payments for Financial Assets. The virement of

funds to Programme 2 was made from underspending of Compensation of Employees relating to delay in filling of

the vacant positions and payments for Capital Assets to Programme |. Posts, not filled in the year under review, will
be filled during the 2015/16 financial year.

: Programme 4 decreased by R2 million as a virement to Programme 5 to offset over spending of Goods and Services

in Programme 5. The virement of funds in this Programme was made from Goods and Services resulting from lower

expenditure than initially projected under Travel and Subsistence and Outsourced Services.

: Programme 5 increased by R40.2 million through the virement of funds from both Programme 2 and 4 for Goods

and Services under State Function. Excessive expenditure on Goods and Services in this Programme relate to

unforeseen and unavoidable expenditure of the three (3) official State funerals during March 2015 - this was not

budgeted for. The three (3) official funerals were the two (2) reburials for Messrs |JB Marks and Moses Kotane,
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and the funeral of the late Minister of the Department of Public Service and Administration, Mr Collins Chabane.
As alluded to in the previous paragraph, the amount of R38.2 million was approved by National Treasury for the
adjustment of funds from payments for Capital Assets in Programme 2 and the balance of R2 million is proposed
for adjustment from Goods and Services in Programme 4. The approval for the adjustment of funds from payments

for Capital assets and Goods and Services was approved, in compliance to PFMA and Treasury Regulations.

In the current year, the Department incurred unauthorised expenditure of R5.5 million. The expenditure related to
Construction of Schools Projects implemented by the Department since 2010/1 | and now completed. The construction
of schools by the Department was in response to a Presidential call to eradicate mud schools in the country by 2014/15.
The Department constructed schools in the Eastern Cape and North West Provinces through the agency services of the
IDT using technologically-advanced alternative construction methodologies.

The Department's total cumulative unauthorised expenditure was R261.2 million. The cumulative impact due to
unauthorised expenditure from the 2007/08 financial year has negatively affected the Department’s cash flow. This
situation will continue until such time Parliament sanctions this unauthorized expenditure.. The Department has therefore
undertaken a process of consolidating all unauthorised expenditure to submit it to National Treasury for tabling in

Parliament for the consideration of possible appropriation.

In the previous financial year, the PMTE reported a substantial increase of irregular expenditure, detected as a result of
the review of historic transactions - going back more than five years. The contraventions detected were mainly due to
circumvention of existing controls in, especially, Supply Chain Management. As per the definition of Irregular Expenditure,
it is a reflection of costs incurred in contravention of prevailing prescripts or applicable legislative requirements and is
not necessarily indicative of the level of misuse of State resources, or fraud and corruption as it is often labelled. Those
transactions that were deemed to constitute possibly fraudulent activity have been referred to investigative authorities
to probe in further detail.

The main cause of irregular expenditure in the PMTE was the inappropriate SCM Framework prescribed for the Goods
and Services dispensation of Government that did not cater for the specialised needs of the PMTE. This has had a major
impact when it came to the acquisition of leased properties. The correction of this anomaly received priority attention
during the reporting period and therefore major strides were in consultation with the Office of Chief Procurement Officer
(OCPO), of the National Treasury to finalise a specialised Leases Procurement Dispensation. This new dispensation is
anticipated to be implemented as a priority in the coming financial years, in consultation with all relevant stakeholders.

Whilst the investigation of the past transactions has continued, it is equally important to ensure that preventative measures
were put in place to enforce strictly all existing internal controls on all new business transactions. This has been very
successful as can be seen from the results achieved. With the exception of the carry through effect of contracts which
were entered into in prior years, irregular expenditure incurred as a result of new contracts and procurement has declined
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sharply to R7.8 million compared to RI'I5 million in the previous financial year for the Department's Main Account. The
total disclosure for PMTE has similarly declined from Ré billion in 2013/ 14 to R1.23 billion in the current year. Of this
amount, only R60 million was identified as a result of irregular expenditure that originated in the current year. The balance

of RI.17 billion is due to the carry through transactional costs incurred in prior periods.

Given that a significant number of irregular expenditure transactions have been as a result of non-compliance with
SCM prescripts, the Inspectorate and Compliance Unit. in the Office of the CFO was charged with the responsibility of
reviewing all quotations and Bid Documents before service providers could be appointed. It must be noted however,
that, given the history of the Department there were certain transactions that were unavoidable to transact in the current
operational dispensation. Transfer payments made to Agrément SA (ASA), is an example in point. Transfer payments
made to ASA (which is a service delivery arm of the Department), are regarded as being irregular. This could not be
avoided by the Department through any short term interventions. Approval could not be obtained from National
Treasury for these payments due to the fact that this institution has not been formally established as a legal persona.
The Department has, in the meantime, taken appropriate steps to correct this by means of draft legislation that is under
consideration by Parliament.

The Guidelines on the Management of Irregular Expenditure provide that the Accounting Officer should consider the
investigation results of transactions that have been classified as irregular and take appropriate steps in each case. The
Accounting Officer may also, with due consideration of the recommendations of the independent investigative bodies,
consider the condonation of particular transactions which were entered into, but served the best interest of the State at
the time.

In order to comply with the above, the Department established an independent National Condonation Committee
(NCC) comprising senior officials who consider the reports of regional investigations where irregular expenditure
occurred. This Committee is supported by regional Technical Advisory Committees (TACs) that were established in
all offices where the Department operates. The TACs constitute the first level of evaluation of investigation reports and
make appropriate recommendations to the NCC. Whilst regional TACs will only make recommendations, the NCC
has authority to conclude on matters within its formally delegated authority. In all other cases, the NCC only makes

recommendations to the Accounting Officer or the National Treasury where such authority remains vested in them.

In the 2014/15 financial year, investigations that covered transactions to the value of R3.4 billion were considered.
Transactions, to the value of R3.3 billion were concluded by means of condonations granted while transactions to the
value of R5.8 million were investigated and concluded by the Special Investigations Unit. The relevant disclosure notes for
both the Main Account and the PMTE were updated accordingly.

The Main account incurred fruitless and wasteful expenditure in the amount of R1.28 million in the current year. R1.27
million of this amount was in respect of legal fees incurred and a settlement paid due to the appointment of an official
found not to be in line with prescribed due processes. The implicated employees were issued with final warning letters

after a disciplinary hearing.
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The PMTE implemented a Debt Recovery Strategy during the year to improve debt recovery. The strategy consisted
of issuing of letters of demand where applicable, holding meetings with clients and soliciting the support of the National
Treasury. Previous attempts to reduce the debt did not yield the desired outcome due to historical problems that go
back many years and continued to affect the Department. These historical challenges included, the lack of supporting
documentation, the inability to confirm actual occupation of accommodation by User Departments, payments made that

were not always in line with Lease Agreements, and current budget constraints experienced by User Departments.

The roll-out of this Strategy was preceded by the reconstruction of the Debtor's Book and engagements with User
Departments and the National Treasury on the content. This reconstruction of the Debtor’s Book will continue into the

2015/16 financial year and will eventually inform any decision to pursue recovery or write off in the future.

In the meantime the PMTE is engaging User Departments to sign revised Service Level Agreements (SLA) to implement
advanced billing. This is planned to be fully implemented in the 2016/17 financial year, in line with key finance modelling
principles of the revised Operating Model of the PMTE. The PMTE will also engage National Treasury for in-principle
support to implement the levying of interest on overdue accounts.

The sources of revenue for PMTE are Accommodation Charges, Management Fees, and Private Leases. This funding
model is not viable for the sustainability of PMTE as it continues to rely on the fiscus and does not fully recover the cost
of services rendered. The current model, that primarily focuses on reimbursement of cost, incurred on behalf of Client
Departments only, places a financial burden on the PMTE as clients delay payments or even fail to settle outstanding debts

which then result in impairments or write - offs.

The PMTE has therefore committed to enhance the current business model regarding improved revenue generation and
collection over the medium term. To utilise optimally the existing asset portfolio for either service delivery or revenue
generation, it is important to create new revenue streams wherever possible by mobilising State owned properties which
currently do not meet, at least, one of these criteria. It was therefore decided to pursue this objective in distinct phases

that will target particular improvements

In the 2015/16 financial year the PMTE will:

: Implement the Billing and Accounting system that has been acquired and customised to facilitate GRAP reporting
requirements. This system will henceforth also be linked to an ERP database managing all key functional operations
of the PMTE such as the Immovable Asset Register, leases management, projects under construction, etc.

: Maximise the use of unutilised and underutilised state properties by leasing it out to the private sector where
possible. It is the intention to partner with Real Estate Agents and other property professionals to meet this

objective given the internal capacity constrains being experienced in the interim.
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1.5 FUTURE PLANS OF THE DEPARTMENT

The Department participated in a PPP for the provision of Fleet Management Services through the National Department
of Transport. The PPP provides full maintenance lease vehicles as per Departmental requirements. This contract came
to an end in November 2014. The Department of Transport, in conjunction with the National Treasury, decided to

extend it on a month—to-month basis, for a period not exceeding twelve months, until a new contract is concluded.

The current operating PMTE model gives rise to a revolving overdraft of at least R430 million per month. This is mainly
caused by the timing delay between the payment of third party contractual obligations and the eventual recovery of
those amounts from User Departments. The process that was followed to recover monies relating to private leases,
municipal services, user infrastructure spending (capital allocation) and other recoverable infrastructure projects gave

rise to a 60 to 90 day delay with regard to the matching of the initial payment and the eventual recovery.

In essence, this model provided interest free short-term bridging finance to User Departments for the full recovery
period. As there are no other significant revenue sources that can augment the cash flow requirements of the PMTE,

this contributed significantly to the overdrawn bank account of the trading entity.

The mentioned financial exposure emanating from the PMTE's recovery model will be addressed as follows:

© Signing of revised Service Level Agreements (SLA) with user departments to enforce advanced billing, and thereby
committing users to the payment of all liabilities (rental, utilities costs, etc.).

: The support from National Treasury will be obtained to cement this proposal. Advanced billing for contractual
obligations should not be regarded as pre-payments which may put the Exchequer at risk, but rather an advance
to secure continued occupation that will be reconciled and acknowledged, on a monthly basis.

: Timeous resolution of all disputed amounts. The historic debts which are still outstanding due to disputes with
users, directly contribute to the PMTE's inability to completely eradicate its bank overdraft. It is therefore in the

best interest of all parties to find an amicable solution to this impasse.

The proposed revised recovery process will create a framework whereby third party payments and cost recoveries can
be better matched, from a timing perspective, without any additional costs to any of the parties.

To determine accurately the funding needs of the new operating model of the PMTE, a detailed finance model needs to
be developed to support the operational enhancements that are planned for implementation. Such model should also
guide the financial efficiency of the trading entity in the medium term to a position where it can model different options
on how to achieve financial sustainability.
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The PMTE, currently, has three major streams of revenue, namely:

: Accommodation charges levied on state-owned accommodation;

. Reimbursement of accommodation charges for properties leased in from the private sector; and
: Management fees levied for the administration of user departments” municipal accounts.

These revenue streams are augmented annually by an amount received from National Treasury. This augmentation is,
however, only a temporary grant to be applied as bridging finance for the operationalization of PMTE and will lapse
when the entity can assume the responsibility to fund its operational obligations.

The finance model needs to cater for all operating and capital requirements of the PMTE in the medium term. In this
regard, the services rendered by PMTE to clients need to be assessed and proper charges levied on them. At the same
time that all potential revenue streams should be noted in order to align them in support of strategic objectives, such as
incentivising the use of Government owned buildings rather than to rent privately owned accommodation, at exorbitant
prices. The detailed design of this model will be consulted with the National Treasury, as the funding needs of the PMTE
will also impact on the budgets of other Departments, as the primary clients of the PMTE.

The anticipated impact on the budgets of User Departments will be as a result of the switch from the devolved budget
dispensation to detailed billing which will, inter alia, be based on the actual floor space occupied, the condition of the
building etc. Currently, charges levied for State-owned accommodation is simply based on the budget amount originally
devolved to User Departments in 2006. It is also based on the old asset register (occupation) information which
prevailed at that time.

This information has now been substituted with current occupation details that was collated during the latest physical
verification of State-owned assets and will become the primary data on which to base user billing. All such asset
information will therefore also need to directly feed into the finance model to determine the optimal economic and
social funding solution for the entity, based on an aligned asset base.

In determining a proposed pricing structure, the entity will have to link annual expenditure forecasts of PMTE'’s
new operating model to potential revenue streams and sources. This will, inter alia, have to consider the cost of
operations, the capital investment needed to improve the current condition of its assets, as well as the other facilities
management expenses associated with the management of such an extensive property portfolio. To effectively
service the needs of clients, this model will also have to align with the accommodation needs of users based on the
content of their user asset management plans. These plans will direct the optimum level and condition of stock to
be maintained, for the PMTE to deliver on its mandate. The ultimate objective is to have a portfolio that meets all
accommodation demands at affordable Government tariffs, whilst at the same time, making it possible for the PMTE
to be financially sustainable.

The Department and the PMTE are using the SCM unit on the basis of a shared service. This will change when Own
Support Services are implemented for the revised operating model of the PMTE. In the enhanced business delivery
model the SCM unit will be a key component of the PMTE whilst only a core competency will remain in the main

account for the acquisition of general goods and services.




Department of Public Works

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

In support of this important transformational requirement, the Department analysed key SCM efficiency indicators. The
findings have informed extensive business process re-engineering to improve the SCM operations and procurement
systems. This merely represents a first step in the adoption of a revised business model to put SCM on a seven
year reform path which will align with the transformation milestones of the Department and PMTE. Key milestones
of this model will focus on the correction of inefficiencies, the stabilization of operational support and ultimately the
standardization, integration and optimization of the SCM business process. This will pave the way to ensure that
the entire Public Works sector’'s SCM functions are fully geared to meet its business requirements better, and more
importantly, also promote efficiency gains throughout the sector.

As the Department's core business is the provision of office accommodation to other National Departments, through
either leasing or construction to meet their accommodation requirements, the Department’s key reform outcome
for the reporting period was the design of customised SCM processes for both acquisition through leasing or through
construction. In this regard, the Department has been working closely with the National Treasury's Chief Procurement
Office as the project lead in Government's SCM reform. These processes/initiatives have been concluded and a
customised Leasing Framework has been proposed, whilst work is underway to finalise the customised SCM Framework
for Infrastructure Projects.

For the year under review the Department has not concluded any unsolicited bid proposals.

As part of the SCM’s Stabilization Phase, the successful reengineering of SCM business processes were completed together
with the eradication of internal control weaknesses that, historically, gave rise to inordinate levels of irregular expenditure.
This was further augmented by a SCM policy update that eliminated any potential ambiguity in the interpretation of SCM
practices. SCM is now uniformly implemented across the Department and this has, indeed, contributed positively towards
the prevention of new cases of irregular expenditure.

To deal with standardisation across regions, SCM has also institutionalised an SCM Forum where all SCM managers from the
regions are able to raise challenges and identify areas of concern that may impact on their operations. At this forum decisive
decisions are taken to resolve potential problems, prior to occurring, and thus preventing potential irregular expenditure.

In order to arrest the challenges of irregular expenditure arising within the leasing environment where the prescribed
National Treasury SCM prescripts do not provide optimal solutions, the Department has identified the need for a specialised
Leasing Policy Framework. This new framework for leasing was developed in conjunction with the National Treasury’s Office
of the Chief Procurement Officer (OCPQO) and will be piloted in the current year. It is intended to eventually have this Policy
Framework implemented across the entire Public Works sector.

The proposed approach entails a move away from an open tender process for each lease and to manage leases through
the use of select panels of service providers appointed through an open competitive tendering process. Given the
relative inflexibility of accommodation already occupied and the unique market circumstances prevailing within the leases
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environment, it was considered not to be in the best interest of Government to always go out to the market to choose
the cheapest offered lease. When fully implemented, this new Leases Policy Framework will significantly contribute to the

prevention of irregular expenditure whilst also promoting efficiencies in daily operations.

The main challenge remains the finalisation of the Department’s proposed structure. This has impacted on the postponement
of the establishment of the Demand Management Unit. This will be resolved when the new SCM structure is approved
as institutionalisation of the IDIP and the IDMS, within the Demand Management Unit is considered a priority, to ensure

enhanced infrastructure delivery.

Notwithstanding the above, there has been a successful drive, in the interim, to apply the existing structure to its maximum,
whilst also utilizing the services of contract workers and interns to bolster the operations within SCM. This has, to a certain

extent, ameliorated the hitherto inordinate work overloads of staff that was in place.

An appropriate step to strengthen the Document Management System, which has been challenging over the years, has been
taken. The Department is presently rolling out a new File Plan which will ensure that a more robust system is in place to
manage documentation, necessary to promote integrity of auditable information.

As a designated pilot site for procurement reform, the Department is exploring a switch to a Batch Tendering System for
delivering of infrastructure. This switch will align to Government’s IDMS which is a system that delivers capital works and
maintenance. The batch tendering process will see the grouping of tenders during their different phases of procurement in
a financial year. The adverts for tenders and their closing periods will be consolidated during a particular quarter, after which
the evaluation of tenders will take place in the next quarter, and thereafter all tenders will be awarded during the last quarter

for construction to commence in the next financial year.

This process will ensure that funds committed will be expended as planned. Client Departments will be able to plan better
for infrastructure requirements and the industry will be better positioned to respond to tenders. Infrastructure delivery will
therefore align to Client Departments’ budget allocations and this will promote fiscal prudence and alleviate the challenge of

consistent under-expenditure and the return of funds to the National Treasury.

Recognizing the challenges of managing the Prestige Portfolio, due to its peculiar operational and security implications,
changes were implemented to eradicate unnecessary delays in response times to operational demands. The Department has
embarked on a process of implementing a number of term contracts for different categories of items, identified as common

or unique to Prestige.

These term contracts will operate on the same principles as National Treasury's transversal contracts. This will allow for
the direct placement of orders with pre-selected/shortlisted service providers to alleviate the problem of extended

procurement lead times and delivery.
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The DPW has commenced with the development and implementation of a Framework and Reviewed Process Design for
Specifications. This Framework and related process design will see considerable improvements in support of operational
efficiency and in particular the turnaround times for the delivery on stated needs. The following improvements will be
incorporated into the Framework:

© Standard specifications will be developed and maintained, for those commodity types that appear in the annual
procurement plan. The result is that suppliers get clear specifications and DPWV, in turn gets the required quality
of goods and services. The other benefit to DPW will be that, once a catalogue of standard specifications have
been developed, the specifications will be standardised and can be re-used by business, thereby cutting down on
the time it takes to procure goods and services.

. Independent and objective Bid Specifications Committee’s (BSCs) will be established that will be responsible for
the development and, thereafter, maintenance of standard specifications;

: For all regional procurement the appropriate specifications will be selected from the standards drafted by Head
Office. Where amendments are required, these amendments will be drafted in regions and presented to the
central BSC for approval. These may be incorporated into the standard specification templates, if appropriate;

: SCM will be responsible to monitoring the availability of standard specifications, the development or selection of
specifications and for the monitoring of compliance to the specified standard operating procedures.

The Department received the following donations or gifts from non-related parties in the year under review.

Table 7: Donations or gifts received

The donations or gifts received Rand value ‘R000
41 Laptops. R410
Transportation of officials attending a funeral. R9
Accessories for the sports tournament. R35

¢ Billing of State-Owned Accommodation

As reported in the previous financial year, the PMTE has historically been billing Client Departments on the basis of
budgets devolved to them in 2006 which have been escalated at a rate agreed to by National Treasury. This was
contrary to sound accounting practice where details of accommodation occupied should ideally be disclosed to

clients in order for them to verify the correctness of all information before making payments.

Because the PMTE did not have a billing and accounting system in place to make this possible, the National
Treasury granted exemption for the introduction of detailed billing to clients which exemption would be in force
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up to 31 March 2014. Due to technical delays experienced with the customisation of the software for the billing
and accounting system, the mentioned implementation date could not be achieved. National Treasury therefore
considered the progress made and the prevailing circumstances and extended the initial approval of this deviation
until 31 March 2015. The mentioned customisation is now proceeding according to plan and will be implemented
in time for the next reporting period.

e Special dispensation on procurement of leasing

During the previous reporting period the National Treasury granted exemption for the PMTE not to go out on
open tender for the renewal of certain leases that had expired. This was done on the grounds of the best interest
of the State where the cheapest rates, resulting from a bidding process would not take into account a range of

secondary or indirect costs associated with a relocation of clients.

Acknowledgement of the continuation of this reality also supported the development of a specialised procurement
dispensation, in consultation with the OCPO of the National Treasury, as reported on under the heading “SCM
processes and systems to prevent irregular expenditure” As this new dispensation has not yet been approved and
was not fully functional, it was necessary to extend the special dispensation granted, in the previous financial year, in
order not to impact negatively on lease agreements which had also expired in the meantime. The National Treasury,
therefore granted approval to extend this dispensation to a further 1608 leases during this reporting period. The

conditions for this extended dispensation are fundamentally the same as for the initial deviation granted

In conclusion, the Department will be moving into the Second Phase of the Turnaround, i.e. the Efficiency
Enhancement Phase (2015/16 to 2017/18), to fast track efficiencies within the PMTE and the Department. In this
Phase, seven (7) key areas have been identified as the major drivers of Phase 2, and include:

° Service Delivery Model;

‘ Fraud and corruption eradication;

‘ Change management;

‘ Organisational structure review and implementation;

© SCM model;
: Clean audit - Finance stability; and
: ICT.

Projects will be funded from funding mechanisms within the PMTE for a period of three (3) years. The bulk
of the projects are specific to areas within the PMTE where improvement in service delivery is critical to the
overall Turnaround Strategy. The preparation of an Efficiency Enhancement Business Case and the comprehensive
Turnaround Plan is currently being prepared. The Department will continue to rebuild a credible Asset Register,
resuscitate workshops, meet the needs of Client Departments and manage the Prestige Portfolio and put appropriate
measures into place to manage State accommodation. All these will be managed in a manner that allows for the
transition towards sustainability and the growth of the Department.
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To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed throughout the Annual Report are consistent.
The Annual Report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the Guidelines on the Annual Report as issued by National
Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Chapter 5) have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard and
the relevant Frameworks and Guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements and for the judgements
made in this information.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control that has been
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human
resources information and the Annual Financial Statements.

The External Auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.

In my opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources
information and the financial affairs of the Department for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

Yours faithfully

=

"

Mr Mziwonke Dlabantu

Director-General
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A service oriented Public Works Department delivering value and contributing to the National agenda for social and
economic development.

Mission

Our vision will be achieved through our mission of driving a professional, innovative and integrated Department by:

: Providing quality accommodation and related services to our clients;

: Efficiently and effectively managing the immovable assets in our custodianship;

: Actively contributing to the national goals of job creation and poverty alleviation through the Expanded Public
Works Programme;

: Providing expert built-environment advice to our stakeholders; and

. Providing strategic leadership to the South African Construction and Property industries

Values

Our mission is underpinned by the following values:

: Integrity — Consistently honouring our commitments, upholding ethical behaviour and transparent communication.

: Professionalism — Treating our stakeholders with respect and reliably delivering against expectations.

: Teamwork — Respecting diversity while sharing a common purpose and working effectively across the entire
Department.

: Innovation — Tirelessly seeking opportunities for service delivery improvement.

Strategic goals

In executing its mandate, the Department identified five strategic outcome-orientated goals that define its direct service
delivery responsibilities. These strategic goals, as set out in the Strategic Plan, which are linked to the mission, are:

Strategic Goal I: An efficient, competitive and responsive accommodation infrastructure Network.

Strategic Goal 2: Strategic leadership and regulation of the construction and property sectors to promote

economic empowerment and skills development.
Strategic Goal 3: Good corporate governance to support effective and efficient service delivery.
Strategic Goal 4: Decent employment through inclusive economic growth.

Strategic Goal 5: Contribute towards comprehensive rural development.
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Constitutional Mandate

The Constitutional Mandate for the Department is provided in Schedule 4, Part 4, of the Constitution of the Republic of
South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996) [Constitution] which makes reference to “Functional Areas of Concurrent National
and Provincial Legislative Competence.” In executing its mandate, the Department also has to observe the principles of good

cooperative governance and intergovernmental relations, as provided for in Section 41 of the Constitution.
Legislative Mandates

The Legislative Mandates of the Department are underpinned by the following Acts:

The Government Immovable Asset Management Act, 2007 (Act No. 19 of 2007), aims to ensure competent
immovable asset management in National and Provincial Government in order to improve service delivery;

The Construction Industry Development Board Act, 2000 (Act No. 38 of 2000), provides for the establishment
of the Construction Industry Development Board (cidb), for the implementation of an integrated strategy for the
reconstruction, growth and development of the construction industry and other matters connected thereto;

The Council for the Built Environment Act, 2000 (Act No. 43 of 2000) makes provision for the establishment of a
juristic person known as the Council for the Built Environment, the composition, functions, powers, assets, rights,
duties and financing of that Council and for matters connected thereto;

The Professional Council Acts regulate the six Built Environment Professions (BEPs) to organise the built environment
professions to serve the imperatives of Government, including transformation, public protection, good governance,
etc,;

The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. | of 1999) promotes the objective of good financial management
to maximise service delivery through the proficient use of the limited resources; and

Other Acts listed in Annexure A.

Policy Mandates

The Department’s policy mandates pertain to the following:

Department White Paper: Public Works, Towards the 21st Century (1997) [White Paper(1997)]

Department White Paper: Creating an Enabling Environment for Reconstruction, Growth and Development in the
Construction Industry, 1999 [White Paper (1999)]

Construction Sector Transformation Charter, 2006 (Charter 2006):

Property Sector Transformation Charter, 2007 (Charter 2007)

Department Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment Strategy, 2006

Property Management Strategy on BBBEE, Job Creation and Poverty Alleviation, 2007 (PMS BBBEE 2007):

Green Building Framework, 2001.
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The PMTE’s Mandate

By virtue of the devolution of the roles and responsibilities from the Department to the PMTE, the PMTE's mandate is,
as a consequence, shaped by the legislative and other mandates which direct the Department’s functions, as are detailed

in Section 1.6 above.
Vision

The vision articulated for the PMTE was to ring-fence, better manage, maintain and optimally utilise the massive State
Property Portfolio to build value and to bring savings to the State, as well as other socio-economic benefits, particularly

job creation and empowerment, whilst improving service to Client Departments.
Focus areas for the PMTE

The key focus areas that have been identified for the PMTE are:

: Reducing the cost of doing business and the optimisation of state assets that fall under the custodianship of the
Minister;

: Decreasing the number of leased-in properties depending on the availability and appropriateness of current and new
State stock which will address user-needs. This will also be informed by the respective contracting arrangements;

: Prioritising the development of functional assets as opposed to assets to be used as residences or offices;

: Shifting the responsibility for conducting basic maintenance to the client departments while the PMTE will focus on
capital injection to refurbish buildings to extend their life and use. The PMTE will, through the reactivation of the
Facilities Management Services Centre (Workshops Project), continue to provide basic maintenance services only
to specific users and pilot projects; and

: Facilitating procurement engagements and conducting aggregation of potential suppliers, based on User-Department’s
basic facilities management needs.

PMTE Progress and Achievements
Ministerial Commitments / Budget Vote

In the 2014 Budget Vote, the Minister outlined achievements attained in stabilising the Department and he identified the
operationalisation of the PMTE as one of the his five key priorities for the period of this Administration (2014-2019) and
the Efficiency Enhancement phase of the Turnaround. To this extent the following priorities were articulated for 2014/15

and their current status is as follows:
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PRIORITY

STATUS

At a strategic level, to advertise and head-hunt property
professionals from the private sector to be employed on
performance based contracts.

Top Tier Job Descriptions and remuneration benchmarking were
conducted

Consultations with Labour in process

An Acting Head of the PMTE and key property management
specialists were appointed as a transitional arrangement to drive
the operationalization of the PMTE.

To consolidate the improvements in the lease environment.

As at April 2015, 1455 (92%) out of 1566 leases were renewed
with a fixed 5.5% escalation rate resulting in an estimated annual
saving of R33 million or an estimated 3 year saving of R99 million.

To improve the maintenance and security of state assets through
the National Infrastructure Maintenance Strategy (NIMS), to
establish best practice and norms and standards for maintenance
of state assets.

Maintenance standards, guidelines, and accounting framework
were developed and is currently going through approval process
Anticipated finalization by 2nd quarter (July 2015).

To progressively reduce leasing-in, in favour of rehabilitating our
own stock for occupation by Government. (Currently 2,700
buildings are leased-in at a cost of R3.2 billion).

To work with emerging black estate agents to market our

The PMTE 5 Year Strategy & Annual Performance Plan for
2015/16 was developed and articulates clear targets on each of
these issues. Both these Plans have been tabled in Parliament
Engagement with the private sector, inter alia JCCI (Property

unutilized stock and to manage the leases. Developers Cluster) has commenced to examine opportunities

and develop engagement frameworks
To seek public-public partnerships with other entities already

working in the property management space to develop state
assets.

As the PMTE account constitutes approximately 75% of the work and budget of Department and represents the largest property
portfolio in South Africa, it is clear, that the successful operationalisation of the PMTE has necessitated a fundamental shift in
the way we do business. In this regard, an interdisciplinary approach has been adopted in the development of the new PMTE
5-Year Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan, where greater synergies now exist between the Department’s traditional
property and asset management functions. Projecting demand, by establishing client needs over the planning period is at the
centre of the new PMTE Strategy and plans. The Department has found it difficuft to manage this area of work and a new “hands-
on” approach in demand management has been adopted. This will ensure effective delivery on the Public VWorks' mandate of
accommodation provision to Government and of acting as the custodian for the State’s immovable assets that fall under the
Minister's custodianship.

Operationalization of PMTE

The following aspects were achieved during the reporting period, in line with the 2006 National Treasury approval:

. An Acting Head of the PMTE and key Property Management Specialists have been appointed, as a transitional arrangement,
to drive the full operationalization of the PMTE;

. The functions and immovable assets have been transferred from the Department to the PMTE;

: The Draft PMTE structure is being developed with DPSA and the recruitment of the PMTE executive management on
Performance based contracts, is under way pending approval; — please check.

: The PMTE budget Programme Structure was developed with National Treasury and accordingly approved;

. The PMTE's Five-Year Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan have been developed in consultation with DPME,
National Treasury, DPSA and the OPSC and were tabled in Parliament in March 2015;

. GRAP compliant financial management systems and controls were developed and implemented and GRAP compliant
Accounting & Itemised billing system has been procured

Page 60
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: PMTE Account maintained a qualified opinion with reduced findings. The PMTE business model has been revised to
address the AG's issues. The PMTE business model has been revised to address the AG's issues;

. A Business Case for establishing the PMTE as a Government Component, has been developed and was endorsed by
Cabinet in August 2014;

. The review of 2,162 office leases was completed and physical verification of the occupancy and size was carried out on
2,143 leased buildings. National Treasury approved the Department's dispensation on the Renewal for Leases, that have
expired;

. As at April 2015, 1455 (92%) out of 1566 leases have been renewed with a fixed 5.5% escalation rate resulting in an
estimated annual saving of R33 million or an estimated 3 year saving of R99 million.

. [ 12 "unoccupied but paid for” leased properties have been investigated, 41 cases have been resolved and 71 handed over
to the Special Investigation Unit (SIU) for forensic investigation. Of the 29 “Occupied by other but paid for" properties, 6
have been resolved and the remainder referred for forensic investigation.

The PMTPFE’s Operating Model

Problem statement

The State’s property portfolio has been underutilised and neglected, leaving numerous properties vacant, and susceptible to theft,
vandalism, vagrants and illegal occupation. The condition of some buildings is still poor and, in many cases, does not enable its
User Departments to fulfil their service delivery mandates. This has led to a disproportionate use of leased-in accommodation,

thus leading to excessive costs to the State.

The PMTE is however, still faced with the challenge of attracting and retaining the skills necessary to professionalise our property
business and also to address the high infrastructure backlog and the inability to deliver within time, cost and quality. This has been
exacerbated by insufficient professional capacity and skills.

Rationale for the creation of the PMTE

The creation of the PMTE was mainly due to the need to separate the Regulatory and Policy, quality norms and standard setting
and monitoring functions of the Department from the service delivery functions of the PMTE. The PMTE, which now holds
approximately 75% of the functions and budget of the Department, will undertake the Immovable Asset Management functions
across the asset lifecycles, to ensure that optimal value for money is gained, as will be reflected in a better rate of return on
investment in the public estate and which will be closer to market-related value. The PMTE will be a client-centric and revenue-

focused entity that will ensure lower service delivery costs while ensuring sustainability and growth.

Central to the modus operandi for the PMTE s, good governance, a ring-fenced budget, a professionally managed and an
optimally utilised State Property Portfolio which will build value and a bring savings to the State.

The PMTE Model

While the PMTE was anticipated to adopt a best practice approach to conducting its business, it is important to note that a State
Property Management Entity has different priorities to its private sector equivalent, as its ethos must go beyond just business
efficiency to achieve maximum profit. A State entity must, of necessity, use the State Property Portfolio to catalyse integrated
urban development, to assimilate the labour-intensive approaches in the maintenance of the portfolio and to actively pursue
green retro-fitting and accessibility. Emanating from the formation of the PMTE, it was therefore anticipated that other socio-

economic benefits will accrue, including job creation, empowerment and improved service to user departments.
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In order to achieve optimum outcomes in the provision of accommodation and managing the State asset life cycle, an
interdisciplinary approach, where greater synergies exist between the Department’s traditional property and asset management
functions, have been adopted. The core business of the PMTE consists of three focussed operational divisions, with two interlinking

special service divisions that will collectively realise its asset management goals, as is illustrated below.

As illustrated below, the three core business divisions in the PMTE are Real Estate Investment Management, Real Estate
Management, and Facilities Management. Real Estate Information & Registry Services and Construction Project Management
will function as two independent divisions interlinked with Real Estate Investment Management. These operational divisions
have been established to support optimal business and administrative processes which will ensure professional methodologies in
managing and optimising the State’s asset portfolio.

Illustration 2: Business divisions of the PMTE

REAL ESTATE CONSTRUCTION
INFORMATION & ﬁ ﬁ PROJECT
REGISTRY MANAGEMENT

Focussed operational divisions for the PMTE

Projecting demand by establishing client needs over the planning period is at the centre of the PMTE Strategy and as a result
the new “hands-on” approach in developing User Asset Management Plans (U-AMP) has been adopted by the PMTE. In this
regard, once completed, the Real Estate Asset Register will be utilized to support the processes to align the accommodation
owned by the State, establishing client needs, predicting demand and then providing accommodation that is fit for purpose. As
per the newly developed Business Model, priority has been given to establishing a robust Client Liaison and Servicing Model
with a client-centric approach where expert teams will provide onsite technical support to client Departments primarily to
streamline the U-AMP/C-AMP processes.

From an asset investment perspective, the broader property market and the performance of the PMTE portfolio will continually

be analysed, with the view to maintaining and enhancing value and leveraging this for economic development and job creation.

The steps for the successful operationalisation of the PMTE are to be undertaken in three (3) phases. It is noted that during

the Stabilization and Transitional Phases, the PMTE will account to the Director-General and then to the Minister during the
Sustainability and Growth Phases.
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2.1 OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL
PERFORMANCE

The Department exists in a construction and property environment. External factors such as input costs for construction
materials, labour unrest related to wage pay, anti-competitive practices, exchange and interest rates fluctuations, property
rates and transformational issues. These factors shape the approach to how the Department conducts its business with
other Government Departments, entities, stakeholders and suppliers, in relation to its core mandate, i.e. construction and
property. Changes to these factors, driven and influenced by economic, social or political factors tend to affect the nature
of the Department’s core business. This is evidenced by market rental changes due to forces of demand and supply in
the property sector which have an impact on the determination of rental space (occupancy rate) and the cost per square
meter, when compared to the need for accommodation for Client Departments.

Additionally, anti-competitive practices including collusion and bid rigging in the construction arena of the built-
environment, such as the example which occurred during the construction of stadia for the 2010 World Cup, allow
for robust engagement in determining Regulatory and Policy initiatives to avert such practices. Further, anti-competitive
practices tend to disturb the markets and erode any empowerment initiatives by Government.

The built environment is a highly professionalised environment and therefore requires skilled expertise in construction,
architectural work and quantity surveying. These skills are scarce and are therefore expensive. The cost of professional
services and consultancy also has an impact on the appointment of professionals to complement the Departmental
capacity. All these factors have an impact on the Programmes of the Department, particularly those that require expertise
in Project Design, Spatial Planning and Project Management.

The core Programmes of the Department are located in Programmes 2, 3 and 4. Programme 2 deals with the Immovable
Asset Management including Projects; Programme 3 is positioned to undertake the EPWP while Property and Construction
Industry Policy Regulation reside in Programme 4. These Programmes also have to meet certain socio-economic aspects
such as contribution to alleviating poverty, the creation of employment, addressing inequality and transformation through
regulation and empowerment. Given the current situation in the country, these socio-economic aspects are at the centre
of nation building. In this regard, the EPWP plays an important role in ensuring that these socio-economic aspects are met
through the creation of work opportunities in the construction and facilities management sectors.

The Programmes have been structured to respond to the external environmental factors, as well as to Phase | of the
Turnaround Strategy. One of the critical issues identified in the Turnaround Strategy was the development of the Service

Delivery Model in the Key Accounts Management Sub-Programme, Projects and Facilities Management
Organisational Environment

The 2013/14 financial year saw stabilisation in the leadership and management levels, improved policies and procedures,
enhanced governance structures, the determination of ITC requirements and improved financial and internal controls. The
period under review saw further improvements to Phase | and, already, some of the Phase 2 initiatives are in progress.

One of the fundamental initiatives of the Department has been the finalisation of the organisational structure; however,




Department of Public Works

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

some operations could not be carried out owing to high vacancy rates. Given the evolving nature of the Department'’s
core business and the urgent need to respond to the ever-changing market demand and supply forces, as well as
regulatory issues, the structure had to be revisited to give effect to these changes. In areas where additional capacity was
needed, arrangements were made to improve operations. This also included upscaling the internships and learnerships

with the aim of absorbing them in the Department.

The inability to deliver fully on the core mandate of the Department may have also been a result of inadequate and disjointed
business process model. The Efficiency Enhancement or Phase 2 of the Turnaround Strategy, which is incrementally
being implemented, will bring about a more efficient and operative business process model for the Department. This
will assist in those instances where a number of Client Departments have shown dissatisfaction in the provision of
State accommodation, incomplete and prolonged completion of infrastructural projects and ITC reporting mechanism
in the EPVWP space. These areas are now being addressed. For example, the application of the Infrastructure Delivery
Management System (IDMS) will now provide best practice in structuring the value chain of delivering infrastructure

projects. This will entail a structured interaction of the delivering units in a seamless approach.
Service Delivery Improvement Plan (SDIP)

The Department commenced with the development of the Service Delivery Improvement programme during the
year and has set stringent targets for service delivery improvement over the medium term. The areas initially selected
for improvement are construction management and leasing-in. The development of the SDIP will be followed by
the development of Service Delivery and Business Operating Models for all key services of the department. These
developments are a response to challenges faced by the department in the delivery of quality services. This has been
affected by an inability in most cases to map services provided to ensure effective and efficient delivery; the non-existence
of service delivery models putting forward on how the department will address its mandate, and a lack of standard
operating procedures in the Department. The Service Delivery Improvement Process, initiated during the course of the
year, under review, addresses these deficiencies and institutionalizes service delivery improvement to ensure that it was
sustainable and continuous. The full implementation of the SDIP through a life cycle management process, as proposed
by DPSA, will therefore enable the Department to be more efficient and responsive to User Departments’ needs, and
reduce opportunities for corruption and wasteful and fruitless expenditure, and with clear lines of responsibility and
accountability. The Department commenced with the development of the Service Delivery Improvement Programme
during the year and has set stringent targets for service delivery improvement over the medium term. The areas initially
selected for improvement have been construction management and leasing-in. The development of the SDIP will be
followed by the development of Service Delivery and Business Operating Models for all key services of the Department.
These developments are a response to challenges faced by the Department in the delivery of quality services. This has
been affected by an inability in most cases to map services provided to ensure effective and efficient delivery; the non-
existence of service delivery models which indicate how the Department will address its mandate and a lack of standard
operating procedures in the Department. The Service Delivery Improvement Process, initiated during the year addressed

these deficiencies and institutionalised service delivery improvement to ensure that it is sustainable and continuous.

The Department's roles and responsibilities are determined by a range of legislative and other mandates, as described

here under.
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Legislation
During the reporting period, the Minister introduced two legislative measures in Parliament. These include:

a)  The Agrément South Africa Bill, 2015 [B3-2015] which is intended to establish the current Agrément South Africa
Board as a juristic person. This will enable the institution to sue and to be sued in its name, to perform legal acts in
its name as well as account for its finances in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999.

b)  The Expropriation Bill, 2015 [B4-2015] which seeks to provide a common framework for the expropriation of
property by organs of state. The Bill does not seek to interfere with existing powers of expropriation conferred by
specific legislation. This Bill, when passed into law, will ensure that expropriating authorities observe the values and

provisions of the Constitution, 1996 when they acquire property through expropriation.
Approved Policy Frameworks

The following seven policy frameworks were approved by the Minister:
a)  Accreditation of Built Environment Programmes
‘ ensures that built environment programmes conform to the requirements of the Higher Education Qualifications
Framework (HEQSF). It also expounds the principles that underpin the accreditation of Built Environment
Programmes by the professional councils.
b)  Professional Registration
‘ enhances public protection and the integrity of professions by ensuring that only suitably qualified and
competent professionals practice in the built environment.
¢) International Agreement
: ensures that agreements entered into, take due consideration of their implications for the profession and
for other professions in the built environment, as well as the Government policies and existing international
agreements.
d)  Code of conduct for Built Environment Professionals
: promotes the highest standards of ethical and professional conduct by built environment professionals to
protect the interest of profession, clients and the public.
e)  The Recognition of New Professions
‘ provides guidance on the incorporation of existing statutory professions within the legislative ambit of the
CBE, as well as recognition of new professions by Professional Councils.
f)  Appeals and Tribunals
: ensures the alignment of procedures within the Built Environment Professional Councils to safeguard adherence
to the legislative requirements.
g)  Competency standards for professionals
‘ guides professional councils in determining the competence of registered persons by ensuring that the required
and expected competency levels and criteria are clear, transparent and easily understood by people intending

to register.
Guidelines and Regulations

The development of the following was facilitated:

. Immovable Asset Life-Cycle Management Guidelines;

° Immovable Asset Condition Assessment Guidelines;
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. Immovable Asset Register Guideline;
. Gazetting of Final Regulations amendments to the Register of Contractors; and
. Draft Regulation amendments for Prompt Payment Regulations approved for gazetting for public comments.

Partnerships with the Department’s Public Entities

The formalization of the partnerships with the Public Entities was established by way of the following:
. Memorandum of Understanding with IDT (Strategic partnerships on projects).
. Memorandum of understanding with cidb (Strategic partnerships on projects).

Charter Councils

Memoranda of Understanding were concluded with the Construction and Property Sector Charter Councils. In this regard,

. The Department is providing funding support to the Property and Construction Sector Charter Councils. Both
Councils are in the process of the realignment of the sector codes to the amended BBBEEE Codes of Good
Practice.

. Programme I: Administration

Purpose: Provide strategic leadership and support services, including the accommodation and overall management of
the Department.

Sub-programmes: Ministry; Management; Corporate Services and Office Accommodation

Strategic Objectives:

. Promote sound corporate governance practices within DEPARTMENT,
: Ensure effective and sound financial resource management.

. Ensure effective corporate resource management.

2. Programme 2: Immovable Asset Management

Purpose: Provide and manage Government's immovable property portfolio in support of Government'’s social, economic,

functional and political objectives.

Sub-programmes: Infrastructure (Public Works); Strategic Asset Investment Analysis; Special Projects; Operation
Management; Prestige Management; Property Management; Augmentation of the PMTE; Construction Industry
Development Board; Council for the Built Environment; Parliamentary Villages Management Board; Independent

Development Trust

Strategic Objectives:
: Effective life cycle asset management of immovable assets under the custodianship of the Department.
: Improved land administration and spatial planning for integrated development in urban and rural areas.
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3. Programme 3: Expanded Public Works Programme

Purpose: To provide work opportunities and income support to poor and unemployed people through the labour-

intensive delivery of public and community assets and services, thereby contributing to development.
Sub-programmes: Expanded Public Works Programme; Performance-Based Incentive Allocations

Strategic Objective(s): Coordinate, monitor and evaluate the creation of work opportunities and income support to
the poor and unemployed, so as to contribute to the national goal of job creation and poverty alleviation.

4. Programme 4: Property and Construction Industry Policy Regulations

Purpose: Promote the growth and transformation of the construction and property industries. Promote uniformity and

best practice in construction and immovable asset management in the public sector.

Sub-programmes: Construction Industry Development Programme; Property Industry Development Programme
Strategic Objective (s):

. Promote growth and transformation of and competition in the construction and property industries;

: Promote uniformity and best practice in construction and immovable asset management in the public sector.

5. Programme 5: Auxiliary and Associate Services
Purpose: Provide for various services, including compensation for losses on the Government assisted housing scheme
and assistance to organisations for the preservation of national memorials. Meet the protocol responsibilities for State

functions.

Sub-programmes: Compensation for Losses; Distress Relief, Loskop Settlement; Assistance to Organisation for

Preservation of National Memorials; State Functions; Sector Education Training Authority

Strategic Objective (s): Render auxiliary services for State functions and meet financial commitments on compensation
for losses, preservations of national memorials, training and skills development.
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2.3 STRATEGY TO OVERCOME AREAS OF
UNDER PERFORMANCE

The financial year 2014/5 saw restructuring processes being undertaken. Programme 2, which performs the Department’s
core business and where the main challenges were experienced were prioritised in this process rather than in Programme
I which mainly provides support functions.

From the foregoing, it is evident that there was an imbalance between the achievements of the support programme and
the core business of the Department. The achievement of Programme | for the period under review remained between
70 and 80% while the achievements for Programme 2 fell to 21 % The EPWP maintained its operations at around 60%
while Programme 4, which is responsible for Policy Regulation was the most challenged Programme and therefore
requires much restructuring, going forward. The overall performance of the Department was recorded to be an average
level and, from the evidence available in the performance information, strategies have had to be conceptualized in order
to address the challenges that were experience. In this regard the following strategies to overcome the areas of under-

performance have been put into place:

The process to address the absence or lack of an integrated value chain was underway. With the establishment of the
GRC Branch, the value chain of the Department was under scrutiny in order to derive value for money and improve
service delivery. Addressing the business processes will be achieved by developing a Service Delivery Model of identified
core areas and mapping the inter-linkages that will improve the value chain. Additionally, the delivery model will be
matched with the Infrastructure Delivery Management System (IDMS) and other ICT related platforms in those areas.
The process to develop the delivery model will require a revisit in individual unit's value chains and craft an integrated
value chain that will avoid fragmentation and duplications. The value chain will also assist in addressing the skewness

between core and support areas.

As part of improving the planning of the core business of the Department, the GRC will also put in place stringent internal
controls to improve performance - starting with compliance which will include performance-reporting compliance as
well as delivery-related compliance. Some of the softer initiatives include training and development on performance
related areas, risk management and project management. Such training will improve the planning and understanding of

performance management, as well as in the development of SMART objectives and indicators.

The implementation of the Immovable Asset Register (IAR) Programme, which was intended as a phased process

remained key to the full operationalisation of the PMTE.

As a continuous exercise to ensure that its IAR is complete and accurate, the Departments’ IAR was reconciled against
the records of the Deeds Office and other National and Provincial IARs for both the interim and annual financial
statements during 2014/15.
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During this reporting period, 32 677 properties in the IAR were verified in 2014/15. All the relevant information
fields in the IAR were populated to comply with National Treasury’s minimum requirements and GRAP standards.
Cumulatively, the Department verified 99% of identified properties that were in the Scope of Work for Phase 2 of
the IAR Programme, thereby enabling the Department, to inter alia, confirm the existence and occupancy status of its
Immovable Asset Portfolio. All information collected was subjected to further analysis and alignment to the approved
Immovable Asset Management Policy. It is noted that 761 land parcels were vested (ie. confirmed ownership) during this
reporting alone, and the Department has cumulatively vested 16,161 out of 33 000 land parcels under its custodianship.
In addition, 45 907 immovable assets were valued to determine deemed carrying amounts and 66% of the land parcels
and improvements were traced to the Municipal Valuation Rolls. Alternative methodologies were also utilised, where

municipal values did not exist.

The challenge of under-expenditure in infrastructure necessitated a thorough analysis of the infrastructure delivery
value chain. In addition to capacity constraints, the quality of planning was also identified as the primary reason for
under-expenditure. In order to address this issue, the Construction Management Programme identified a number of key
challenges, which included, ineffective management, inadequate control and scoping of projects, poor planning and design
and funding allocations, which were not aligned to project delivery. In addition, the slow pace of transformation was also

found to impact on the construction sector.

As a result of the identified issues, measures to overhaul its project delivery processes were put into place. These
measures included the institutionalization into the Infrastructure IDMS. Momentum has since been created and every
effort must now be made to forge ahead with initiatives to address both the backlog of infrastructure projects and to

improve planning and turnaround times in project delivery.

In addition, the new Supply Chain regime, which includes, inter alia, the introduction of Functionality Criteria and which
will be in line with the IDMS, was initiated and will be implemented. In addition, the possibility of engaging SCM on a new

regime for projects in distress or that need urgent interventions will also be explored.

Important also was the question of late payments to contractors as these created debilitating cash flow problems,
especially for SMME's that did not have the resources to sustain the drain on their cash flow. Late payments to contractors
in the infrastructure delivery chain undermine delivery, economic growth and most importantly, the developmental and
transformational objectives of the country. This issue received priority and it is advisable to pay the SMMEs within 30 days

of receiving the contractors’ invoices, as prescribed.

Work on the development of the Department’s Contractor Development Programme (CDP), in line with the National
Contractor Development Programme (NCDP) continued during this period. The CDP is aimed at creating an enabling
environment for emerging contractors to grow, through support programmes i.e. mentorship, sub-contracting, joint ventures
and consortia. The emphasis of the CDP is on targeted groups (women, youth and people with disability) and on forging
strong partnerships with the CBE and the cidb who have been charged with the responsibility of assisting Government.

In its efforts to address the skills gap in the Built Environment industry, the Department commenced with the process
to build technical and professional capacity in construction project management. This necessitated engagements with
SACPCMP, CESA, COEGA, the IDT and National Treasury to source the requisite skills for improved project delivery. In
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the reporting period, discussions were at advanced stage with some of these bodies, to finalise MOUs.

In some projects, poor performance by contractors and consultants was reported. The Department entered into
consultative processes with some of these contractors and consultants to either develop intervention strategies or
terminate their services. A directive on the use of Functionality Criteria was drafted to address the appointment of

consultants and contractors without the requite capacity.

Processes were at an advanced stage in the development of prescripts, institutional arrangements and interventions for a
Green Building Programme, which will allow the Department to contribute directly to the realisation of a climate resilient
economy. This will be achieved by providing leadership to National Departments, Provincial Departments of Public
Works and sector stakeholders in a Green Building Regime that is responsive to Government’s economic imperatives and
social-cohesion discourse. This strategic objective necessitated that the Policy and Programme outlook should address the
“energy, food, water nexus” through Green Building and incorporate African Indigenous Knowledge Systems, specific to
the built environment. In addition, it should utilise knowledge and skills plurality towards realising economies of scale in job
creation, the development of SMMEs, and the promotion of social-cohesion through Climate Change mitigation actions

in the built environment. Current processes in the Green Building Programme include the following:

The draft National Green Building Policy, which is intended to serve as an overarching prescript for the implementation of

the Green Building Programme, throughout Government buildings has been finalised and will be presented to a National

Green Building Policy Workshop on the 7 — 8 April 2015, for consultation with Client Departments and Provincial

Departments of Public Works. The draft policy covers various elements, and include, inter alia :

. Locating Green Building within the strategic context of the South African Green Economy trajectory and Climate
Change response strategies espoused in the National Climate Change Response Strategy, the National Energy
Efficiency Strategy, and the National Framework for Sustainable Development;

: The incorporation of the socio-economic imperatives of Government i.e. skills development, job creation, technology
transfer, local innovation, local designation and manufacturing of materials etc,;

. Social-cohesion through the incorporation of African Indigenous Knowledge Systems i.e. Indigenous Biodiversity,
Rooftop Gardens, Arts and Culture, local building material auditing, Indigenous Architecture, Indigenous Community
Building Planning and Orientation, Indigenous “Building with the Environment”;

. The implementation of Energy and Water Efficiency, Waste Recycling, and Renewable Energy measure in public
buildings to mitigate against the building sector's 40% contribution to Greenhouse Gas emissions and optimize
savings in energy and water utilisation;

: The introduction of Eco-labelling of construction materials and processes;

. The development of the Green Building Norms and Standards for Government buildings and the recognition of
private rating systems for privately leased buildings, where applicable;

. Engagements with the Council for Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR) in the development of the Green
Building Norms and Standards for rating Government buildings. This will incorporate various economic and social
imperatives and will be owned by the South African Government;

: Provision for the establishment of retrofitting programmes and institutional arrangements to bring effect to Green
Building; and

. Consolidating the institutional arrangements in a draft Green Building PMO which will be completed after the PMTE

institutional arrangements and APP have been finalised.
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After the National Consultative Session, the final Draft Policy will be submitted to Exco, MinTop, and MinMec for
approval and implementation.

The creation of the PMTE has been part of the strategy to overcome under-performance. The PMTE's key role and
objective for the Efficiency Enhancement Phase is to optimise the asset portfolio to ensure improved and effective and
cost saving service delivery. This will be achieved by improving access to and the quality of public buildings, by utilising
the State’s unutilised properties productively and creating funding streams for capital maintenance and improvement
programmes, to extend the life-cycle of existing State's properties.

To achieve this, the key focus of the PMTE s its investment mandate which is structured to ensure lowered total cost of
ownership and higher returns on investment, to adequately:

. Maintain the value of Government's assets;

. Extend the life of all Government's assets;

. Improve access to and the quality of Government's assets; and

: Advance service delivery and generate cost savings.

The PMTE has not only been geared-up to be a responsive, effective, cost saving property management entity for the
State, but has the added benefit of contributing towards the National Development Plan (NDP) priorities through its
operations. As set out in the NDP, the objective and mission of Government’s developmental agenda is to set the country
on a higher and sustainable trajectory of economic growth and increased infrastructure development. Other priorities
include: resolving the energy challenge; unlocking the potential of SMMEs, co-operatives, townships and rural enterprises;
growing the ocean economy through Operation Phakisa; and transformation, job creation and skills development. In this
regard, the value proposition of the PMTE cannot be under-estimated.

In its commitment to the above, the PMTE aims to:

. Leverage the State’s Property Portfolio to contribute towards job creation, black empowerment and skills
development, mainly through the reopening of the Facilities Management Service Centres (Workshops) and
bridging service delivery gaps by targeting and engaging Co-ops, SMME's and Turnkey Solutions procurement in
the provision of construction, facilities management, and property management services for unutilised state owned
properties. In this regard the following 5 year targets have been set:

° 75 000 work opportunities created through construction projects
o 60% of construction projects allocated towards BBBEE contractors
° 25000 job opportunities created through maintenance programmes
o 65% of Facilities Management contracts allocated towards BBBEE

: Implement strategies and redress mechanisms towards energy and water savings on newly constructed buildings
and reducing the energy demand on existing properties. Immense gains have already been achieved through the
incorporation of energy efficiency into the building design and energy efficient technologies (Smart Metering and
Lighting) into existing buildings. In this regard the following 5 year targets have been set:

o 1,628,500,000 kilowatt-hour (Kwh) reduction in usage achieved on energy consumption
° 23,843,634 kilolitre -(kl) reduction in usage achieved on water consumption
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Reclaim the mandate of Public Works, and take control of — and develop — small proclaimed harbours as well as

harbours that are not yet proclaimed. This has implications for the better utilisation of the State's resources to

promote economic development and job creation. The Admiralty Land, for which Public Works is responsible,

will be treated similarly. The PMTE as the State’s infrastructure development organ will play a pivotal role in the
development and modernisation of small harbours in stimulating the South African maritime economy. This also
includes the development of Government Precincts in small towns and rural areas. In this regard the following 5
year targets have been set:

40 precinct development proposals integrated into municipalities Spatial Development Frameworks (SDF);

80% of investment decisions approved to support Operation Phakisa (marine/aquaculture projects);

80% of investment decisions approved on proclaimed fishing harbours; and

Audit of all state coastal reserves under the custodianship of Public Works.

In addition to the above, the PMTE further aims to:
Clarify the BBBEE policy and its application to leasing-in, leasing-out, Real Estate Management, Construction,
Facilities Management and planned maintenance;
Safeguard the State's assets from vandalism, theft and land invasion; and

Reclaim all misappropriated State land through the Bring Back Campaign.
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The Departmental spending for the period under review is R6.022 billion which represents 98% of the adjusted budget

of Ré.121 billion. The variance of R99 million is attributed to underspending on compensation of employees, goods and

services and buildings and other fixed structures.

Spending per programme and economic classification is discussed below:

. Programme |:Administration

The under spending of R4.5 million in Programme | relates to the following:

o

Compensation of employees’ under spending of R3.7 million due to vacant positions in the last quarter of the
financial year.

Goods and services under spending of R340 000 was as a result of invoices received late and reported as
accruals.

Transfers and subsidies (for household) under spending of R436 000 was due to lesser commitments for leave

gratuities made in the current financial year.

. Programme 2: Immovable Asset Management

The underspending of R7 1 million in Programme 2 relate to payments for capital for buildings and other fixed structures

due to a delay in implementing infrastructure projects timeously. This resulted in payments being made late under

PMTE and not being recovered from the department. The department is engaging with National Treasury for the

reallocation of these funds to the PMTE in line with the transfer of functions as funds have already been spent.

. Programme 3: Expanded Public Works Programme

The under spending of R21 million in Programme 3 is mainly due to the following:

o

Compensation of employees underspending by RI7 million was due to vacant positions within EPVWP that
were only filled in the latter part of the financial year.

Goods and services was underspent by R2.8 million by the end of the financial year. Commitments and
accruals relating to unspent funds were reported at the end of the financial year.

Transfers and subsidies was under-spent by RI.2 million, and related to transfer payments to Provinces for
EPWP Integrated Incentive Grant. Funds were withheld for 2 Limpopo Provincial Departments due to non-
compliance to the Division of Revenue Act by the provinces. Approval for the withholding of funds was
granted by National Treasury.

. Programme 4: Property and Construction Industry Policy Regulations

Under spending of R3 million in Programme 4 is due to the following:

o

Compensation of employees underspending of RI million was due to vacant positions within the branch of
which some of the posts were only filled in the latter part of the financial year.

Goods and services underspending of R12.7 million included an original RI'l million budget allocation to
Agrément South Africa which was subsequently paid from transfers and subsidies. The expenditure for
Agrément South Africa under transfers and subsidies is classified as irregular expenditure as the organisation
is not a registered legal persona.

Transfers and subsidies over spending of R10.8 million was attributed to the payment made to Agrément
South Africa.

. Programme 5: Auxiliary and Associated Services

Expenditure was 100% in this Programme.
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2.6 CONDITIONAL GRANTS

Table 9: EPWP integrated grant paid to provinces during the period | April 2014 to 31 March 2015

Departments to the grant has been transferred The grant has been transferred to eligible departments in nine
provinces
Purpose of the grant * To incentivise provincial departments to expand work

creation efforts through the use of labour intensive
delivery methods in the following identified focus areas, in
compliance with the EPWP guidelines

* road maintenance and the maintenance of buildings

* low traffic volume roads and rural roads

* other economic and social infrastructure

* tourism and cultural industries

* sustainable land based livelihoods

* waste management

Expected outputs of the grant *  Number of people employed and receiving income through

the EPWP
* Increased average duration of the work opportunities

created

Actual outputs Achieved 17,552 FTEs created

Amount per Amended DoRA (R'000) R348.947

Amount Transferred (R'000) R347.704

Reasons if amount as per DoRA not transferred The amount of R1.243 million was not transferred to two

departments in Limpopo due to lack of spending and non-
compliance to DoRA. The departments failed to spend amount

already transferred.

Amount Spent by the provincial departments (R'000) R319.767

Monitoring Mechanism by the transferring departments The conditional grant is monitored through the monthly
expenditure reports, site verification visits and reports on the
EPWP reporting system.

. Transfer payments were not all made as original scheduled as some payments were withheld due to lack of
compliance by provincial departments. However, approval to amend payment schedule was requested from
National Treasury and it was granted.

. The department did not retain any portion of the grant for administration cost.

. Payments were withheld for the following reasons
a.  Late submission of signed incentive agreements and projects list
b.  Lack of spending the transferred amount

¢ Non- submission of In Year Monitoring report
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Table 10: EPWP integrated grant paid to Municipalities during the period | April 2014 to 31 March

2015

Municipalities whom the grant has been transferred The grant has been transferred to 274 public bodies ( Local

municipalities, District municipalities and Metros)

Purpose of the grant * To incentivise municipalities to expand work creation efforts
through the use of labour intensive delivery methods in
the following identified focus areas, in compliance with the
EPWP Guidelines:

* road maintenance and the maintenance of buildings

* low traffic volume roads and rural roads

* basic services infrastructure, including water and
sewer reticulation, sanitation, pipelines (excluding bulk
infrastructure)

* other economic and social infrastructure

* tourism and cultural industries

* waste management

* parks and beautification

* sustainable land-based livelihoods

* social services programme

* health service programme

* community safety programme

Expected outputs of the grant * Increased number of people employed and receiving income

through the EPWP

* Increased average duration of the work opportunities
created

* Increased income per EPWP beneficiary

Actual outputs Achieved 14,128 FTEs created

Amount per Amended DoRA (R'000) R594.575

Amount Transferred (R'000) R594.575

Amount Spent by Municipalities (R000 R434,699

Reasons for the funds unspent by Municipalities The conditional grant is aligned to financial year of municipalities,

unspent amount still be spent during the last quarter of
municipal financial year.

Monitoring Mechanism by the transferring departments The conditional grant is monitored through the monthly

expenditure reports, site verification visits and reports on the
EPWP reporting system.

©  Transfer payments were not all made as original scheduled as some payments were withheld due to lack of compliance
by provincial departments. However, approval to amend payment schedule was requested from National Treasury
and it was granted.

°  The department did not retain any portion of the grant for administration cost.

©  Payments were withheld for the following reasons
d. Late submission of signed incentive agreements and projects list
e. Non- submission of monthly expenditure report
f.  Lack of spending the transferred amount
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Table 1 1: EPWP Social Sector Incentive grant paid to provinces during the period | April 2014 to 31
March 2015.

Departments to the grant has been transferred The grant has been transferred to eligible departments in nine
provinces
Purpose of the grant To incentivise provincial social sector departments identified in

the 2013 Social Sector EPWP Log-frame to increase job creation
by focusing on the strengthening and expansion of social service
programmes that have employment potential

Expected outputs of the grant * Improved service delivery to communities by expanding the
reach and quality of social services

* Improved quality of life of unemployed people through
employment creation and increased income

*  Contribute towards decreased levels of unemployment

* Improved opportunities for sustainable work through
experience and learning gained

* Strengthened capacity of non-government delivery partners
through increased access to funds for training, wages and
administration

Actual outputs Achieved I3, 346 FTEs created

647 NPOs were supported administratively

705,540 Households received social services

1,336,81 | People (ECD children, learners and patients) received
social services

Amount per Amended DoRA (R'000) R 257972
Amount Transferred (R'000) R 257972

Reasons if amount as per DoRA not transferred

Amount Spent by the provincial departments (R'000) R 247212

Monitoring Mechanism by the transferring departments The conditional grant is monitored through the monthly
expenditure reports, site verification visits and reports on the
EPWP reporting system.

©  Transfer payments were not all done as original scheduled as some payments were withheld due to lack of compliance
by provincial departments. However, approval to amend payment schedule was requested from National Treasury
and it was granted.

°  The department did not retain any portion of the grant for administration cost.

*  Payments were withheld for the following reasons
g. Non- submission of in year monitoring report
h. Lack spending the transferred amount.

i. Late submission of signed incentive agreements and business plans
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2.7 CAPITAL INVESTMENT

The refurbishment and upgrade of Agrivaal Building with a contract value of R458 million is 71.05% percent complete.
The project is scheduled, for completion on 3 August 2015. This new building will feature a 4-green star rating and will
be home to the DPSA.

. Phase | for the provision of bulk infrastructure Services to support the new Head office development of Stats SA
is underway. The first phase bulk infrastructure services are due for completion on 30 November 2015 at a cost of
R55 million.

. Application for Township Establishment and proclamation of Salvokop Extension 4 was submitted to the local
authority on 30 September 2014. All requirements except for noise impact study requires conclusion. The current
planning of ICR makes provision for eight (8) new head offices for government department in Salvokop Extension 4.
Consent use approval has been obtained from the local authority for development rights on a portion of Salvokop
Extension 4.

. A state owned site has been identified and concept design concluded for identified Government Departments
to develop a consolidated government precinct. Within the municipality, Council resolution in support of such a
precinct was obtained and a Service Level Agreement is under consideration for signature by both the City and
Department.

. Sign off of needs assessments for the construction of new office accommodation has been received from identified
User Departments.

. Further, this project has been registered on the infrastructure programme for this financial year to proceed into
design and documentation, with the Department Regional office of 32 000m? prioritised for development.

In terms of small towns and rural Precincts, planning to develop a precinct for government services across all three
spheres has advanced for the following small towns and rural Municipalities in alignment to Outcome 7 Comprehensive
Rural Development:

. Master planning for the precinct based on strategic studies of the needs of service departments has been completed.

. land to develop a government precinct has been identified and supported by the local authority by way of a Council
resolution. Whilst the processing and acquisition of land for development is transpiring, a concept design for the
precinct, with volumetric study designs for the buildings, has been completed.

. land for the development of government precincts has been identified and proposals for the creation of a precinct
have been made to the local authorities.
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By the end of the financial year, the Department spent 82% of the R316 million adjusted budget for DPW's Capital
Projects and 86% of the R1.727 billion budget for PMTE Capital Budget. There were 180 projects that were completed
by end of the reporting period.

The Department has, previously, underspent the Budget Allocations allocated for DPW’s Capital Vote and Clients’

Capital Programmes. This was attributable to a variety of challenges, which are summarised as follows:

In-adequate human resources across the infrastructure delivery value chain. This affected the ability of the
Department to manage the projects at the different stages of delivery and resulted in compromising the quality of
service to the User Departments;

Poor planning and misaligned infrastructure budgeting processes by both DPW and User Department which
sometimes resulted in allocations exceeding the commitments;

Limited capacity to deliver infrastructure in the electrical, mechanical, civil & structural engineering; architectural and
project management disciplines,

Poor performance by certain contractors which resulted projects not being completed on time and the cancellation
of contracts.

The following are some of the interventions put into operation to deal with the above-mentioned challenges:

The establishment of the SCM War Room, which tracked and monitored the projects during the evaluation and

adjudication stages;

The Institutionalisation of the Infrastructure Delivery Management System (IDMS), which included a review of the

processes and systems. In this regard, the following is noted :

° The establishment of a National Steering Committee for IDMS for both DPVW and the Provincial Public
Works; and

° The IDMS Workshop which was held during September 2014, under the auspices of the Director General.
The workshop was attended by senior management of the DPW and the Provincials Departments of Public
Works. The Workshop was used as a platform to engage stakeholder on the IDMS, processes of infrastructure
delivery, progress and to determine the way forward for the DPWV to expedite implementation.

The establishment of Joint Teams, between the Department and other National Departments (ie, SAPS, DCS, DOJ,

DOD and DHA) which were tasked to identify and unblock challenges; and

Discussions with professional bodies, e.g., CESA, to assist with the recruitment of retired professionals who would

be tasked with mentoring young professionals and graduates.

Progress achieved on the maintenance of infrastructure (planned maintenance expenditure).

The entire planned maintenance portfolio had an allocation of R 2,126,616,045.00 of which 99% was spent.

o The quantum in money value in relation to performance (expenditure) demonstrates the passion and interest
of the Department to provide habitable office and living accommodation conditions in State properties. The
Department is continuing with the maintenance of facilities while focusing on projects that are in the planning
phase to ensure that they move to implementation as soon as possible.

Major maintenance projects that were undertaken during the period under review.

o Major projects in this context refera to the projects with a minimum construction value of R20 million. As at
the end of 2014/15, the Department had a total of 68 projects at construction stage in that category with a
total allocation of R 817,463,838.00.
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In the year under review, the Department has approved the demolition of a number of buildings on 9 facilities across
the country. These buildings had either reached the end of their lifespan or were no longer operational and beyond
economical repair. In the main, and following extensive investigation in each instance, their demolition will make way for

redeveloped facilities, in line with current and future User requirements.

During the period under review, two (2) properties, measuring 0.266 hectares in extent (for one property the exact extent
to be released will be determined once development plans are finalized) have been disposed for Human Settlements
purposes. One () property, measuring 8.995 hectares has been approved for release for Land Reform purposes. A

number of other requests, in this regard, are being finalized for consideration for release in the forthcoming financial year.

Table 12:The current state of the Department’s capital assets, for example what percentage is in good,

fair or bad condition.

Department Condition of State Owned Buildings Total
(Number and Percentage)
Very Good Good Fair Poor Very Poor
C5 C4 C3 Cc2 Cl
Defence [ 0% 274 | 30% | 490 | 54% 96 119% 51 6% 912 | 100%
Correctional Services | 1% Il 6% I5] 80% 20 I'19% 5 ['19% 188 | 100%
Justice 10 1% 51 8% 461 69% |46 22% 4 1% 672 100%
Other Clients Combined 7 2% 86 23% | 250 | 67% 21 6% 6 2% 370 | 100%
SAPS 39 3% 142 10% | 952 | 68% | 254 18% 9 1% | 1,396 | 100%
Unutilized 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 394 | 100% @ 394 | 100%
TOTALS 58 8% 564 17% 2304 48% 537 20% 469 7% | 3,932 100%
The table above illustrates the following:
. The number of buildings in the DPW portfolio for which high-level condition assessments were concluded in the

year under review;.

. The Justice Portfolio excludes condition ratings for all residential accommodation, as the audit is on-going;

. The SAPS Portfolio includes condition ratings for devolved police stations;

. The condition rating for Defense is derived from the draft UAMP) and it includes residential units;

. Unutilised buildings comprise of offices, residential units and other structures, some of which are within the
complexes; and

. The DCS portfolio excludes condition rating for residential units, both within and outside the complexes.

Currently, the exact maintenance backlog in relation to the immovable asset portfolio is not known. However, the
Department has a planned Maintenance Implementation Programme in place, comprising funded maintenance projects. It
has also identified a number of maintenance projects for which funding is not yet available. Following the recent physical
verification of the portfolio, during the Immovable Asset Register Enhancement Programme, a number of immovable
assets were found to be in very poor (Cl) to poor (C2) condition. In an attempt to quantify and reduce the maintenance
backlog moving forward, the Strategy will be to prioritize C| and C2 immovable assets for inclusion into the Maintenance
Programme, on an annual basis. In the establishment of the PMTE, Program 6 has been established to drive Facilities

Management of the Immovable Asset Portfolio. In the 2015/16 year, the key objectives of this programme will include
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ensuring scheduled maintenance of freehold property, energy and water efficiency management in freehold property, the

repair of freehold components and the undertaking of unscheduled maintenance on freehold properties. These initiatives

will significantly contribute to a reduction of the maintenance backlog into the future.
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3.1 Overview of Governance

The formation of the Governance, Risk and Compliance Branch during August 2014 sought to address a number of
governance related challenges that the Department is confronting. The branch is largely an amalgamation of a number of
former direct reports to the Director-General that includes the Strategic Management; Monitoring and Evaluation; and
Anti-Corruption Units, as well as the Inter-Governmental Relations and Secretariat functions in the department. During
the year under review the branch has commenced with a range of initiatives from improving the quality and integration
of strategic planning, risk management and performance monitoring; improving the management of inter-governmental
relations and oversight of the public entities, improving the functioning of departmental governance structures and

arrangements; and developing a holistic approach to combatting fraud and corruption in the Department.

Risk Management in the Department was regulated by a comprehensive Risk Management Policy. During the reporting
period the Policy was reviewed and comments received from members of the Risk Management Committee (RMC), and
from the independent Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) in May 2015, before being adopted by EXCO

during the same month.

The Department also conducted its annual risk assessment processes to establish the level of risk exposure for the
Department and conducted risk monitoring on a quarterly basis to assess the implementation of action plans designed to
mitigate risks and minimize risk exposure. Emerging risks were consequently identified during the monitoring process, as
well as a result of changes in the departmental operating environment, and the risk profile of the Department accordingly
updated. In this regard the Department has identified both Strategic and Operational risks as part of its planning processes.

The Department had a functional Risk Management Committee (RMC) which met on quarterly basis in terms of its
Charter. The Committee was chaired by an independent Chairperson appointed in accordance with the National Treasury
Public Sector Risk Management Framework. The resolutions of the RMC were reported to the EXCO and the ARMC for

further discussions and decision making.

The Audit Committee was responsible for oversight of the Department’s control, governance and risk management and
provided an independent and objective view of the Department’s risk management effectiveness during the reporting
period. The Committee added significant value through its monitoring of the risk management processes of the department
and provided valuable advice to management on improving the effectiveness of risk management during its standing

engagements with the department.

Although the level of maturity had been assessed as hindering the effectiveness of the risk management processes in the
Department, a number of initiatives including training and placing risk management at the centre of the management agenda
have been undertaken to reverse this trend and improve the understanding of the value an effective risk management
system, increase the assumption of accountability for identified risks, and enhance the levels of synergy and integration
between regional offices and branches in Head Office from a risk management perspective. In this regard the Department
will focus its attention in the year ahead on further developing a model of risk management that seeks to achieve the
objectives of combined assurance, increase the level of reliance placed by internal audit on risk management outcomes,
integrate risk management with planning, and improve the level of buy-in from management by creating more awareness
campaigns. These interventions are designed to enhance the level of risk maturity in the medium-term and establish risk
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management as a core tool to assist management in achieving the strategic goals of the Department.

The Department undertook a review of its planning processes during the 2014/15 financial year and introduced a
structured framework for strategic planning in compliance with the applicable regulatory framework. The framework,
which establishes strategic planning as a key management tool in pursuing the goals and objectives of the Department, has
informed the 2015-2020 Strategic Plan aligned to the MTSF and the NDP. In June 2014 the Minister presented the strategic
policy priorities for the medium-term to the Department and Public Entities reporting to the Minister. This initiative set
in motion the process for the development of the relevant Strategic and Annual Performance Plans for the Department,
PMTE and its Public Entities which were tabled in March 2015. During the year under review, the Department was also

required to prepare separate plans for PMTE, marking another milestone toward the operationalization of the PMTE.

An important aspect of the planning reforms undertaken has been the integration of risk management into the planning
processes of the Department. In this regard, management has accorded more importance to identifying strategic and

operational risks that impede the achievement of their strategic and immediate goals for the mitigation of risks.

The Department made significant progress in measuring the appropriate outcomes and outputs that it is responsible
for by improving the quality of its performance indicators midst the turnaround in its operational environment. These
improvements noted will be carried forward as the Department builds on the foundation already established in the

revised planning process initiated during the year under review.

In an endeavour to improve its functioning, the Department adopted a Policy Framework for the management of its top
governance structures and introduced a number of committee structures reporting to the Executive Committee for both
the Department as well as the PMTE. These initiatives were designed to both aid the operationalization of the PMTE, as
well as to improve executive management decision-making and management accountability. Although these objectives
have been achieved to a large extent from a governance perspective - as demonstrated in the perfect rating achieved
by the Department through the MPAT process, the Department is committed to improving performance in this area,

especially as regards the efficient functioning of its governance processes.

The Department conducted quarterly oversight engagements with the Public Entities during the year that focused on both
planning processes as well as monitoring and evaluation of their performance as articulated in their respective Strategic
and Annual Performance plans. This has enabled the Department to oversee the performance of the Public Entities and
achievement of their strategic objectives, and to intervene where performance as well as governance related challenges
are identified. In varying degrees, the Department also oversaw and administered the appointment of the management
boards of the Public Entities in support of the Minister in accordance with relevant legislation governance these entities.
While these quarterly, as well as ad-hoc encounters during the year have been fruitful, the Department is seeking to
continually improve the quality and outcomes of these engagements. In this regard, the Department will assume greater

responsibility in overseeing the planning processes of the Public Entities in the year ahead. This will allow the Department
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to place itself in closer proximity and to influence the operations of the Entities as a mode of delivery of critical outcomes

in the NDP within the construction and property sectors.

The Department reviewed its Fraud Prevention Strategy and the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy as well as developed
a Whistle-Blowing Policy during the year. These policies were adopted by EXCO and approved by the Director-General
during April 2014. The Fraud Prevention Strategy outlines a high level plan on how the Department of Public Works will

go about implementing its fraud prevention program.

Within this policy framework, the Department adopted and implemented a 4 component strategy in response to managing
Fraud and Corruption within the Department that includes:

. Prevention — Education and Awareness, Policies and Procedures, Ethical Culture etc.

. Detection — Promoting Reporting Mechanisms, Internal Audit, Register of Allegations

. Investigations — Internal, and/or Out-sourced (SIU and Private Firms)

. Resolutions — Implementation of systemic recommendations, Disciplinary Action, Civil and/or Criminal Actions

This signified a holistic approach to combatting fraud and corruption in the department that sought to extend the strategy
beyond the traditional element of investigation. In seeking to develop a robust and responsive fraud prevention plan the
Department conducted a comprehensive fraud risk assessment during the 2014/15 financial year. The results of the risk
assessment were then used to develop a Fraud Risk Register. The Fraud Risks identified were disseminated to the Branch
heads for incorporation into their Units” business plans and accountability for risk mitigation, in the individual performance
agreements of branch heads. The Department accordingly developed fraud index to measure fraud and corruption risks.
In this regard risk owners are expected to mitigate fraud risk within their respective areas of responsibility and to report

quarterly on their action plans to mitigate these risks.

During the year under review the Department continued to promote the use of the National Anti-Corruption Hotline
(NACH) administered by the Public Service Commission for confidential reporting of incidents of fraud and corruption.
The promotion of the NACH further enhanced the integrity of the reporting process. This has enabled members of the
Public and other interested parties to anonymously report incidents or suspicion of incidents of fraud and corruption to
the NACH. Reports logged with the NACH were directed to the Department for further attention. In this regard the
Department has been compelled to provide a report/outcome of the investigation and resolution attained in as far as

the allegation reported is concerned.

The Department further promoted other internal reporting mechanisms such as the use of intranet/internet portals to
report incidents directly to the Minister, Deputy Minister and Director-General. Internal officials and contractors also
encouraged to report incidents of fraud and corruption using these channels. Where matters were reported or referred
to the Anti-Corruption Unit, complainants were notified (where known) of the receipt of their complaints/allegations
and provided with a reference number for future tracking purposes and to provide feedback on the outcome of their
referrals. In this regard, the Department received allegations pertaining to fraud and corruption from various sources/
stakeholders during the year, in a form of reports from members of the public (NACH), officials, management requests,
AGSA Reports and Internal Audit etc.
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The process below constituted the steps followed once an allegation report was received by the Governance, Risk and

Compliance Branch:-

Upon receipt of the report the allegation was recorded in the Register of Allegations for tracing purposes; the
allegation received was then be submitted to an Assessment

Committee comprising of five (5) Committee Members to assess the allegation reported within 30 days of receipt
in order to establish whether or not it fell within the mandate of the Anti-Corruption Unit;

Based on the assessment conducted, allegations that fell outside the mandate of the Unit were referred to other
Business Units for further attention. Allegations identified as having elements of fraud, corruption and/or serious
maladministration were then registered on the Fraud Allegation Register and allocated a reference number;
Subsequently, an investigation into the matter was instituted to prove or disprove the allegations made;

After the investigation was completed a report detailing the findings of the investigation, conclusions and
recommendations were submitted to the Director-General for consideration and approval of the recommendations
made;

Upon the Director-General approving the recommendations made in the investigation reports, the reports were
disseminated to the relevant Branch Heads / Regional Managers to implement the recommendations made; and
Periodic follow-ups were also made to track progress and outcomes in respect of the implementation of

recommendations made through then medium of investigation reports.

A total of thirty-nine (39) cases of allegations were received in the 2014/15 financial year. Out of this, fourteen (14) cases

have been completed and reports/memoranda issued to management; twenty-three (23) cases were at various stages of

investigations and two (2) cases were referred to other Business Unit/SIU/SAPS. Of the fourteen (14) completed cases,

five (5) disciplinary actions were recommended against officials, of these, three (3) were finalised and two (2) are pending.

Of the three (3) finalised, one (1) official was suspended without pay, one (1) official was found not found guilty; one (1)

official was dismissed; and four (4) cases were reported to SAPS. These cases are still under investigation.

The Governance, Risk and Compliance branch has been in operation for the latter half of the period under review. During

this short period it has made significant strides towards improving identified governance arrangements in the Department

within Strategic Planning and Risk Management; the management of its top Governance Structures; Oversight and

Coordination of the Public Entities and the fight against Corruption. A number of important areas of its intended remit

have been conducted at a rudimentary level or not at all, and include the Compliance and Service Delivery Improvement

functions, both of which have not been previously undertaken at a corporate level in the Department. These initiatives

will be accorded the necessary capacity and development in incremental stages over the medium term.

In an effort to root out fraud and corruption, to support the prevention of collusive practices and SCM abuse, to detect

possible conflict of interest in the SCM system as well as ensure compliance to all relevant prescripts and policies, a

number of controls have been established and are discussed below.

All SCM practitioners/officials involved in the SCM processes are required to annually sign a Code of Conduct for all

Departmental Officials Engaged in Supply Chain Management (PAOO) which specifically enjoins the relevant officials to

declare in writing to the Head of Supply Chain Management Unit, to the extent required by their respective positions, any

business, commercial or financial interest or any activity undertaken for financial, material and/or personal gain.
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In respect of every tender/bid specification/evaluation process that an official or SCM practitioner participates in there is a
requirement for the disclosure of their respective financial interest by signing a Declaration of Interest and Confidentiality

form (PA 18) every time there is either a specification or evaluation meeting in relation to that particular tender.

Further to this and as part of disclosures in the quarterly financial statements all SCM practitioners are required to
complete Related Party Declarations in which in detail the official is required to disclose the participation of spouses and

close family members in partnerships, close corporations and/or companies.

Any official failing to adhere to this requirement by declaring his/her interest is subjected to the relevant disciplinary code.
Where an official declares interest, that official is required to recuse him/herself from the relevant process.

All bidders that participate and respond to bids are required to complete a Declaration of Interest and Bidder’s Past SCM

Practices (PAI1l) that stipulates that the bidder or his/her authorised representative declares his/her position in relation

to the evaluating/adjudicating authority and/or take an oath declaring his/her interest, where:

. the bidder is employed by the state; and/or

. the legal person on whose behalf the bidding document is signed, has a relationship with persons/a person who are/
is involved in the evaluation and or adjudication of the bid(s), or where it is known that such a relationship exists
between the person or persons for or on whose behalf the declarant acts and persons who are involved with the
evaluation and or adjudication of the bid.

Section 195 (1) (a) of the Constitution requires that “a high standard of professional ethics must be promoted and
maintained” in public administration generally. In terms of the Disciplinary Code and Procedure for the Public Service
and for SMS members, all employees in the Public Service have the responsibility to comply with the prescribed Code of
Conduct. It is against this background that the Code of Conduct for the Public Service was promulgated under the Public
Service Act in Chapter 2 of the Public Service Regulations.

The Code of Conduct is a guideline to employees on what is expected of them from an ethical point of view both in
their individual conduct and their relationship with others. The purpose of the Code is to enhance professionalism in the
public service and help to ensure confidence in the public service.

The Code of Conduct for the Public Service serves to promote ethical and professional behavior among employees in
the Public Service.

There is some degree of compliance with the Code of Conduct among employees in the Department which result in
good administration and efficient management of discipline. There is also some degree of non-compliance with the Code
of Conduct e.g. employees who often engage in unethical behavior such as fraud and corruption, which in turn has a
negative effect on the Department because it hampers service delivery and compromises the integrity of the Department.
The Department is adhering to the Code of Conduct in that employees are subjected to disciplinary processes for
contravention of same.

The Code of Conduct and its explanatory Manual has been circulated to departmental users through the Communication

Unit for employees to acknowledge receipt through their supervisors/ managers.
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Presentations of the Code of Conduct took place during the induction of new employees (Learners, Interns and Young
professional) in the Department. A Workshop on the Code of Conduct was also conducted at the Mmabatho Regional
Office.

The Department follows the disciplinary processes contained in both the Disciplinary Code and Procedure for the Public
Service and for SMS members to deal with any breach of the Code of Conduct for the Public Service.

The Code of Conduct read with the Disciplinary Code and Procedure for the Public Service and for SMS members
serve as basic rules that the employer relies on during disciplinary hearings to prove that employees have committed
misconduct since most acts of misconduct committed amount to contravention of the code.

In terms of the Disciplinary Code and Procedures for the Public Service and for SMS members, any contravention of
the Code of Conduct for the Public Service is an act of misconduct; therefore employees are subjected to disciplinary
processes in that regard.

Since the Department is the custodian of State property and involved in construction projects, health and safety issues
become a priority. The Department has a responsibility to provide for the Health and safety of persons in connection
with the use of plants and machinery; and the protection of persons other than persons at work against hazards to health
and safety out of or in connection with the activities of persons at the work.

Therefore, it is critical for the Department to view health and safety issues as a high priority and set high standards around
health issues.

The operations of the Department are guided by the Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993 (OHSA) which
state that every employer “shall provide and maintain, as far as is reasonably practicable, a working environment that is
safe and without risk to the health of his employees. This refers in particular to:
. Taking such steps to eliminate or mitigate any potential hazard

I. Ensure adherence to the requirements of the OHSA

2. Taking all necessary measures in the interest of health and safety including the establishment of Health and

safety committees

The Department conducts inspections in various properties, both state and leased, including projects which are under
construction to ensure compliance of OHSA. The Department conducts the main inspections as in an effort to ensure
compliance, follow ups are made to verify whether the previous identified non-compliance issues have been attended to,
Regular awareness Training is provided to departmental officials alerting them to the hazards that exist in the workplace

as well as to educate them on Emergency Evacuation procedures.
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The engagement between the Department and SCOPA took place on the 25th March 2015 to interrogate audit matters

arising from the 2013-14 Financial Statements of the department and PMTE. The department still awaits the formal

SCOPA report processed through the National Assembly with specific recommendations to allow the department to

provide responses

Department of Public Works

As disclosed in notes 32 and 35 to the financial
statements the prior year qualification on immovable
assets was not resolved. All immovable assets were
transferred to the Property Management Trading Entity
with effect | April 2013, therefore the effects of the
unresolved matter has no impact on the comparability
of the current and corresponding figures.

Nature of Emohasis of Matter FY in which Progress made
it first arose
Immovable assets 2008/09 Resolved. Immovable assets have been transferred

to the PMTE in 2013/14 financial year.

As disclosed in the appropriation statement, the
department has materially underspent the budget
on programme 2, immovable asset management, to
the amount of R104 981 000. As a consequence,
the department’s objectives of infrastructure delivery
were not fully achieved

2 Restatement of corresponding figures 2013/14 The current year restatement will be done on
As disclosed in notes 4, 20, 23 and 25 to the note 25, irregular expenditure, to address the
financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 requirements of the revised guidelines on irregular
March 2013 have been restated as a result of errors expenditure.
discovered during 2014, in the financial statements
of the Department of Public Works at, and for the
year ended, 31 March 2013.

3 Material impairments 2013/14 The current year balance on impairment is R15 755.
As disclosed in note |2 to the financial statements, The reduction is as a result of the assessment of
material impairments to the amount of R51 453 doubtful debts and write offs.

000 were provided for as a result of irrecoverable
receivables.
4 Material underspending of the vote 2013/14 Compared to the previous financial year, the overall

expenditure performance has improved by |%.
The preliminary capital expenditure for 2014/15
is 75% compared to 905 spent in 2013/14. The
under spending is due to time difference between
payments to suppliers and claims between

the department and PMTE as DEPARTMENT
infrastructure for capital is fully 98% in PMTE.
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Property Management Trading Entity

Nature of Qualification FY in which Progress made
it first arose

Irregular expenditure 2009/10 All outstanding documents have been provided to

| was unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate the AGSA during the interim audit cycle of 2014/15.
audit evidence for irregular expenditure as the entity

did not have an adequate system for identifying and Payables accounting system has been developed to
recognising all irregular expenditure. Furthermore, account for all accruals. Accruals disclosed are tested
the irregular expenditure amount of the entity was for irregular expenditure.

based on actual payments and not those recorded
when a transaction, condition or event linked to Disclosure note on irregular expenditure includes a
the non-compliance was recognised as expenditure
in the statement of financial performance in
accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP. | was

unable to confirm the balances by alternative means.

narrative on the impracticability of completeness of
irregular expenditure.

Consequently, | was unable to determine whether
any adjustments were necessary to the irregular
expenditure stated at R34 417 205 000 and the
restated corresponding figures stated at R3 848 600
000 in note 26 to the financial statements.
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Nature of Qualification FY in which Progress made
it first arose
Operating leases 2008/09 Signed lease agreements to be sourced from

| was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence that management had accurately accounted
for operating leases due to the status of the
accounting records. The amounts disclosed were
based on data from the manual lease schedules, which
did not agree in all instances with information per the
signed lease agreements. | was unable to confirm the
balances by alternative means. Consequently, | was
unable to determine whether any further adjustment
was necessary to the following items in the financial
statements:

Operating lease assets and receivables

*  Operating lease assets stated at R886 212 000
(2013: R807 852 000) in note 6.1

* Prepaid expenses stated at R559 081 000 (2013:
R752 561 000) in note 3

*  Operating lease asset commitments stated at
R7 235 528 000 (2013: R7 383 331 000) in
disclosure note 6.1

Operating lease expenditure and associated liabilities

*  Operating lease liabilities stated at R847 349 000
(2013: R809 658 000) in note 6.2

*  Operating lease expenditure stated at R3 346
389 000 (2013: R3 158 730 000) in note 20

* Provisions stated at R2 21 | 377 000 (2013: R
741 624 000) in note 16

¢ Operating lease commitments stated at R7 128
905 000 (2013: R7 407 717 000) in disclosure
note 6.2

Regions (Starting with Pretoria region on
29/09/2014 as a pilot office)
Update Excel lease database

Upload and verification of updated Excel lease
database into the Archibus system.

All new leases will be authorized at Head office
after the lease agreements have been uploaded on
Archibus system.

Accruals

The trading entity did not recognise all outstanding
amounts meeting the definition of a liability in
accordance with GRAP |: Presentation of financial
statements. As the entity did not have adequate
systems to identify and record outstanding payments
for goods and services received but not yet paid

at year-end, | was not able to determine the full
extent of the understatement of accruals, as it was
impracticable to do so.

2013/14

Training to address issues relating to the completion
of the workbooks.

Identification and reclassification of capital v current
expenditure.

A payable management system has been finalised
and will be discussed with AGSA, to enumerate the
processed to be followed and followed with accruals
by the regions and head office.

An updated workbook template for accruals has
been compiled and issued to regions as part of the
YE Instruction Document.

Regions have to submit workbooks that need to be
consolidated at head office.
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3.2 REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

for the year ended 3| March 2015

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015,

For the year under review, the Department of Public Works (the Department or the Main Vote) and its trading
entity; the Property Management Trading Entity (the PMTE) had a fully functional Audit Committee. Collectively;
we refer to the Department and the PMTE as the institution. The Committee consist of five (5) Members, all of

whom are external to the institution.

No of members Name of member Number of meetings attended
I Mr Z Luswazi — Chairperson 9
2 Mr C Bunting 8
3 Ms N Singh 8
4. Mr M Ramurunzi 7
5 Mr J van Heerden 9

The Audit Committee has complied with Section 38(1) (a) (i) of the Public Finance Management Act, Act | of 1999
(the PFMA) and Treasury Regulation 3.1 in that the Department has and maintains a system of Internal Audit under
the control and direction of the Audit Committee complying with and operating in accordance with regulations and
instructions prescribed by the PFMA.

The Committee reports that it has formally adopted a set of Terms of Reference and has duly complied with them.

4.1 Efficiency and effectiveness of the system of internal control

The institution did not maintain consistent effective, efficient and transparent systems of internal control. As a
result some of the account balances of the PMTE were not fairly stated at year-end. Similarly and to the extent
that it related to performance information, the Department (the Main Vote) did not maintain the desired
system of internal control as required by the PFMA.

In the prior year, the institution reported irregular expenditure to the extent of R34bn. Accordingly and
as part of consequence management, appropriate investigative work ensued. Our observation is that
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while notable improvements have been observed with respect to the said consequence management; the
Committee’s opinion is that there remains substantial room for improvement particularly with respect to
improved turnaround times as well as the success rate on prosecuted cases.

4.2 Risk Management

In the second half of the previous financial year, the Department established the Governance, Risk and
Compliance Branch. Since then there has been an increasing level of focus on Risk Management issues at
the institution. Nonetheless, it is a considered view of the Committee that substantial improvement is still
required in this area. The Committee believes that organisational maturity on Risk Management is yet to be
achieved. The institution needs to crystalize the practical application of Risk Management principles to the
day-to-day management activities of the institution wherein the culture of effective Risk Management will
become a consistent norm.

4.3 Annual Financial Statements

The Department maintained an unqualified audit opinion in the year review, while the PMTE maintained a
qualified audit opinion in relation to prior year. Notwithstanding the fact that the PMTE has maintained a
qualified report in relation to prior year, upon interrogation of the qualifying areas; qualitatively this entails a
notable improvement in relation to prior year. We comment further on this subject under item 5 below.

4.4 Management Report of the Auditor General

The level of robust interaction between the Auditor General and Management continued in the year under
review. Management has accepted the audit findings contained in the institution's Management Reports as the
basis on which the audit conclusions outlined in the Audit Reports have been reached by the Auditor General.
Accordingly, Management is compiling Comprehensive Action Plans to address the shortcomings contained in
the said Management Reports. The responsibility of the Audit Committee is to confirm the completeness of
these Audit Action Plans and more significantly to monitor and appraise their implementation.

4.5 Quality of in-year management and monthly / quarterly reports
submitted in terms of the PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act

The Auditor General reports that regular, accurate and complete financial reports that were supported and
evidenced by reliable information were not prepared throughout the year. Quarterly financial statements
were prepared for the Department. In respect of the PMTE, only interim (half-yearly) financial statements
were prepared and that these were not in compliance with the requisite GRAP Standards.

The challenge therefore in the 2015/16 financial year is to at least compile quarterly and consistent financial
statements that are substantially compliant with the relevant accounting standards. The ultimate objective is
to produce monthly financial statements.

The Committee remains critical of the quality of the in-year Performance Management Reports presented
to the Audit Committee. Specific recommendations for improvement in this regard have been made to
Management throughout the financial year.
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Notwithstanding the qualification of the PMTE's financial statements, it is a considered view of the Committee, that
qualitatively the PMTE has improved the quality and completeness of its financial statements when comparing the
qualifying items of prior year to those of the current year. In the prior year, the PMTE was qualified with respect to

following major three categories of financial statements’ headline components:

. Incompleteness of the R34bn worth of Irregular Expenditure;

. Incompleteness of Operating Leases as they related to Operating Lease Assets and Receivables as well as
relating to Operating Lease Expenditure and Associated Liabilities an area with a pervasive impact on the
PMTE's financial statements ; and

. The accruals balance as a whole.
In the year under review the qualifying areas are:

o The incompleteness of property maintenance accruals and the matching expense.

. The incompleteness of municipal services accruals as well as the matching completeness of revenue accrual
given that such municipal services ordinarily would have been recovered as revenue from the relevant client
departments.

o The validity of property rates expenditure as they could not be linked to the asset register.

The key milestone in the current year was the resolution of the completeness and accuracy of Operating Leases. As
reported by the Auditor General, the Department (the Main Vote) has continued to maintain an unqualified audit
report.

On the emphasis of matters the Auditor General reported on the inadequacy of the Performance Management
Information wherein in particular the Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP) was identified as having
inadequate portfolio of evidence to substantiate the reported level of performance. This matter was reported as

such in the prior year.

Under item 4.5 above, the Committee has commented on the in-year Performance Management Systems. The
Auditor General identified material misstatements in the annual performance report which were subsequently
corrected by Management resulting in the reported Annual Performance Information being fairly stated for the year

under review.

The foregoing indicates that Management's focus now and henceforth should to be on enhancing the effectiveness,
the efficiency and the transparency of day-to-day processes, information systems (manual and technology based),
internal control systems and the matching accounting systems to work towards enhancing the accuracy, timeliness
and reliability of performance management information as well as the matching financial information prepared in

accordance with the required accounting standards.
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The Internal Audit Unit continues to improve its output, by focusing on continuous professional education of
existing staff as well as the recruitment of temporal and permanent resources to increase the capacity of the Unit.
It is the view of this Committee that the capacity of the Internal Audit Unit be further resourced with particular
reference to additional permanent resources.

The Committee reports that there are no unresolved issues that have been brought to the Committee’s attention
in the year under review. The Committee further reports that it had robust engagements with the Auditor General

wherein all areas of concern have been conclusively addressed.

The Committee reports that while there is room for improvement; the institution has substantially improved the
quality, completeness and relevance of the 2015/16 Annual Performance Plan read with; and largely reflective
of the Departmental Strategic Plan. Accordingly, the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) were considered to be
substantially adequate and reflective of the strategic vision of the institution. Management has committed to
continuously improve this particular area.

We report that for 2015/16 planning cycle and for the first time a separate Annual Performance Plan with the
matching Key Performance Indicators was prepared in respect of the PMTE in accordance with the operationalization
of the trading entity effected through the transfer of property and infrastructure construction related functions.

Previously, a single document was prepared.

The Committee believes that the institution has the following key challenges in respect of the 2015/16 financial year:

. Completing the valuation of immovable assets such that these assets are fairly stated in the PMTE's financial
statements at year-end;

. Maintaining the results of the audit outcomes on Operating Leases;

. Complete disclosure, substantial reduction, working towards elimination of the occurrence of Irregular
Expenditure;

. Recruitment of professionals within the areas of property management, facilities management as well as
construction project management in the course of professionalising the PMTE;

. Improving the effectiveness and efficiency of internal control systems, accounting systems and information
systems of the institution.
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10. Overall observation

The conclusion of the Committee is that in relation to prior year, the institution has addressed the majority of
the strategic performance areas, key of which were to stabilise the PMTE and the stabilisation of the Financial
Management System. As stated elsewhere in the body of this report, a number of key challenges and deliverables

remain ahead of the institution.

It is a considered opinion of this Committee that overall, the level of governance at the institution is stabilising and
that in relation to prior year; there has been qualitative improvement in quality of the financial information, the
quality of performance information and improved planning in respect of the 2015/16 financial year has been realised.

Chairperson™ Audit Committee
31 August 2015
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4.1 Overview of human resource information

The Human Resource (HR) functions in the Department are critical in building a team of working professionals. These

include recruitment, skills development, performance appraisals and employee wellness.

During the period under review the Department has achieved the number of significant results. The revised HR Plan
includes a Recruitment Plan and a Skills Development Plan, to capacitate its core business. The Units involved include,
Projects, Professional Services, Property and Facilities Management, Asset Management and Supply Chain Management. In
addressing the vacancy rate, the Department filled 302 positions of the 318 positions advertised. This translated to 95%
of the targets met. | 275 beneficiaries participated in the Department’s Skills Development Programme with 189 Young
Professionals, 582 interns, 249 learners, 200 artisan trainees and 55 Management trainees. Through these initiatives,
emphasis was placed on various designated groups such the women and the youth. The Department is committed to

continue to contribute to the broader National Skills Programme.

4.2 Personnel related expenditure

The following tables summarises the final audited personnel related expenditure by programme and by salary bands. In
particular, it provides an indication of the following:

° amount spent on personnel

. amount spent on salaries, overtime, homeowner's allowances and medical aid.

Table 4.2.1 Personnel expenditure by programme

Programme TotalVoted Compensation Training Compensation Average
Expenditure = of Employees = Expenditure = of Employees Compensation
(R’000) Expenditure (R’000) as % of Total = of Employees
(R’000) Expenditure Cost per
Employee
(R’000)
Administration | 174 805 289 294 9 400 248 283
Immovable Asset Management 2758 122 [ 182126 4842 42,9 262
Expanded Public Works Programme [ 925 580 112 425 173 58 523
Property & Construction Industry 31 363 7930 0 253 721
Policy
Auxiliary & Associates Services 132 168 0 0 00 0
Total 6 022 038 1591775 14 415 26,5 276
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Salary Bands Compensation Percentage of Average Number of
of Employees Total Personnel Compensation Employees
Cost (R’000) Cost for Cost per
Department Employee
(R’000)
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 134 004 84 127 623 1050
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 199 096 12,5 167 872 1186
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 363 881 22,9 286 746 1269
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 589 126 37,0 587 950 1002
Senior management (Levels |3-16) 158 678 65,4 871 856 182
Contract (Levels [-2) 30983 1,9 39 620 782
Contract (Levels 3-5) 8821 0,6 99 109 89
Contract (Levels 6-8) 30413 1,9 273 988 [T
Contract (Levels 9-12) 36 368 30 577277 63
Contract (Levels 13-16) 34 473 22 840 795 41
Periodical Remuneration 5242 03 5002 1048
Abnormal Appointment 692 0,0 19219 36
TOTAL 1591775 100,0 232 071 6859
* NB 6859 includes filled post as well as periodical and abnormal appointments.
Table 4.2.3 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by programme
Programme Salaries Salaries Overtime Overtime HOA HOA as% Medical Medical Total
(R’000) as%of (R000) as%of (R000) ofPerson- Ass. Ass.as % Personnel
Personnel Personnel nel Cost (R’000) of Person- Cost per
Cost Cost nel Cost Pro-
gramme
(R’000)
Programme | 242513 832 3525 12 8989 3,1 7786 27 | 289294
Administration
Programme 2 875714 74,1 15391 1,3 45 583 39 57 542 49 1182126
Immovable Asset
Management
Programme 91 668 81,5 0 00 3819 34 3046 27 112 425
3 Expanded
Public Works
Programme
Programme 4 6 304 79,5 0 00 194 24 170 2,1 7930
Property &
Construction
Industry Policy
TOTAL 1216 199 76,3 18916 1,2 58 585 3,7 68 544 4,3 1591775

* NB Salaries referred to in table 4.2.3 and 4.2.4 includes more items than just basic salary e.g. wages, service bonus,

periodic, etc.




Department of Public Works

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

Table 4.2.4 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by salary band

Salary bands Salaries = Salaries Over- Over- HOA HOA as Medical Medical Total
(R’000) as % of time timeas (R’000) % of Per- Ass. Ass.as % Person-
Person- (R’000) % of Per- sonnel (R’000) of Per- nel Cost
nel Cost sonnel Cost sonnel  per Sala-
Cost Cost ry Band
(R’000)
Lower skilled 87 599 654 1 191,00 09 [l 087 83 14917 [ 134 004
(Levels 1-2)
Skilled (Levels 129 959 653 827400 4,2 13023 6.5 15792 79 199 096
3-5)
Highly skilled 264 379 727 | 647700 1,8 12796 35 19616 54 | 36388l
production
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled 462 771 786 250900 04 12 766 22 15 341 26 | 589126
supervision
(Levels 9-12)
Senior 129 271 81,5 30,00 - 7 629 48 2 609 1,6 158 678
management
(Levels 13-16)
Contract (Levels 30983 100,0 12,00 - 0 - 0 - 30983
[-2)
Contract (Levels 8 668 98,3 282,00 32 0 - 0 - 8 821
3-5)
Contract (Levels 30 341 99.8 77,00 03 I - 33 0l 30413
6-8)
Contract (Levels 34967 96,1 64,00 02 475 1,3 76 02 36 368
9-12)
Contract (Levels 32024 929 0 - 797 23 160 05 34 473
[3-16)
Periodical 4 545 86,7 0 - 0 - 0 - 5242
Remuneration
Abnormal 692 100,0 0 - 0 - 0 - 692
Appointment
TOTAL 1216 199 76,4 18 916,00 1,2 58 584 3,7 68 544 4,3 1591775
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4.3 Employment and Vacancies

The tables in this section summarise the position with regard to employment and vacancies. The following tables summarise
the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy rate, and whether there are any staff
that are additional to the establishment. This information is presented in terms of three key variables:

. programme

. salary band

. critical occupations

Table 4.3.1 Employment and vacancies by programme

Programme Number of Number of Number of = Vacancy Rate Number of
Posts Posts Filled Posts Vacant Posts Filled
Additional

to the

Establishment

Programme | DPW administration, |'184 1029 155 13,1 542
Programme 2 DPW immovable 5895 4520 1375 23,3 552
asset management,

Programme 3 DPW Expanded 264 215 49 18,6 6
Public Works Programme,

Programme 4 DPW prop & cons 24 Il I3 542

industry policy reg,

TOTAL 7367 5775 1592 21,6 1ol

Table 4.3.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band

Salary Band Number of Number of Number of = Vacancy Rate Number of

Posts Posts Filled Posts Vacant Posts Filled

Additional

to the

Establishment
Lower skilled (Levels [-2) 1590 1050 540 34 3
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1466 ['186 280 19,1 |
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 1665 1269 396 23,8 3
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 1330 1002 328 24,7 12
Senior management (Levels |3-16) 230 182 48 209 5
Contract (Levels [-2) 782 782 0 0 778
Contract (Levels 3-5) 89 89 0 0 87
Contract (Levels 6-8) 11 [ 0 0 10
Contract (Levels 9-12) 63 63 0 0 62
Contract (Levels |3-16) 41 41 0 0 40
TOTAL 7367 5775 1592 21,6 110l
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Table 4.3.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations

Critical Occupations Number of Number of Number of = Vacancy Rate Number of
Posts Posts Filled Posts Vacant Posts Filled
Additional
to the
Establishment
Architects town and traffic planners 56 43 I3 232 I3
Chemical and physical science [4 9 5 357 0
technicians
Civil engineering technicians 31 10 21 67,7 |
Electrical and electronics engineering 22 14 8 36,4 10
technicians
Engineers and related professionals 258 152 106 41,1 23
Mechanical engineering technicians |7 3 14 82,4 0
Quantity surveyors & related prof 36 26 10 27,8 2
TOTAL 434 257 177 40,8 49

4.4 Job Evaluation

Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in his or her
organisation. In terms of the Regulations all vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher must be evaluated before they are
filled. The following table summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year under review. The table
also provides statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded.

Table 4.4.1

Salary Band Number  Number % of Posts Number % of Number % of

of Posts of posts Evaluated of Posts Upgraded of Posts Down-

Evaluated Upgraded Posts Down- graded
Evaluated graded Posts Eval-

uated
Contract (Levels |-2) 1590 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 3-5) 782 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 6-8) 89 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 9-12) 11 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Band A) 63 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Band B) 24 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Band C) 8 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Band D) 8 0 0 0 0 0 0
Lower skilled (Levels [-2) | 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 466 2 0,1 2 100 0 0
Highly skilled production 1665 2 0,1l 2 100 0 0

(Levels 6-8)
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Salary Band Number  Number % of Posts Number % of Number % of
of Posts of posts Evaluated of Posts Upgraded of Posts Down-
Evaluated Upgraded Posts Down- graded
Evaluated graded Posts Eval-
uated
Highly skilled supervision 1330 395 29,7 273 69,1 0 0
(Levels 9-12)
Senior Management Service 169 0 0 0 0 0 0
Band A
Senior Management Service 48 0 0 0 0 0 0
Band B
Senior Management Service 10 0 0 0 0 0 0
Band C
Senior Management Service 3 0 0 0 0 0 0
Band D
TOTAL 7367 399 5,4 277 69,4 0 0

The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their post

being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of posts upgraded since not all employees are

automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the posts upgraded could also be vacant.

Table 4.4.2 Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total
Female 89 0 2 4 95
Male 99 0 0 4 103
Total 188 0 2 8 198
Employees with a Disability 0 0 0 0 0

The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration bands exceeded the grade determined by job

evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.

Table 4.4.3 Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation by occupation

Occupation Number of  Job Evaluation Remuneration Reason for No of
Employees Level Level Deviation Employees in
Department
None 0 0 0 0 0
None 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0
Percentage of Total Employment 0 0 0 0 0

The following table summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.
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Table 4.4.4 Profile of employees who have salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0
Employees with a Disability 0 0 0 0 0

4.5 Employment Changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates provide an indication

of trends in the employment profile of the department. The following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by

salary band and critical occupations.

Table 4.5.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band

Salary Band Employment Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate
at Beginning %
of Period
(April 2014)
Lower skilled (Levels |-2) 1653 513 409 24,7
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1335 76 154 1.5
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 1423 19 76 53
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 1082 29 53 4,9
Senior Management Service Band A 123 12 8 6,5
Senior Management Service Band B 47 4 4 85
Senior Management Service Band C 9 4 I I,
Senior Management Service Band D 3 | 0 0
Total 5675 658 705 12,4
Table 4.5.2 Annual turnover rates by critical occupation
Occupation Employment Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate
at Beginning %
of Period
(April 2014)
Architects town and traffic planners 42 | 2 48
Chemical and physical science technicians 10 0 0 0
Civil engineering technicians Il 0 | 9,1
Electrical and electronics engineering technicians 4 [l | 25
Engineers and related professionals 158 8 12 7,6
Mechanical engineering technicians 2 0 0 0
Quantity surveyors & related professionals not class 25 | 0 0
elsewhere
TOTAL 252 21 16 6,3
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Notes: The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table. The table below
identifies the major reasons why staff left the department.

Table 4.5.3 Reasons why staff left the department

Termination Type Number Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Resignations Employment
Death 44 62 08
Resignation 193 274 34
Expiry of contract 329 46,7 58
Transfers 2 03 0
Discharged due to ill health 3 04 0,
Dismissal-misconduct 10 |4 02
Retirement 124 17,6 2,2
TOTAL 705 100 12,4
Terminations as % of Employment
12,4
Table 4.5.4 Promotions by critical occupation
Occupation Employment Promotions to Salary Level Progressions Notch
at Beginning another Salary Promotions to another progressions
of Period Level as a % of Notch within as a % of

(April 2014) Employment  Salary Level = Employment
Architects town and traffic planners 42 | 24 I3 31
Chemical and physical science 10 0 0 6 60
technicians
Civil engineering technicians Il 0 0 3 27,3
Electrical and electronics engineering 4 0 0 | 25
technicians
Engineers and related professionals 158 3 1,9 99 62,7
Mechanical engineering technicians 2 | 50 0 0
Quantity surveyors & related prof 25 0 0 20 80
TOTAL 252 5 2 142 56,3
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Table 4.5.5 Promotions by salary band

Salary Band Employment Promotions to Salary Level Progressions Notch
at Beginning another Salary Promotions to another progressions
of Period Level as a % of Notch within as a % of
(April 2014) Employment  Salary Level = Employment
Lower skilled (Levels -2) 1653 3 0,2 876 53
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1335 4 03 [159 86,8
Highly skilled production (Levels 1423 41 2,9 [168 82,1
6-8)
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 1082 44 4,1 808 74,7
9-12)
Senior management (Levels |3-16) 182 8 44 33 18,1
TOTAL 5675 100 1,8 4044 71,3

4.6 Employment Equity

Table 4.6.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following
occupational categories as at 31 March 2015

Occupational Categories Male Female Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior officials and 73 3 3 12 38 2 4 6 141
managers
Professionals 230 31 23 96 211 8 2 23 624
Technicians and associate 520 24 6 35 754 44 9 65 1457
professionals
Clerks 245 25 | 28 431 29 I 82 852
Service and sales workers 79 7 0 3 44 I 0 0 134
Craft and related trades 125 47 8 64 31 0 0 0 275
workers
Plant and machine operators 43 10 4 0 6 0 65
and assemblers
Elementary occupations 743 216 7 I5 ['106 130 4 4 2225
Other 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2
TOTAL 2058 363 52 253 2623 215 30 181 5775
Employees with disabilities 24 9 | 18 Il 2 0 6 71
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Table 4.6.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following
occupational bands on 31 March 2015

Occupational Bands Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 5 | 0 I | 0 I 0 9
Senior Management 73 I 6 24 52 2 4 Il 173
Professionally qualified and 425 46 26 125 322 14 6 38 1002

experienced specialists and
mid-management, Permanent

Skilled technical and 373 60 4 65 597 36 [l 123 1269
academically qualified workers,
junior management, supervisors,

foremen

Semi-skilled and discretionary 509 205 7 20 363 78 3 1186
decision making

Unskilled and defined decision 317 40 4 2 623 59 3 2 1050
making

Contract (Top Management) 2 0 I 2 3 0 | 0 9
Contract (Senior Management) 18 | 0 3 8 0 0 2 32
Contract (Professionally 24 2 4 9 22 2 0 0 63
qualified)

Contract (Skilled technical) 49 0 0 0 59 2 I 0 [
Contract (Semi-skilled) 36 I 0 2 47 [ | I 89
Contract (Unskilled) 227 6 0 0 526 21 | I 782
TOTAL 2058 363 52 253 2623 215 30 181 5775

Table 4.6.3 Recruitment

Occupational Bands Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
Senior Management 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Professionally qualified and 5 2 0 I 6 0 0 0 14

experienced specialists and
mid-management

Skilled technical and 2 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 8
academically qualified workers,
junior management, supervisors,

foremen

Unskilled and defined decision 3 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 12
making

Contract (Top Management) | 0 0 I | 0 I 0 4
Contract (Senior Management) | 8 I 0 | 2 0 0 I 13

Page 149




Department of Public Works

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

Occupational Bands Male Female Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Contract (Professionally 7 0 3 2 3 0 0 0 I5
qualified)
Contract (Skilled technical) 4 0 0 0 6 0 I 0 I
Contract (Semi-skilled) 36 I 0 2 35 I | 0 76
Contract (Unskilled) 169 8 0 0 306 I5 I 2 501
TOTAL 239 12 3 7 374 16 4 3 658
Employees with disabilities I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I

Table 4.6.4 Promotion (Includes promotion to salary level and progressions to another notch within
the Salary Level)

Occupational Bands Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |
Senior Management 9 0 3 I3 6 0 0 6 37
Professionally qualified and 350 38 23 101 276 12 6 31 837

experienced specialists and
mid-management

Skilled technical and 343 56 3 58 562 34 [l 121 1188
academically qualified workers,
junior management, supervisors,

foremen

Semi-skilled and discretionary 485 203 4 19 372 74 3 16l
decision making

Unskilled and defined decision 252 32 4 2 440 41 3 0 774
making

Contract (Top Management) 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0 I
Contract (Senior Management) 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Contract (Professionally 4 0 0 4 6 I 0 0 I5
qualified)

Contract (Skilled technical) 6 0 0 0 4 I 0 0 2|
Contract (Semi-skilled) 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Contract (Unskilled) 4 0 0 0 97 4 0 0 105
TOTAL 1458 329 37 198 1773 167 21 161 4144
Employees with disabilities 22 9 0 I5 9 2 0 5 62
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Occupational Bands Male Female Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White
Senior Management 2 0 0 2 | 0 0 0 5
Professionally qualified and 12 2 0 [4 Il 0 0 4 43
experienced specialists and
mid-management
Skilled technical and I5 2 2 18 3 0 14 55
academically qualified workers,
junior management, supervisors,
foremen
Semi-skilled and discretionary 47 I6 2 68 8 0 0 [42
decision making
Unskilled and defined decision 19 0 0 0 20 0 41
making
Contract (Top Management) 0 0 0 0 0 0 | 0 I
Contract (Senior Management) 3 0 0 | 2 0 0 | 7
Contract (Professionally 4 0 0 2 4 0 0 0 10
qualified)
Contract (Skilled technical) 10 | 0 I 9 0 0 0 2|
Contract (Semi-skilled) 3 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 12
Contract (Unskilled) 87 5 0 0 255 20 0 I 368
TOTAL 202 26 2 24 397 32 2 20 705
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 I 0 0 0 I 2
Table 4.6.6 Disciplinary action
Occupational Bands Male Female Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White
TOTAL 52 7 0 5 22 I I 4 92
Table 4.6.7 Skills development
Occupational Categories Male Female Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White
Legislators, Senior Officials and 67 I 3 7 49 | I 7 136
Managers
Professionals 205 Il 9 46 215 4 6 24 520
Technicians and Associate 33 I 0 | 20 0 0 I 56
Professionals
Clerks 217 2 | 9 336 Il I 34 611
Service and Sales Workers 8 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 12




Department of Public Works

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

Occupational Categories Male Female Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Skilled Agriculture and Fishery |7 | 0 0 4 0 0 0 22
Workers

Craft and related Trades 42 8 0 7 8 0 0 0 65
Workers

Plant and Machine Operators 26 0 0 0 16 0 0 43
and Assemblers

Elementary Occupations 135 0 0 2 240 3 I I 382
TOTAL 750 24 13 72 892 19 9 68 1847
Employees with disabilities 8 0 0 4 6 0 0 2 20

4.7 Performance Rewards

To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during the year under

review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, and disability), salary bands and critical occupations.

Table 4.7.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability

Demographics Number of Total Percentage Cost (R’000) Average
Beneficiaries = Employment of Total Cost per
Employment Beneficiary
(R)

African, Female 1467 2612 562 7 264 4951
African, Male [ 189 2034 58,5 5989 5037
Asian, Female 20 30 66,7 [51 7557
Asian, Male 36 51 70,6 367 10 186
Coloured, Female 152 213 714 646 4247
Coloured, Male 235 354 664 891 3793
Total Blacks, Female 1639 2855 574 8 060 4918
Total Blacks, Male 1460 2439 599 7247 4964
White, Female 149 175 85,1 | 324 8 887
White, Male 148 235 63 I 521 10 280
Employees with a disability 34 71 479 178 5248
TOTAL 3430 5775 59,4 18 332 5345
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Table 4.7.2 Performance Rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service

Salary Band Number of Total Percentage Cost (R’000) Average
Beneficiaries = Employment of Total Cost per
Employment Beneficiary
(R’000)
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 797 1832 43,5 | 698 2
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1050 1275 824 2722 3
Highly skilled production (Levels 901 1380 65,3 5 406 6
6-8)
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 680 1065 63,8 8471 12
9-12)
Periodical Remuneration 0 1048 0 0 0
Abnormal Appointment 0 36 0 0 0
TOTAL 3428 6636 51,7 18 297 5
Table 4.7.3 Performance Rewards by critical occupation
Critical Occupations Number of Total % of Total Cost (R’000) Average
Beneficiaries = Employment Employment Cost per
Beneficiary
(R’000)
Architects town and traffic planners 19 43 44,2 284 I5
Chemical and physical science 6 9 66,7 40 7
technicians
Civil engineering technicians 5 10 50 45 9
Electrical and electronics engineering [ [4 7,1 I5 I5
technicians
Engineers and related professionals 74 152 48,7 904 12
Quantity surveyors & rela prof not 12 26 46,2 156 I3
class elsewhere
TOTAL 117 254 46,1 1 444 12

Notes: The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table.

Table 4.7.4 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior Management Service

SMS Band Number of Total Percentage = Cost (R’000) Average % of SMS
Beneficiaries Employment of Total Cost per Woage Bill
Employment Beneficiary
(R’000)

Band A 2 156 13 36 18 0,03
Band B 0 49 0 0 0 0,00
Band C 0 14 0 0 0 0,00
Band D 0 4 0 0 0 0,00
TOTAL 2 223 0,9 36 18 0,03
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No SMS was paid performance rewards. The two SMS reflected in the table was promoted from Deputy Director to
Director during the 2014/2015 financial year and received their performance awards (on DD Level) after promotion to
Director.

4.8 Foreign Workers

The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the department in terms of salary band and major

occupation.

Table 4.8.1 Foreign workers by salary band

Salary Band I April 2014 31 March 2015 Change
Number %age of Total Number % of Total Number % Change
Lower skilled (Levels |-2) | 8,3 | 7,1 0 0
Highly skilled supervision 6 50 6 429 0 0
(Levels 9-12)
Senior management 3 25 2 14,3 - -50
(Levels |3-16)
Contract (Levels 3-5) | 83 | 7,1 0 0
Contract (Levels 9-12) 0 0 3 21,4 3 150
Contract (Levels 13-16) I 8,3 | 7,1 0 0
TOTAL 12 100 14 100 2 100
Table 4.8.2 Foreign workers by major occupation
Major Occupation 1 April 2013 31 March 2014 Change
Number %age of Total Number % of Total Number % Change
Elementary occupations 2 16,7 2 14,3 0 0
Professionals and managers 10 83,3 12 85,7 2 100
TOTAL 12 100 14 100 2 100
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The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service. The

following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated cost of the

leave is also provided.

Table 4.9.1 Sick leave

Salary Band Total % Days = Number % ofTotal Average Estimat- Number
Days with of Em- Employ- Days per ed Cost of days
Medical ployees ees Employee (R’000) with
Certifica- using Sick using Sick Medical
tion Leave Leave Certifica-
tion
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 5992 85,0 742 17,1 8 2451 5094
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 7260 81,6 896 20,7 8 3826 5927
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 9050 752 1125 259 8 9313 6804
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 5895 775 812 18,7 7 12176 4566
9-12)
Senior management (Levels |3-16) 932 82,7 135 31 7 3088 771
Contract (Levels 1-2) 1771 584 431 99 4 320 1035
Contract (Levels 3-5) 158 67,1 43 1,0 4 90 106
Contract (Levels 6-8) 515 590 97 22 5 488 304
Contract (Levels 9-12) 255 74,9 45 1.0 6 498 191
Contract (Levels 13-16) 39 87,2 12 03 3 143 34
TOTAL 31867 77,9 4338 100 7 32393 24832
Table 4.9.2 Disability leave (temporary and permanent)
Salary Band Total % Days Num- % ofTotal Average Estimat- Total
Days with ber of Employ- Daysper ed Cost number
Medical Employ- eesusing Employee (R’000) of Em-
Certifica- ees using Disability ployees
tion Disability Leave
Leave
Lower skilled (Levels [-2) 657 100 25 1,4 26 266 1832
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1204 100 27 2,1 45 652 1275
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 1457 100 39 28 37 | 556 1380
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 426 100 12 [ 36 917 1065
9-12)
Senior management (Levels |3-16) 246 100 8 36 31 809 223
TOTAL 3990 100 11 1,9 36 4200 5775
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The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the

PSCBC in 2000 requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of

termination of service.

Table 4.9.3 Annual Leave

Salary Band Total Days Taken = Average days per Number of
Employee Employees who
took leave
Lower skilled (Levels |-2) 22087 21 1073
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 31703 24 1310
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 30332 23 1347
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 24299 23 1064
Senior management (Levels |3-16) 4408 24 187
Contract (Levels [-2) 6926 10 693
Contract (Levels 3-5) 490 8 62
Contract (Levels 6-8) 1825 14 129
Contract (Levels 9-12) 891 I3 70
Contract (Levels |3-16) 267 8 33
TOTAL 123227 21 5968
Table 4.9.4 Capped leave
Salary Band Total days of  Average number Average capped Number of
capped leave of days taken leave per Employees who
taken per employee employee as at took Capped
31 December leave
2014

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 18 3 37 6
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 357 9 62 41
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 161 6 37 26
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 95 8 56 12
Senior management (Levels |3-16) 34 |7 51 2
TOTAL 665 8 53 87

Page 156




Department of Public Works

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

The following table summarise payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

Table 4.9.5 Leave pay-outs

Reason Total Amount Number of Average
(R’000) Employees Payment per
Employee (R)
Capped leave pay-outs on termination of service for 7986 327 24 422
2014/15
Current leave pay-outs on termination of service for | 682 178 9 449
2014/15
TOTAL 9 668 505 19 145

4.10 HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion

Programmes

Table 4.10.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high
risk of contracting HIV & related diseases (if any)

Key steps taken to reduce the risk

Workers in the construction industry are relatively at risk.
Migratory labour force and labour camps commonly employed
by the industry contributes to the spread of HIV and STl in the
industry and the communities in which it does business.

As custodian and main player in the construction sector, the
National Department of Public Works (DPW) developed an
HIV/AIDS Strategy for the construction sector to protect and
support the industry’s workforce

Table 4.10.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (tick the applicable boxes and

provide the required information)

Question Yes

No Details, if yes

I. Has the department designated a member of the Yes
SMS to implement the provisions contained in Part
VI E of Chapter | of the Public Service Regulations,
20017 If so, provide her/his name and position.

Mr RM Mahlatjie: Director: Organisational
Development

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit Yes
or have you designated specific staff members to
promote health and wellbeing of your employees?
If so, indicate the number of employees who are
involved in this task and the annual budget that is
available for this purpose.

Health & Wellness (HIV Advocacy and EHWV. Five
staff members. (Budget = R289 000.00pa excluding
compensation budget)

3. Has the department introduced an Employee Yes
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for
your employees? If so, indicate the key elements/

services of the programme.

Responsive Programs Addressing psycho-social
health and wellness issues are in place
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indicators to monitor & evaluate the impact of
your health promotion programme? If so, list these
measures/indicators.

Question Yes No Details, if yes

4. Has the department established (a) committee(s) Yes A department-wide committee constituted by HR

as contemplated in Part VI E5 (e) of Chapter representatives from | | regional offices established.

| of the Public Service Regulations, 20017 If so,

please provide the names of the members of

the committee and the stakeholder(s) that they

represent.

5. Has the department reviewed the employment Yes The departmental HIV and AIDS Policy is articulate

policies and practices of your department to ensure on issues of human rights and fair labour practices.

that these do not unfairly discriminate against

employees on the basis of their HIV status? If so, list

the employment policies/practices so reviewed.

6. Has the department introduced measures to Yes Stigma Mitigation programme is in place. Key

protect HIV-positive employees or those perceived elements include:-Knowledge, Attitudes and

to be HIV-positive from discrimination? If so, list the Practices surveys; Dialogues and Peer education.

key elements of these measures.

7. Does the department encourage its employees to Yes The department collaborates with GEMS and

undergo Voluntary Counselling and Testing? If so, list NGO:s in providing on-site opportunities for health

the results that you have achieved. screening, HIV Counselling and Testing and TB
screening. 2805 screenings for glucose, cholesterol
and blood pressure conducted. 1361 HIV
Counselling and Testing done.

8. Has the department developed measures/ Yes Utilization rate of Health and Wellness services.

*  Number of employees attending wellness eve
nts.

* Number of wellness events, workshops and
training conducted.

*  Sick leave utilization (reduction).

* Number of employees living openly with HIV

4.11 Labour Relations

Table 4.11.1 Collective agreements

Subject Matter

Date

None
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The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department for the year under

review.

Table 4.11.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number Percentage (%) of Total
Total
Dismissals 8 87 8
Suspension 5 54 5
Demotion 3 33 3
Final written warnings 16 |74 16
Written warnings 49 533 49
Verbal Written Warning 4 43 4
Corrective counselling 5 54 5
Cases dismissed | [ I
Not guilty | L I
TOTAL 92 100,0 92

Table 4.11.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings

Type of misconduct Number % of Total Total
Bribes or commits fraud, corruption and Nepotism 3 33 3
Theft | [ I
Absent from work without reason or permission 16 |74 6
Failure to comply with procurement procedures, 5 54 5

unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Displayed disrespectful, disgraceful and unacceptable 12 13,0 12
behaviour

Assault 4 4.3 4
Misuse, abuse or unauthorized use of state property 6 6,5 6
Negligence / Dereliction of duties 25 2772 25
Failure to carry out lawful instruction/ insubordination 10 10,9 10

Gives false statement/ evidence | [ |

Drinking on duty or under the influence of intoxicating [ L I

substance
Ineffective and poor work management 3 33 3
Sleeping on duty 3 33 3
Failure to follow the leave directive and the Code of 2 2,2 2
Conduct
TOTAL 92 100,0 92
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Table 4.11.4 Grievances logged

Number of grievances addressed Number % of Total Total
Not resolved 4 34 4
Resolved 12 96,6 12
TOTAL 116 100,0 116

Table 4.11.5 Disputes logged

Number of disputes addressed Number % of total Number
Upheld 9 56,3 9
Dismissed 7 43,8 7
Total 16 100,0 16

Table 4.11.6 Strike actions

Strike Actions
Total number of person working days lost 1609
Total cost(R’) of working days lost 1 149 339.40
Amount (R’) recovered as a resuft of no work no pay 768 894.28

Table 4.11.7 Precautionary suspensions

Precautionary Suspensions
Number of people suspended 3
Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 3
Average number of days suspended 90
Cost (R’) of suspensions R185 880.00
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4.12 Skills development

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development.

Table 4.12.1 Training needs identified

Occupational Categories Gender Employment Skills Other forms Total
Programmes of training
& other short (Young
courses Professionals,
Management
Trainees, Skills
Development
Learners and
Interns)
Legislators, senior officials and Female 50 84 48 132
managers
Male 9l 88 56 144
Professionals Female 244 280 84 364
Male 280 |64 72 236
Technicians and associate Female 872 208 68 276
professionals
Male 585 184 32 216
Clerks Female 553 268 76 344
Male 299 168 64 232
Service and sales workers Female 45 6 8 24
Male 89 32 16 48
Craft and related trades workers Female 31 8 4 12
Male 244 12 8 20
Plant and machine operators and Female 8 4 4 8
assemblers
Male 57 6 8 24
Elementary occupations Female 1244 20 8 28
Male 981 24 16 40
Gender sub totals Female 3049 888 300 1188
Male 2726 688 272 960
Total 5775 1576 572 2148
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Table 4.12.2 Training provided for the period

Occupational Categories Gender Employment Skills Other forms Total
Programmes of training
& other short (Young
courses Professionals,
Management
Trainees, Skills
Development
Learners and
Interns)
Legislators, senior officials and Female 50 51 7 58
managers
Male 91 71 7 78
Professionals Female 244 173 76 249
Male 280 195 76 271
Technicians and associate Female 872 18 3 21
professionals
Male 585 29 6 35
Clerks Female 553 324 58 382
Male 299 204 25 229
Service and sales workers Female 45 4 0 4
Male 89 8 0 8
Craft and related trades workers Female 31 8 4 12
Male 244 60 I5 57
Plant and machine operators and Female 8 |7 0 17
assemblers
Male 57 26 0 26
Elementary occupations Female 1244 243 2 245
Male 98| I35 2 137
Gender sub totals Female 3049 838 150 988
Male 2726 728 131 841
Total 5775 1566 281 1847
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4.13 Injury on duty

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 4.13.1 Injury on duty

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total
Required basic medical attention only 34 773
Temporary Total Disablement 8 18,2
Permanent Disablement | 23
Fatal I 23
Total 44 100
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Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament

Introduction

| have audited the financial statements of the Department of Public Works set out on pages 209 to 212, which
comprise the appropriation statement, statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement of
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well

as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the Modified Cash Standard prescribed by the National Treasury and the requirements of the
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. | of 1999) (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue
Act of South Africa, 2013 (Act No. 10 of 2014) (DoRA) and for such internal control as the accounting authority
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit
in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical
requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

6.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Department

of Public Works as at 31 March 2015 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in
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accordance with the Modified Cash Standard prescribed by the National Treasury and the requirements of the
PFMA and DoRA.

Emphasis of matters

7. ldraw attention to the matters below. Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Immovable assets

Restatement of corresponding figures

8. Asdisclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2014 have been restated
as a result of errors discovered during the financial year ended 31 March 2015 in the financial statements of the
Department of Public Works at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2014.

Material impairments

9. As disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements, material impairments to the amount of R52 971 000 were
provided for as a result of irrecoverable receivables.

Material underspending on the vote

0. As disclosed in the appropriation statement, the department has materially underspent the budget on Programme 2:
Immovable Asset Management, Sub-Programme | — Infrastructure (Public VWorks) — to the amount of R70 638 000.
Consequently, certain planned infrastructure projects were not completed

Additional matter
I'l. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter
Unaudited supplementary schedules

I2. The supplementary information set out on pages XX to XX does not form part of the financial statements and is
presented as additional information. | have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, | do not express an opinion
thereon

3. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the general notice
issued in terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against
predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, non-compliance
with legislation and internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under
each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, | do not express
an opinion or conclusion on these matters.
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Predetermined objectives

4.

20.

| performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information for the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the department
for the year ended 31 March 2015:

J Programme 2: Immovable Asset Management on pages 79 to 97
. Programme 3: Expanded Public Works Programme (EPVWP): on pages 98 to 99
. Programme 4: Property and Construction Industry Policy Regulation): on pages 100 to 101

| evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.

| evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in
accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was
consistent with the planned programmes. | further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets
were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s

Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

| assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and

complete

The material findings in respect of the selected programmes are as follows:

. Programme 3: Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP)

Reliability of reported performance information

The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance
information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned
objective, indicators and targets. Adequate and reliable corroborating evidence could not be provided for
31% of the targets to assess the reliability of the reported performance information. This was due to the
absence of guidelines on document retention and records management for implementing bodies of the
EPWP programme.

I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information
for Programme 2: Immovable Asset Management and Programme 4: Property and Construction Industry
Policy Regulation.
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Additional matter
| draw attention to the following matter:
Achievement of planned targets

21. Refer to the annual performance report on pages X to X for information on the achievement of planned targets for
the year. This information should be considered in the context of the findings expressed on usefulness and reliability

of the reported performance information in paragraphs 20 to 22 of this report.
Adjustments of material misstatements

22.  We identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing on the reported
performance information for Programme 2: Immovable Asset Management. As management subsequently
corrected the misstatements, we did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the

reported performance information.
Compliance with legislation

23. | performed procedures to obtain evidence that the department had complied with applicable legislation regarding
financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material compliance with specific

matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:
Strategic planning and performance management

24. Effective, efficient and transparent systems of risk management and internal control with respect to performance

information and management was not maintained as required by section 38(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA.

25.  Specific and appropriate information systems to enable the department to monitor the progress made towards
achieving the goals, targets and core objectives as indicated in the strategic plan and annual performance plan were

not implemented and operational as required by Public Service Regulation Part lIIB. | (f) (i) (ii).
Financial statements, performance and annual reports

26.  The financial statements submitted for auditing were not fully prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash
Standard prescribed by the National Treasury as required by section 40(1)(b) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation
18.2. Material misstatements of disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were

subsequently corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.
Internal audit

27. The operational procedure and monitoring mechanisms were not assessed over transfers in terms of the annual

Division of Revenue Act as required by Treasury Regulation 3.2.8.

Page 169




Department of Public Works

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

Human resource management and compensation

28. Funded vacant posts were not filled within 12 months after becoming vacant as prescribed by Public Service
Regulation [/VII/C.1TA2.

Expenditure management

29. Steps taken to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the Public Finance Management

Act and Treasury Regulation 9.1.1, were in certain instance not effective.
Consequence management

30. Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps were not in certain instances taken against officials who made or

permitted irregular expenditure as required by section 38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 9.1.3.
Internal control
31. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and
compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies
that resulted in the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation
included in this report.

Leadership

32. Leadership did not exercise effective oversight with regard to performance reporting and compliance as well as

related internal controls.

33. Leadership was not successful in improving the high vacancy rate in the department, the human resource plan has
been approved and implemented however the approval of the revised organisational structure, taking into account
the transfer of functions from DPW to PMTE, is still pending.

Financial and performance management

34.  Proper record keeping was not always implemented in a timely manner to ensure that complete, relevant and

accurate information was accessible and available to support performance reporting.

35. Regular, accurate and complete financial and performance reports that were supported and evidenced by reliable

information were not prepared throughout the financial year.
36. The review and monitoring of compliance with applicable laws and regulations were ineffective in certain instances.
Governance

37.  Leadership must continue to focus on expanding capacity in the risk management and internal audit units to ensure optimal

functioning in terms of addressing of risks and internal control deficiencies across all locations within the department.
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Investigations

38.  Numerous internal allegations, mainly relating to transgressions with respect to supply chain management, potential

fraud and financial misconduct are being investigated on an ongoing basis.

39.  An ongoing investigation is being conducted to probe the alleged abuse of urgent and emergency procurement
as well the utilisation of sole suppliers. The investigation aims to establish whether there was collusion between
officials and service providers and to determine any reckless spending of funds. The investigation is being conducted
in phases, with 19 investigations underway of which |5 have been finalised and are in the reporting process. The
department is instituting disciplinary action in respect of the finalised reports on an ongoing basis.

40.  Proclamation No. R. 59 of 2013 was approved on 20 December 2013 by the president for the Special Investigating
Unit to probe allegations relating to the prestige project involving the security upgrading of the private residence of
the President situated at Nkandla, KwaZulu-Natal. This report was concluded on 20 August 2014.
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Department of Public Works

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the Year Ended 31 March 2015

3.

Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after
Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and Annexure | (A-G)

to the Annual Financial Statements.

Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted
(after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note | (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.
Detail on payments for financial assets

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial assets to the

Annual Financial Statements.

Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after
Virement):

4.1 Per programme Final Appro- Actual Ex- Variance | Variance as

priation penditure a % of Final

Appropria-

tion

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration [,179,272 1,174,805 4,467 0.4%

Immovable Asset Management 2,829,033 2,758,122 70911 2.5%

Expanded Public Works Programme 1,946,480 1,925,580 20,900 [.1%

Property and Construction Industry Policy 34,336 31,363 2,973 8.7%
Regulations

Auxiliary and Associated Services 132,199 132,168 31 0.0%

Immovable Asset Management 2,829,033 2,758,122 70,911 2.5%

Explanation of variance of 2.5% is due to under spending on payments for capital assets (R7| million) for buildings
and other fixed structure. Underspending is due to payments made under PMTE in March but could not be claimed

by the end of the financial year from the department.
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Final Appro- Actual Ex- Variance @ Variance as
priation penditure a % of Final
Appropria-
tion
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Expanded Public Works Programme 1,946,480 1,925,580 20,900 1.1%

Expenditure variance of |.1% in Programme 3 is due to underspending on compensation of employees (R17 million)
as well as goods and services (R2.8 million), transfers and subsidies to provinces (R1.2 million). Compensation of
employees under spending is due to vacant positions within EPWP that were filled in the latter part of the financial
year. Goods and services was due to committed services, but not delivered before the end of the financial year.
Transfers and subsidies (RI.2 million) under spending is due to withheld payments to two Limpopo Provincial
Government departments not complying to the condition of the 2014 Division of Revenue Act (DoRA).

Property and Construction Industry 34,336 31,363 2,973 8.7%

Policy Regulations

Expenditure variance of 8.7% is due to underspending on compensation of employees (RI million) and goods and
services (R12.7 million) and over spending of RI'| million on transfers and subsidies. Compensation of employees
underspent due to vacant positions which were not filled during the financial year. The budget allocation for
Agrément SA was classified under goods and services and expenditure was processed under transfers and subsidies
resulting in overspending and irregular expenditure of Rl | million under transfers and subsidies and underspending
on goods and services. Irregular expenditure has been reported for payment made to Agrément SA.

4.2 Per economic classification Final Appro- Actual Variance @ Variance as
priation | Expenditure a % of Final
Appropria-
tion

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Current payments
Compensation of employees 1,613,619 1,591,775 21,844 1.4%
Goods and services 1,444,178 1,428,327 15,851 [.1%
Interest and rent on land 9 9 0 0.0%

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities 1,201,520 1,200,256 |,264 0.1%
Departmental agencies and accounts 802,506 802,476 30 0.0%
Public corporations and private enterprises 50,000 50,000 0 0.0%
Foreign governments and international 22,548 22,548 0 0.0%

organisations
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Final Appro- Actual Variance @ Variance as

priation | Expenditure a % of Final

Appropria-

tion

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Non-profit institutions 477481 488,502 (11,021 (2.3%)

Households 14,619 13,992 627 4.3%
Payments for capital assets

Buildings and other fixed structures 386,552 315914 70,638 18.3%

Machinery and equipment 103,626 103,577 49 0.0%

Intangible assets 1,223 1,223 - 0.0%

Payments for financial assets 3,439 3,439 - 0.0%

Expenditure variance is due to:

. Compensation of employees under spending of R22 million is mainly due to vacant positions (EPVWP) that were
filled and those that became vacant in the latter part of the financial year.

. Goods and services under spending of R16 million relates to late receipt of invoices (R5.2 million) that could not
be processed before financial year-end and the balance (RI | million) relate to the budget allocation for Agrément
SA which was processed under transfers and subsidies.

. Transfers and subsidies for Provinces and municipalities (EPVWP Integrated Grant for Provinces) under-spent by R1.2
million. Funds were withheld for 2 Limpopo Provincial Department due to non-compliance to DORA requirements.

. Non-Profit Institutions over spending of RI | million relates to transfer payment to Agrément SA (Programme 4)
which was classified under the budget allocation for goods and services

. Payments for capital asset (Buildings & other fixture) R7 | million underspending due to delay in processing claim for

expenditure relating to infrastructure projects (Programme 2).

4.3 Per conditional grant Final Appro- Actual Variance @ Variance as

priation  Expenditure a % of Final

Appropria-

tion

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

EPWP Integrated Grant for Municipalities 594,575 594,575 - 0.0%

EPWP Integrated Grant for Provinces 348,947 347,704 1,243 0.4%

Social Sector EPWP Incentive Grant for 257,972 257,972 - 0.0%
Provinces

Conditional grant underspent by R|.2million relate to transfer payment to EPWP integrated Grant for Provinces.
Funds were withheld due to non-compliance to the Division of Revenue Act requirements by Provincial Government

Departments.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the Year Ended 31 March 2015

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
REVENUE
Annual appropriation i 6,121,320 6,175,726
Departmental revenue 2 16,132 55,470
TOTAL REVENUE 6,137,452 6,230,731
EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 3 1,591,775 1,471,497
Goods and services 4 1,428,327 1,315,755
Interest and rent on land 5 9 -
Total current expenditure 3,020,111 2,787,252
Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 7 2,577,774 ‘ ’ 2,596,554
Total transfers and subsidies 2,577,774 2,596,554
Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets 8 419,491 614,876
Intangible assets 8 1,223 16,184
Total expenditure for capital assets 420,714 631,060
Payments for financial assets 6 3,439 7,788
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 6,022,038 6,022,654
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FORTHEYEAR 115,414 208,077
Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
Voted funds 99,282 152,607
Annual appropriation 99,282 ‘ ’ 152,607
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 2 16,132 55,470
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FORTHEYEAR 115,414 208,077
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
for the Year Ended 31 March 2015

ASSETS

Current assets
Unauthorised expenditure
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepayments and advances

Receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered
to the Revenue Fund

Bank overdraft
Payables
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Represented by:

Recoverable revenue

TOTAL
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Note

10

|2

I3
4

6

2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
358,528 362,808
261,169 255,668
182 179
12,876 30,294
84,301 76,667
358,528 362,808
347,885 349,861
104,798 158,838
5375 46,294
159,373 98,177
78,339 46,552
347,885 349,861
10,643 12,947
10,643 12,947
10,643 12,947
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the Year Ended 31 March 2015

on vote no. 7: Department of Public Works

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

Recoverable revenue
Opening balance 12,947 577242
Transfers: (2,304) (44,295)
Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts) (2,398) (44,297)
Debts raised 94 2
Closing balance 10,643 12,947

TOTAL 10,643 12,947
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the Year Ended 31 March 2015

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 6,137,452 6,230,654
Annual appropriated funds received [.1 6,121,320 6,175,261
Departmental revenue received 2.112.212.5 [1113 54,067
Interest received 2.3 5019 1,326
Net (increase)/decrease in working capital 36,070 164,524
Surrendered to Revenue Fund (215,874) (872,323)
Current payments (3,014,601) (2,781,037)
Interest paid 5 9) -
Payments for financial assets (3/439) (7,788)
Transfers and subsidies paid (2,577,774) (2,596,554)
Net cash flow available from operating activities 17 361,825 137,476

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets 8 (420,714) (631,060)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 24 - 77
Net cash flows from investing activities (420,714) (630,983)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(decrease) in net assets (2,304) (44,295)
Net cash flows from financing activities (2,304) (44,295)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (61,193) (537,802)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (97,998) 439,804
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 18 (159,191) (97,998)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the Year Ended 31 March 2015

Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied

consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated.
The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated. Management has used assessments and
estimates in preparing the annual financial statements. These are based on the best information available at the time of
preparation.
Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial
statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act | of 1999
(as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of
Revenue Act.
I. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.
2. Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3. Presentation currency

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency
of the department.

4. Rounding
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R'000).
5. Foreign currency translation

Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands using the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.
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6. Comparative information

6.1

6.2

Prior period comparative information

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year's financial statements. Where
necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the
format in which the information is presented is consistent with the format of the current year's financial
statements.

Current year comparison with budget

A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme and economic
classification is included in the appropriation statement.

7. Revenue

7.1

7.2

7.3

Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the revenue fund

(i.e. statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the appropriation
becomes effective. Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the

statement of financial performance on the date the adjustments become effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is
recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.

Departmental revenue

Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is

subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in the
statement of financial position.

Accrued departmental revenue

Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the financial

statements when:

. it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to
the department; and

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
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Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from collecting

agents.
8. Expenditure
8.1 Compensation of employees
8.1.1 Salaries and wages
Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
8.1.2 Social contributions

Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in the
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as transfers to

households in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
8.2 Other expenditure
Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets) is
recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. The expense is classified as a
capital expense if the total consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold.

8.3 Accrued expenditure payable

Accrued expenditure payable is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the goods are received
or, in the case of services, when they are rendered to the department.

Accrued expenditure payable is measured at cost.
8.4 Leases
8.4.1 Operating leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in

the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.
8.4.2 Finance leases

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
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The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not
apportioned between the capital and interest portions.

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower of:

. cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

. the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire ownership
at the end of the lease term, excluding interest.

9. Aid Assistance

9.1

9.2

Aid assistance received

Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received. In-kind aid

assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of receipt and is measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance that are
required to be refunded to the donor are recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position.

Aid assistance paid
Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. Aid

assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable in the statement of
financial position.

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held, other

short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

11. Prepayments and advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the department receives or

disburses the cash.

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost. (Indicate when prepayments are

expensed and under what circumstances.)

12. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued interest, where

interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.
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13. Investments
Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

14. Impairment of financial assets
Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in the recorded
carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits expected to be received
from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

15. Payables
Loans and payables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

16. Capital Assets

16.1 Immovable capital assets

Immovable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Immovable

capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of immovable capital assets cannot be determined accurately, the immovable capital assets are

measured at R unless the fair value of the asset has been reliably estimated, in which case the fair value is used.
All assets acquired prior to | April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at RI.
Immovable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital
project unless the immovable asset is recorded by another department in which case the completed project
costs are transferred to that department.

16.2 Movable capital assets

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Movable capital

assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined accurately, the movable capital assets are
measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at R1I.

All assets acquired prior to | April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at RI.
Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital
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16.3

project unless the movable asset is recorded by another department/entity in which case the completed
project costs are transferred to that department.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Intangible assets
acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the department
commences the development phase of the project.

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined accurately, the intangible capital assets are measured
at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured at R1.

Al assets acquired prior to | April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at RI.
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital

project unless the intangible asset is recorded by another department/entity in which case the completed
project costs are transferred to that department.

17. Provisions and Contingents

17.1

Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or constructive
obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

17.2 Contingent liabilities

17.3
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Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation
that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department or when there is a present
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset arises from

past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not within the control of the department
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17.4 Commitments

Commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements when there is a contractual
arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises a valid expectation that the department

will discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring future expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash
Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as the expenditure is either:

. approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are received; or

. approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against the appropriation
in the statement of financial performance; or

. transferred to receivables for recovery.
Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The
amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it is resolved or

transferred to receivables for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and
are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount recorded is
equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine, in which case reasons
therefor are provided in the note.

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority, transferred to

receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are de-
recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance
with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the
cumulative effect of the change in policy. In such instances the department shall restate the opening balances of

assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.
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23.

24.

25.

26.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with
MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the
cumulative effect of the error. In such cases the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities

and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.
Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the financial
statements. The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting date
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Agent-Principal arrangements
Agent-Principal arrangements are recorded in the notes to the financial statements where applicable.
Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes
recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts are either transferred to the National/Provincial

Revenue Fund when recovered or are transferred to the statement of financial performance when written-off.
Inventories

At the date of acquisition, inventories are recorded at cost price in the notes to the financial statements where
inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the cost of inventory is its fair value at the date of

acquisition.

Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or the lower of cost and

replacement value.
Related party transactions
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a

related party. Related party transactions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the transaction
is not at arm’s length.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the Year Ended 31 March 2015

I. Annual Appropriation
1.1 Annual Appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) for National
Departments (Voted funds) and Provincial Departments:

2014/15 2013/14
Final Actual Funds Appropriation

Appropriation Received received
R’000 R’000 R’000
Administration 1,179,272 1,179,272 1,132,506
Immovable Asset Management 2,829,033 2,829,033 2,971,940
Expanded Public Works Programme 1,946,480 1,946,480 1,932,969
Property and Construction Industry Policy 34,336 34,336 36,682

Regulation
Auxiliary and Associated Services 132,199 132,199 101,164
Total 6,121,320 6,121,320 6,175,261
2. Departmental revenue

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 6,667 3,859
Fines, penalties and forfeits 2.2 7 4
Interest, dividends and rent on land 2.3 5019 1,326
Sales of capital assets 24 - 77
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 2.5 4,439 50,204

Departmental revenue collected 16,132 55,470
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2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

Sales of goods and services produced by the department
Sales by market establishment
Other sales

Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods

Total

2.2 Fines, penalties and forfeits

Fines

Total

2.3 Interest, dividends and rent on land

Interest

Total

2.4 Sale of capital assets

Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment
Total

2.5 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Receivables
Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue

Total
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Note

Note

Note

Note

30

Note

2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
6,605 3,855
496 490
6,109 3,365

62 4
6,667 3,859
2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

7 4

7 4
2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
5019 1,326
5,019 1,326
2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

- 77

- 77
2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
552 45,806
3,887 4,398
4,439 50,204




3. Compensation of employees

3.1 Salaries and Wages

Basic salary

Performance award

Service Based
Compensative/circumstantial
Periodic payments

Other non-pensionable allowances

Total

3.2 Social contributions

Employer contributions
Pension

Medical

UIF

Bargaining council

Total

Total compensation of employees

Average number of employees
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Note

Note

2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
1,100,041 1,010,719
17,643 16,592
2,359 3,026
30,688 202217
775 2,406
237,936 221,621
1,389,442 1,276,581
2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
133,394 123910
68,592 70361

- 2

347 643
202,333 194,916
1,591,775 1,471,497
5774 5710
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4. Goods and services

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Administrative fees 474 650
Advertising 12,208 [1,945
Minor assets 4.1 [1,803 4,769
Bursaries (employees) 292 1,572
Catering 2,246 3,536
Communication 24,030 25,595
Computer services 4.2 35,906 24,764
Consultants: Business and advisory services 48,169 169,405
Infrastructure and planning services 22,866 18,226
Legal services 22,466 18,378
Contractors 116,259 100,738
Agency and support / outsourced services 256,997 200,111
Entertainment 301 720
Audit cost — external 4.3 58,887 58,594
Fleet services 18,059 17,630
Inventory 4.4 - 12,800
Consumables 4.5 28,575 22,942
Operating leases 228,190 247,586
Property payments 4.6 419,256 254,26
Rental and hiring [,173 608
Travel and subsistence 4.7 91,053 95,021
Venues and facilities 5,275 8,684
Training and development 14,457 7,130
Other operating expenditure 4.8 9,385 9,090
Total 1,428,327 1,315,755
4.1 Minor assets
Note 2014/15 2013/14
4 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets [1,803 4,769
Machinery and equipment [1,803 4,769
Total 11,803 4,769
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4.2 Computer services

Note 2014/15 2013/14
4 R’000 R’000
SITA computer services 9,029 8,722
External computer service providers 26,877 16,042
Total 35,906 24,764
4.3 Audit cost - External
Note 2014/15 2013/14
4 R’000 R’000
Regularity audits 58,887 58,594
Total 58,887 58,594
4.4 Inventory
Note 2014/15 2013/14
4 R’000 R’000
Clothing material and accessories - 4,235
Fuel, oil and gas - 7,570
Materials and supplies - 995
Total - 12,800
4.5 Consumables
Note 2014/15 2013/14
4 R’000 R’000
Consumable supplies 17,073 11,998
Uniform and clothing [,959 19
Household supplies 6,628 9,124
Building material and supplies 5,480 32
Communication accessories 10 75
[T consumables 1,050 2,258
Other consumables 1,946 390
Stationery, printing and office supplies 11,502 10,944
Total 28,575 22,942
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4.6 Property payments

Municipal services

Property management fees
Property maintenance & repairs
Other

Total

4.7 Travel and subsistence

Local
Foreign

Total

4.8 Other operating expenditure

Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees
Resettlement costs

Other

Total

5. Interest and rent on land

Interest paid

Total

6. Payments for financial assets

Other material losses written off

Total
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Note 2014/15 2013/14
4 R’000 R’000
272,758 236,265

13,638 11,811

127,632 -

5228 6,185

419,256 254,261

Note 2014/15 2013/14
4 R’000 R’000
90,527 94513

526 508

91,053 95,021

Note 2014/15 2013/14
4 R’000 R’000
285 1,981

1,046 667

8,054 6,442

9,385 9,090

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

9 .

9 -

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

6.1 3,439 7,788
3,439 7,788




6.1 Other material losses written off

Nature of losses
Claims recoverable
Recoverable expenditure
Prepayments

Total

7. Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities

Departmental agencies and accounts

Foreign governments and international organisations
Public corporations and private enterprises
Non-profit institutions

Households

Total

Unspent funds transferred to the above beneficiaries

8. Expenditure for capital assets

Tangible assets
Buildings and other fixed structures

Machinery and equipment

Intangible assets

Software

Total

Note

Note

36
Annex |A

Annex |B
Annex |D
Annex |C
Annex |E

Annex |F

Note

32.1
30.1
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2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
10 9
| 440 7496
1,989 283
3,439 7,788
2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
1,200,254 1,221,445
802,476 802,412
22,548 17,555
50,000 100,000
488,502 448,679
13,994 6,463
2,577,774 2,596,554
198,573 221,887
2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
419,491 614,876
315914 567,365
103,577 47511
1,223 16,184
1223 16,184
420,714 631,060
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Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
The following amounts have been included as project costs
in Expenditure for capital assets
Goods and services 193 218
Total 193 218

8.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets — 2014/15

Voted funds Aid assistance Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 419,491 - 419,491
Buildings and other fixed structures 315914 - 315914
Machinery and equipment 103,577 - 103,577
Intangible assets 1,223 1,223
Software 1,223 - 1,223
Total 420,714 - 420,714

8.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets — 2013/14

Voted funds Aid assistance Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 614,876 - 614,876
Buildings and other fixed structures 567,365 - 567,365
Machinery and equipment 47511 - 47,511
Intangible assets 16,184 - 16,184
Software 16,184 - 16,184
Total 631,060 - 631,060
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8.3 Finance lease expenditure included in Expenditure for capital assets

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 11,749 12,042
Machinery and equipment 11,749 12,042
Intingable assets 652
Software 652
Total 11,749 12,694
9. Unauthorised expenditure
9.1 Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure
Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 255,668 249,453
Unauthorised expenditure — discovered in current year (as 5,501 6,215
restated)
Unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation / 261,169 255,668

written off

9.2 Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per economic classification

2014/15 2013/14

R’000 R’000

Current 80,755 80,755
Capital 178,087 172,586
Transfers and subsidies 2,327 2,327
Total 261,169 255,668

9.3 Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per type

2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Unauthorised expenditure relating to overspending of 83,082 83,082
the vote or a main division within a vote
Unauthorised expenditure incurred not in accordance 178,087 172,586
with the purpose of the vote or main division
Total 261,169 255,668
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9.4 Details of unauthorised expenditure — current year

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 2014/15
proceedings R’000
Unauthorised expenditure under capital No disciplinary action taken still under 5,501
expenditure incurred towards building of investigation
schools which is a provincial competency.
Total 5,501
9.5 Details of unauthorised expenditure
Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 2014/15
proceedings R’000
Unauthorised expenditure under capital 174,102
expenditure incurred towards build of schools
which is a provincial competency.
Unauthorised expenditure on capital assets 3,985
procured for the schools.
Overspending on compensation of employees 67,135
Overspending on goods and services 13,620
Overspending on transfers and subsidies 2,327
Total 261,169
10. Cash and cash equivalents
Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Cash on hand 182 179
Total 182 179
I 1. Prepayments and advances
Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Travel and subsistence 182 110
Prepayments | 2,040
Advances paid [ 12,693 28,144
Total 12,876 30,294

Page 230




Department of Public Works

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

1.1 Advances paid

Note 2014/15 2013/14
Il R’000 R’000
Public entities Annex 7A 10,378 18,892
Other entities Annex 7A 2315 9,252
Total 12,693 28,144
12. Receivables
Note 2014/15 2013/14
Less than One to Older Total Total

one year three than

years three

years
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Claims recoverable 2.1 14,658 - - 14,658 7,748

Annex 3
Recoverable expenditure 12.2 2,813 1,512 40,456 44,782 45217
Staff debt 12.3 522 664 158 1,344 4,690
Fruitless and wasteful 2.5 94 94 2
expenditure
Other debtors 12.4 5236 5,862 12,325 23423 19,010
Total 23,323 8,038 52,939 84,301 76,667
12.1 Claims recoverable

Note 2014/15 2013/14
|2 R’000 R’000
National departments 3,480 7,665
Provincial departments - 83
Public entities 1,178 -

Total 14,658 7,748
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12.2 Recoverable expenditure (disallowance accounts)

Disallowance
Private telephone
Salary accounts

Total

12.3 Staff debt

Personnel debt

Total

12.4 Other debtors

Other debtors
Total

12.5 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance

Less amounts recovered

Less amounts written off

Transfers from note 26 Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure

Total

12.6 Impairment of receivables

Estimate of impairment of receivables

Total
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Note

Note

Note

Note
|2

Note
12

2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
43751 44231

3 10
1,028 976
44,782 45,217

2014/15 2013/14

R’000 R’000
| 344 4,690
1,344 4,690

2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
23,423 19,010

23,423 19,010

2014/15 2013/14

R’000 R’000
Y -

@) .

- (92)

94 94

94 2

2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
52971 51453

52,971 51,453
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13. Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Note 2014/15 2013/14

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 158,838 853,713
Transfer from statement of financial performance 99,282 152,607
Add: Unauthorised expenditure for current year ? 5,501 6,215
Paid during the year (158,823) (853,697)
Closing balance 104,798 158,838

14. Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the
Revenue Fund

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 46,294 9,450
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 16,132 55,470
Paid during the year (57,051 (18,626)
Closing balance 5,375 46,294
15. Bank Overdraft
Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Consolidated Paymaster General Account 159,373 98,177
Total 159,373 98,177
16. Payables - current
Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Advances received 16.1 75,280 44,117
Annex 7B
Clearing accounts 16.2 [,13] [,791
Other payables 6.3 1,928 644
Total 78,339 46,552
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16.1 Advances received

Note
6
National departments
Provincial departments
Total
16.2 Clearing accounts
Note
6
Salary clearing account
Total
16.3 Other payables
Note
6

Claims and other payables

Total

17. Net cash flow available from operating activities

Note

Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial
Performance

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating
activities

(Increase)/decrease in receivables — current
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances
Increase/(decrease) in payables — current

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Expenditure on capital assets

Surrenders to Revenue Fund

Net cash flow generated by operating activities
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2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
65,380 34217

9,900 9,900
75,280 44,117

2014/15 2013/14

R’000 R’000
1131 1,791
1,131 1,791

2014/15 2013/14

R’000 R’000
1928 644
1,928 644

2014/15 2013/14

R’000 R’000
115414 208,077
24641 | (70,601)

(7.634) 182,228
17,418 7950
31,787 (19,439)

- (77)

420714 631,060
(215,874) (872,323)
361,825 137,476
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18. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes

Note 2014/15 2013/14

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General account (159,373) (98,177)
Cash on hand 182 179
Total (159,191) (97,998)

19. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

19.1 Contingent liabilities

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

Liable to Nature
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 2A 13 63
Claims against the department Annex 2B 229 366
Total 242 429

19.2 Contingent assets

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

Nature of contingent asset
Fraud against the department - 11
Total - 11
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20. Commitments

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Current expenditure
Approved and contracted 279,765 287,145
Approved but not yet contracted 631 18,997
280,396 306,142
Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted 3922 609,969
Approved but not yet contracted - 17
3,922 609,986
Total Commitments 284,318 916,128
Reduction of commitment is due to the transfer of budget and related functions to PMTE.
21. Accruals and payables not recognised
2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Listed by economic classification
30 Days 30+ Days Total Total
Goods and services 29,093 395 29,488 53,343
Transfers and subsidies 8 - 8 331
Capital assets 1,821 - 1,821 13,864
Other 42 2 44 100
Total 30,964 397 31,361 67,638
Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Listed by programme level
Administration 11,991 38,726
Immovable Asset Management [,931 21816
Expanded Public Works Programme 16,181 6,066
Property and Construction Industry Policy 107 930
Regulations
Auxiliary and Associated Services [151 100
Total 31,361 67,638
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Note 2014/15 2013/14

R’000 R’000

Confirmed balances with other departments Annex 4 3,316 5,303
Confirmed balances with other government entities Annex 4 42,655 103,370
Total 45,971 108,673

Material accruals relate to capital movable assets, consulting fees as well as telecommunication charges.

22. Employee benefits

Note 2014/15 2013/14

R’000 R’000

Leave entitlement 15516 52,949
Service bonus (Thirteenth cheque) 7,749 37,933
Performance awards 4,161 22,219
Capped leave commitments 8,124 69,453
Other 787 3,602
Total 36,337 186,156

The RI5 million (2013/14 R53 million) leave entitlement represent the debit amounts. There are also credit balances
amounting to R5 15k (2013/14 R3 million) excluded from the balance. The leave credits are caused by leave advances
which are not accrued in the public service but are advances to employees.

23. Lease commitments

23.1 Operating leases expenditure

2014/15 Specialised Land Buildings Machinery Total
military and other and
equipment fixed equipment
structures

Not later than | year - - - - -

Later than | year and not later than - - - - -

5 years

Later than five years - - - - -

Total lease commitments - - - - -

The budget for office accommodation has been transferred to PMTE as part of the transfer of function.
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2013/14 Specialised Land Buildings Machinery Total
military and other and
equipment fixed equipment
structures
Not later than | year - 78,581 197 78,778
Later than | year and not later than - 165,676 - 165,676
5 years
Later than five years - 138,255 - 138,255
Total lease commitments - 382,512 197 382,709
23.2 Finance leases expenditure®*
2014/15 Specialised Land Buildings Machinery Total
military and other and
equipment fixed equipment
structures
Not later than | year - - [,370 [,370
Later than | year and not later than - - 3,237 3,237
5 years
Total lease commitments - - 4,607 4,607
2013/14 Specialised Land Buildings Machinery Total
military and other and
equipment fixed equipment
structures
Not later than | year - - 6,253 6,253
Later than | year and not later than - - 3,635 3,635
5 years
Total lease commitments - - 9,888 9,888

**This note excludes leases relating to public private partnership as they are separately disclosed to note no.35.

The department has entered into finance lease arrangement for cell phones and 3G cards for a period of three years,
as well as lease contracts for photocopy machines for three years. All the contracts have no escalation clauses and are
procured via tender process on expiry.
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24. Accrued departmental revenue

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Interest, dividends and rent on land 4,069 3,800
Total 4,069 3,800
24.1 Analysis of accrued departmental revenue
Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 3,800 17,601
Less: amounts received (4,686) (17,601)
Add: Amounts recognised 4,955 3,800
Closing balance 4,069 3,800
25. Irregular expenditure
25.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 501,231 754016
Prior period errors (80,581)
As restated 501,231 673,435
Add: Irregular expenditure — relating to prior year 37,7242
Add: Irregular expenditure — relating to current year 40,695 114,972
Less: Prior year amounts condoned (144,255) (324,418)
Less: : Current year amounts condoned (23,778) -
Less: Amounts not recoverable (not condoned) (5,787)
Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation 368,106 501,231
Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year 40,695 33,995
Prior years 327411 467,236
Total 368,106 501,231
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An amount of R14.59 million was discovered by the AGSA as possible irregular expenditure and management is still investigating the
transactions to determine if indeed they are irregular expenditure.

A further amount of R9.4 million was discovered by management as possible irregular expenditure waiting validation. This was as a
result of non-compliance with the prescripts for local contents and production for certain categories of purchases.

The query was referred to the National Treasury for further advise

25.2 Details of irregular expenditure — current year

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 2014/15
proceedings R’000
Limitation of scope Awaiting approval for condonation 21,078
Non-compliance with the prescripts of local Approval for condonation to be finalised in 4,990
contents and production 2015/16
Transfer payment to Agrément SA Application for condonation made to the NT 11,021
Management fee charged by the IDT Application for condonation made to the NT 2,700
Service rendered outside the SLA Letter sent to relevant manager for explanation 263
Payments on expired contract Letter sent to relevant manager for explanation 136
Highest scoring bidder not appointed Letter sent to relevant manager for explanation 37
Three quotations not obtained Letter sent to relevant manager for explanation 470
Total 40,695

25.3 Details of irregular expenditure condoned

Incident Condoned by (condoning authority) 2014/15

R’000

Limitation of scope Delegated Authority 114514
Procurement processes not followed Delegated Authority 35599
Management fee charged by the IDT Delegated Authority 17920
Total 168,033

25.4 Details of irregular expenditure not recoverable (not condoned)

Incident Not condoned by (condoning 2014/15

authority) R’000

Procurement process not followed Delegated Authority 5,778
No approval for remunerative work Delegated Authority 9
Total 5,787
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25.5 Details of irregular expenditures under investigation

Incident 2014/15

R’000
Transfer payment to Agrément SA not approved by National Treasury 56 021
Procurement processes not followed 307,026
Local content not applied 5,059
Total 368,106

25.6 Prior period error

Note 2014/15
34 R’000
Nature of prior period error
Relating to 2013/14
Irregular expenditure opening balance (as restated) (80 581)
Total (80 581)
26. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
26.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 49,480 50,132
Prior period errors (375)
As restated 49,480 49,757
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - relating to prior year -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - relating to current year 2,127 130
Less: Amounts resolved (50 448) (407)
Less: Amounts transferred to receivables for recovery 2.6 (94) -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting 1,065 49,480

resolution
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26.2 Analysis of awaiting resolution per economic classification

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000
Current 1,065 9,106
Capital - 40,374
Total 1,065 49,480
26.3 Analysis of Current year’s fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 2014/15
proceedings R’000
Interest paid on overdue overtime worked Application for condonation being considered 9
by delegated authority
Legal fees and settlement Officials issued with final warning letters 1,272
Court judgement Matter still to be investigated 846
Total 2,127
26.4 Prior period error
Note 2014/15
34 R’000
Nature of prior period error
Relating to 2013/14
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure opening balance (as (375)
restated)
Total (375)
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27. Related party transactions

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

Revenue received
Tax revenue
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets - -
Total - -
Payments made
Goods and services 418,665 88,926
Interest 9 -
Expenditure for capital assets 19,335 -
Payments for financial assets 3,242 -
Total 441,251 88,926
List other contingent liabilities between
department and related party
IDT Commitments 3,401 14,785
Total 3,401 14,785
In kind goods and services provided/received
Compensation of Employees(Payments) 1,214,991 585,586
Compensation of Employees(accruals) - -
Goods & Services (Accruals) - 72,636
Machinery(Accruals) - -
Employees Benefits - 89,486
Municipal Services- (Payments) 270,135 9,655
Municipal Services- (Accruals) - 676
Capital Assets payment 315915 561,150
Cleaning and Gardening Services(expenditure) - 59,614
Cleaning and Gardening Services(accruals)) - 3,090
State-owned leases-Expenditure 47,723 -
Total 1,848,765 1,381,893
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Related parties to the Department

The following entities/departments have been identified as related parties of the Department:

a)  Independent Development Trust (IDT) - Government development agency to implement projects commissioned
by government.

b)  Parliamentary Village Management Board - To provide transport from and to the parliamentary villages for
residents (Parliamentarians and sessional officials) who are in Cape Town.

c)  Agrément South Africa (ASA) - Promote and support the process of integrated socio-economic development in
SA.

d)  Council for the Built Environment (CBE) - Oversee built environment professional councils.

e)  Construction Industry Development Board (CIDB) - Provide strategic direction for sustainable growth, reform
and improvements of the construction sector and its role in the economy.

f)  Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE) - To manage devolved accommodation-related costs and user
charge.

Related parties transactions

|.Independent Development trust

The management fee (identified as a non-arm’s length transaction) and the contract cost is disclosed above. The
management fee structure varies per project depending on the duration, complexity and labour required and is
embedded in the contract cost of the projects undertaken by the IDT for the Department.

2. Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE)

The Property Management Trading Entity (PMTE) operates within the administration of the Department of Public
Works (DPW) and as such all contracts are entered into in the name of the DPW. The liabilities and obligations arising
from these transactions are accounted for by the PMTE if it relates to the PMTE operating activities as these liabilities
will be settled using the PMTE funds and resources.

2.1 Details of In kind goods and services provided/received

Direct cost

Direct cost consists of overhead costs for the day-to-day running of PMTE. These costs can be measured reliably and
are disclosed above. Direct cost regarding compensation of employees is not a standard line item disclosure under
‘payments made’. This amounts to R1.2 billion (2013/14 R 586 million).

Employee benefits

Employee benefit cost can be measured reliably and amounts to R89 million for 2013/14.

Indirect cost

Indirect costs include the sharing of corporate services between the Department and PMTE. The nature of the
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transactions resulted in difficulties in reliably determining the value of the indirect costs paid on behalf of the PMTE
due to the operational structure and functions between the Department and the PMTE.

Human Resources (HRM, HROD)

Gender, people with disabilities, youth and children

Marketing and communication

Information system services

Legal services

Security management

Labour relations

International Relations Strat

Cleaning and Gardening services

In prior years DPW received a free service from PMTE for gardening and cleaning services and the cost incurred was
(2013/14 R59.6 million and accruals of R3 million).

Municipal services

DPW paid municipal services on state owned and private lease properties not occupied by DPW. This amounts to
R270 million (2013/14 R9.6 million).

Capital Assets

PMTE manages major and minor capital projects for state owned buildings under its custodianship. The actual
construction of this is performed by a third party and paid by the PMTE. Some of these costs are recovered from DPW
yet the projects are not specifically for DPW. Payments of R315 million (2013/14 R561 million) were made based on
the devolution of funds from National Treasury.

State-owned leases

DPW transferred the custodianship of state-owned buildings to PMTE. Immovable assets are currently recorded
in PMTE's financial books. Rental payments on these state-owned buildings amounts to R47million based on the
devolution of funds from National treasury

Private leases

In the current financial year DPW provided PMTE with free accommodation service. The cost incurred on behalf
PMTE cannot be determined.

Revenue on Staff parking

In the current financial year DPW collected revenue of R495K on behalf of PMTE relating to Staff parking.
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28. Key management personnel

No. of 2014/15 2013/14
Individuals

R’000 R’000

Political office bearers (provide detail below) 2 4,034 3,861
Officials:

Level I5to 16 5 15,592 31,757

Level 14 (incl. CFO if at a lower level) 66 65,971 49,345

Family members of key management personnel I 688 587

Total 86,285 85,550

The Political office bearers are the Minister of the Department of Public Works and the Deputy Minister of the Department
of Public Works.

29. Public Private Partnership

Note 2014/15 2013/14
R’000 R’000

Contract fee received
Contract fee paid 60,622 57,080
Fixed component 885 1,497
Indexed component 59,737 55,583
Analysis of indexed component 59,737 55,583
Goods and services (excluding lease payments) 18,829 17,682
Operating leases 40,908 37,901
Capital / (Liabilities) 885 1,497
Tangible rights 885 1,497
Other 1,339 8,735
Other obligations 1,339 8,735

The Department participates in the fleet contract through the Department of Transport provided by Phakisa. The
contract operates currently on a month to month basis from | December 2014 for a period not longer than 12
months.

Included in other obligation of RI.3 million are operating lease commitments of R196k and accruals of RI.I million.
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30. Movable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PERASSET REGISTER FORTHEYEAR
ENDED 3